
Alison Sanders, Director of Corporate Services 
Easthampstead House, Town Square, Bracknell, Berkshire RG12 1AQ 

 
* with voting rights in respect of education matters only. 

Contact: Sue Hills 
Telephone: (01344) 352060 
Email: sue.hills@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
Date Published: 10 July 2007 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
 

19 JULY 2007 
 

TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
 
You are requested to attend a meeting of the above Commission on 19 July 2007 at 
7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House, Bracknell, to 
transact the business set out in the attached agenda. 

 
 Alison Sanders 
 Director of Corporate Services 
 

Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Commission 
 

Councillor Edger (Chairman) 
Councillor Thompson (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Councillors Baily, Mrs Beadsley, Mrs Birch, Browne, Brunel-Walker, Finnie, Leake, McLean, 

Ms  Whitbread and Worrall 
 

Substitute Members of the Committee 
 

Councillors Beadsley, Dudley, Kensall, Mrs Pile, Mrs Ryder, Mrs Shillcock and Simonds 
 

Church Representative Member* 
Mr G Anderson and Mr M G Gibbons 

 
Parent Governor Representative Members* 

Mr I Sharland, 1 vacancy 
 

EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
 

If you hear the alarm: 
 

1 Leave the building immediately 
2 Follow the green signs 
3 Use the stairs not the lifts 
4 Do not re-enter the building until told to do so 

 

 



 

 

THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
19 July 2007 (7.30 pm) 

Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House, Bracknell. 
 

AGENDA 
 
 Page No 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE/SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS   

 To receive apologies for absence and to note the attendance of any 
substitute members.  
 

 

2. MINUTES AND MATTERS ARISING  1 - 8 

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Commission held on 7 June 2007.  
 

 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND PARTY WHIP   

 Members are asked to declare any personal or prejudicial interest and 
the nature of that interest, including the existence and nature of the 
party whip, in respect of any matter to be considered at this meeting.  
 

 

4. URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS   

 Any other items which, pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the Chairman decides are urgent.  
 

 

HOLDING THE EXECUTIVE TO ACCOUNT 

5. REVIEW OF LIBRARIES  9 - 18 

 To receive the Executive’s response to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Report on Library Provision in Bracknell Forest.  
 

 

6. REVIEW OF YOUTH PROVISION  19 - 22 

 To receive the Executive’s response to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Report on Youth Service Provision in Bracknell Forest.  
 

 

7. EXECUTIVE FORWARD PLAN  23 - 30 

 Forthcoming items on the Executive Forward Plan of a corporate nature 
are attached for consideration.  
 

 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

8. CORPORATE PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW REPORT  31 - 82 

 To consider the Chief Executive’s Corporate Performance Overview 
Report for quarter four of 2006/07 (January to March).  
 

 

 



 

 

OVERVIEW AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 

9. REPORT OF THE REVIEW OF HEALTHCARE FUNDING IN 
BRACKNELL FOREST  

83 - 110 

 To consider the final report from a review of healthcare funding in 
Bracknell Forest by a Working Group of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Commission.  
 

 

10. SCRUTINY OF BRACKNELL FOREST PARTNERSHIP - THE 
REQUIREMENT TO FORM A CRIME AND DISORDER OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

111 - 114 

 To consider the overview and scrutiny arrangement pertaining to the 
Bracknell Forest Partnership and the new legal requirement to form a 
Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  
 

 

OTHER OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ACTIVITY 

11. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME  115 - 118 

 To consider the proposed overall programme of Overview and Scrutiny 
for 2007/08.  
 

 

12. UPDATES FORM THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY CHAIRMEN   

 To receive verbal updates from Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Chairmen, and the Chairman of the Joint East Berkshire Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel.  
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
07 JUNE 2007 

(7.30  - 9.25 pm) 

Present: Councillors Edger (Chairman), Baily, Mrs Birch, Browne, Finnie, Leake, 
Mrs Ryder (Substitute), Ms Whitbread and Worrall 

Church Representatives:  

 Mr G Anderson  

Also Present: 

 Councillor McCracken, Executive Member for Leisure, Corporate Services 
and Public Protection 

Apologies for absence were received from:  

 Councillors Beadsley, Brunel-Walker, McLean and Thompson and Mr G 
Anderson 

In attendance: Alison Sanders, Director of Corporate Services 
Richard Beaumont, Head of Performance & Scrutiny 
Alan Nash, Head of Finance 
David Bryant, Audit Commission 
Greg McIntosh, KPMG 
Andrea Carr, Policy Officer (Scrutiny) 
Steve Richards, Senior Democratic Services Officer 

4. Apologies for Absence/Substitute Members  

The Commission noted the attendance of the following substitute members: 

Councillor Mrs Ryder for Councillor Thompson 

5. Minutes and Matters Arising  

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Commission held on 15 March 2007 be agreed as a correct record and signed by the 
Chairman, subject to changing ‘Direct’ to ‘Director’ on page 1.  The Chairman paid 
tribute to the contribution made by the former Chairman, Councillor Michael 
Sargeant. 

6. Declarations of Interest and Party Whip  

There were no declarations of interest or indications that members would be 
participating whilst under the party whip. 

7. Urgent Items of Business  

The Chairman agreed that the minutes of the annual Overview and Scrutiny meeting 
held on 23 May 2007 should  be considered as an urgent item at this meeting 

Agenda Item 2

1



pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act, 1972.  The reason for 
urgency was to avoid the delay in confirming the composition of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Panels that would be incurred if this matter was postponed until the next 
meeting of the Commission. 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Commission held on 23 May 2007 be agreed as a correct record and signed by the 
Chairman. 

8. Annual Audit and Inspection Letter  

David Bryant, the Borough’s external auditor, briefed the Commission on the Annual 
Audit and Inspection letter, which had been seen by the Executive and its content 
accepted.  The letter had been drafted in March 2007, and since then the Housing 
Stock Transfer result had become known.  Additional work on supporting people had 
been undertaken, and they were now happy with the direction being taken. 

The overall performance of the Council was three stars, the second highest grading.  
The Council was performing just above average, and there was no cause for 
concern, with this rating being shared by about half the councils in the country.  
Bracknell Forest was improving adequately, although this was lower than the 
improving well rating received last year, due to a lack of consistency in improvement 
across the whole Council.  The Council was aware of steps needed to improve and 
was taking the appropriate action. 

Other points highlighted covered the following areas: 

• There would be a focus on ensuring that the Medium Term Objectives 
were updated; 

• Performance Management was weak in several areas, and there was a 
need for consistency so that there were high levels across the whole 
council.  The CPA would focus on this as one of the areas to be looked at; 

• There would be a move away from assessing individual organisations to 
Comprehensive Area Assessments (CAA) which would look at how 
organisations worked in partnership to improve services for an area; 

• The Council was achieving value for money, and officers were thanked for 
their co-operation and preparation of comprehensive files; 

• Financial control was good, but there was a need to further embed Risk 
Management; 

• There had been no problems with the Final Accounts Audit, and the 
2006/07 Audit was just starting; 

• A review of data quality had been carried out, and some 
recommendations made.  Steps had been taken to address these 
concerns; 

• In relation to community safety, members of the Commission felt that the 
Council was being criticised for something that it had no control over, and 
that the extraction of police officers from Bracknell Forest to other areas 
was a contributory factor in the increase in crime rates between 2004/05 
and 2005/06; the report showed a reduction in the increase in the rate of 
crime and not a reduction in crime itself.  Another contributory factor was 
that as crime in Bracknell Forest was relatively low, it was difficult to 
reduce it when starting from a low base.  British Crime Survey (BCS) 
figures did try to look at statistics for unreported crime.  As these areas 
were Police matters, it was not clear what actions the Council could take, 
and it would be difficult for the Council to do anything without the support 

2



of the police.  This Commission could raise these issues and ensure that 
the Executive were aware of them.  The police could also be asked to 
attend Commission meetings and discuss the concerns and issues 
raised.  The Community Safety Manager, Ian Boswell, would be able to 
provide a better picture, and could be invited to speak at the next 
Commission meeting.  Councillor McCracken added that the Criminal 
Justice Act had some wording in it that there should be some scrutiny 
undertaken, and he supported bringing figures to the next meeting of the 
Commission to see whether crime was being reduced; 

• It was pointed out that the three areas of concern consistently mentioned 
in the audit letter had also been raised the previous year.  As these 
concerns seemed to be embedded, an update from the Director and/or 
Portfolio holder should be sought to ensure that the situation was being 
addressed and would not continue; 

• David Bryant explained that the reason that the overall Cultural Services 
CPA score for 2006 was ‘2’ compared with ‘3’ in 2005, even though 93% 
of users were satisfied with the library service,  was that it was linked to 
the standard of service expected.  Paragraph 39 of the report highlighted 
some other indicators that had given rise to the score, and it was noted 
that note 1 on page 21 of the agenda showed that officers did have some 
concerns.  Councillor Mrs Birch would ensure that the Audit Team were 
aware of these concerns, and added that a thorough report on libraries 
and the Library Service had recently been published, which showed that 
Bracknell Forest residents expected high standards in this area and 
received them.  National standards needed to be looked at; 

• Referring to the overall assessment (the CPA scorecard) on page 16 of 
the agenda papers, David Bryant explained that the fact that two scores 
had increased by one, and two scores had decreased by one did not 
balance out, with the underlying calculations being very complex. 

9. Internal Audit Annual Assurance Report and Statement on Internal Control 
2006/07  

The Commission considered a report by the Borough Treasurer drawing to the 
attention of Members the specific issues which had been identified during the audit 
process: 

• Internal Audit limited assurance reports 

• FMiSS – three secondary schools, Sandhurst, Garth Hill and Edgbarrow, 
had met the standard,  Brakenhale and Easthampstead Park had not met 
the standard, and the documentation for Ranelagh was still being 
reviewed; 

• The theme for all three limited assurances had been IT control.  The 
recommendations for one of the limited assurances would be 
implemented by 30 May 2007, and by 30 June 3007 for the other two; 

• There was no guidance on how Internal Audit should audit themselves.  
This Commission might need to be involved in due course;

• Internal control – weaknesses had been addressed; 

• The role of Audit lead Councillors had been clarified; 

• Although the return rate of quality questionnaires was better than in 
previous years, some still had to be chased. The expectation was that all 
audits would be delivered by the time of the final audit.  Councillor Edger 
requested that feedback be given that the Commission expected reports 
to be as full as possible; 

3



• Although withholding contract payments to the internal auditor had been a 
drastic step, the Council felt that this course of action had been 
warranted.  There were however concerns that the extra auditors since 
deployed would be re-deployed to other audits, and similar problems 
might recur.  Councillor Edger asked for assurances to be given at the 
next Commission that these concerns had been addressed.  The 
Chairman added that he would write to the auditors expressing the 
Commission’s concerns. 

RESOLVED that the Head of Audit’s opinion and the proposed Statement on Internal 
Control be noted. 

10. Audit Committee Responsibilities  

RESOLVED that Councillor Worrell and Councillor McLean be appointed to act as 
lead Members on audit issues. 

11. Departmental Overview and Performance  

The Director of Corporate Services presented the Quarterly Operations Report 
(QOR) in respect of Corporate Services for the fourth quarter of 2006/07.  Highlights 
included: 

• Completion of the development agreement between BFBC and Bracknell 
Regeneration Partnership; 

• Completion of many of the work streams for the new Civic Hub and Civic 
Centre; 

• Continued work on refreshing the Council’s Community Cohesion 
Strategy; 

• Disability Equality Scheme action plan agreed; 

• Development of the new Gender Equality Scheme and Action Plan for 
consultation in early 2007/08; 

• Processes that related to waste and recycling added to the CRM system; 

• Intensive preparations for the May 2007 elections; 

• Creation of a unified Learning and Development team and a unified 
transport team; 

• Work continued in HR on a range of staff recruitment and retention 
initiatives; 

• Launch of the Young Person’s website ‘Xpresionz’; 

• A recent Socitm (Society of Information Technology Management) survey 
for use of online facilities put BFBC as number one in the country for 
residents who made weekly use of the web, with a figure of 34%; 

• Annual accreditation of ISO9001 in Revenue Services renewed; 

• Legal Lexel re-accreditation. 

Some of the key challenges facing the department in the first quarter of 2007/2008 
were: 

• Continued support for the town centre regeneration 

• Progressing development of plans for Civic Centre 

• Supporting the work on the “Your Homes – Your Choice” project 

• The Boris intranet site was launched in May, and was liked by staff 

• Reviewed the Code of Conduct for Members, which was about to be 
adopted by the Standards Committee 

• Development of the use of systems e.g. Rebus, Agresso and Modern.Gov 

4



• A total of £0.5M saved from the budget, although some vacancies had to 
be held in order to achieve this; 

• A significant reduction in sickness, which was low compared with other 
councils (Bracknell Forest were in the top 20%), and also when compared 
with industry; 

• An increase in the number of staff who had reported themselves as 
disabled. 

The Head of Performance and Scrutiny presented the QOR in respect of the Chief 
Executive’s Office for the fourth quarter of 2006/07.  In addition to the matters 
reported by the Director of Corporate Services, the work of the Chief Executive’s 
Office had included: 

• The Councils first Local Area Agreement (LAA) with central government 
was signed in March 2007; 

• The 2006 CPA scorecard was published in February 2007.  Work was 
taking place in preparation for the CPA in October 2007; 

• The draft Annual Report had been through CMT, and would now go to the  
Executive and be finalised by the end of June 2007.  A one page summary 
for residents would also be produced; 

• The staff survey was being run externally, and the results would be 
published when they became available; 

Councillor Mrs Ryder was concerned that the centre of Bracknell would become a 
ghost town before the Town Centre Regeneration took place, and would like to know 
what had been put in place to sustain the commercial being of the town centre.  The 
Head of Performance and Scrutiny undertook to look into this and provide an answer 
for Councillor Mrs Ryder. 

12. Executive Forward Plan  

The Executive Forward Plan for items of a corporate nature was noted. 

During discussion, the following points were raised: 

• Overview & Scrutiny Commission coverage in 2007/08 might include the 
housing stock transfer; 

• Each Panel would determine its own work programme; 

• With the Community Safety Team now being within the Chief Executive’s 
Office, Community Safety would now come under the Crime and Disorder 
Reduction Partnership, and fall within the remit of the Overview & Scrutiny 
Commission, and a Crime and Disorder Committee should be set up 
under the auspices of the Commission.  The Community Safety Manager 
would be invited to the July meeting of the Commission to give an update; 

• Supporting People and Adult Services would come under the Adult Social 
Care and Housing Overview and Scrutiny Panel; 

• Officers were asked to establish whether a written response had been 
received from the Executive to the Trees Policy report. 

13. Past Activities and Indicative Work Programme  

The Executive Members (Councillors McCracken, Barnard and Ward) who had 
received the reports raised by the Overview and Scrutiny Panels had been written to, 
and there would be a report on this at the next meeting of the Commission. 

5



RESOLVED that: 

i) The activities of the Commission for the last three years be noted; and 
ii) The indicative overview and scrutiny work programme for 2007/08 

attached at Appendix 1 of the report be approved, with the caveat that it 
was not a definitive list. 

14. Panel Updates  

Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Councillor Leake reported that the work being carried out by the Health Strategy 
Working Party had been interrupted by the local elections, but would now be 
resumed. 

There were concerns with the General Practitioner out of hours service, which would 
be taken up with the  PCT. 

The PCT budget would be scrutinised more rigorously, and the implications of 
Community Strategy on health provision in Bracknell Forest looked at.  A problem 
would be the resources available to tackle these. 

Adult Social Care and Housing Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Councillor Browne informed the Commission that topics brought forward brought 
forward from the previous year would be looked at in the coming year. 

Lifelong Learning and Children’s Service Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Members were advised by Councillor Mrs Birch that the Panel was up to date with its 
work programme, and would start a new forward plan.  Some monitoring would take 
place to see how reports were compiled. 

Environment and Leisure Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Councillor Finnie informed the Commission that the first meeting of the Panel had 
taken place, and a forward plan had been discussed.  A working group had been 
formed to shortlist the review topics. 

Joint East Berkshire Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Councillor Leake updated the Commission on the work of the Joint East Berkshire 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee, who were due to meet next on 21 June. 

Working Group on Healthcare Funding

The Commission were informed by Councillor Edger that copies of the Health 
Funding Review had been passed to Members, and comments received back.  A 
meeting had been held with Glyn Jones (Assistant Director, Community Care), and 
the points raised had been noted.  They had been sent to the consultant (Keith Ford) 
who had helped on the review to check that the conclusions and recommendations 
were realistic.  They would be finalised and sent to the Executive and Chief Executive 
of Berkshire East PCT, and the draft report would come to this Commission in July 
2007 for approval. 

6



The Commission were informed that an (SEEMP) Elected Member Scrutiny Network 
meeting would be taking place on 26 June 2007 at Elmbridge Borough Council in 
Esher, and members of the Commission who would like to attend should contact the 
Head of Performance & Scrutiny. 

CHAIRMAN 

7



This page is intentionally left blank

8



14 June, 2007 

Councillor R C Edger OBE  
3 Turner Place 
College Town 
Sandhurst
Berkshire
GU47 0FW 

Dear Bob, 

RESPONSE TO A REPORT BY A WORKING GROUP OF THE LIFELONG 
LEARNING AND CHILDREN’S SERVICES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 

Review of Library Provision in Bracknell Forest 

I am writing with my response to this report.  Its recommendations have been 
considered carefully by the Library and Departmental Management Teams and with 
me.  I think that the most direct way to respond is by reference to each of the 
observations or conclusions and to the recommendations.  I shall address each of 
them in turn.  The sections in italics are quotations from the report and use its 
numbering. 

Observations / Conclusions 

4.1 From its investigations, the Working Group concludes that libraries are 
hubs of their communities, as evidenced in the surveys undertaken as 
part of the review, and offer valued meeting places for all, particularly the 
elderly and isolated. 

This is acknowledged, although Libraries are not resourced to be social 
centres.

4.2 Members feel that the Library and Information service is proactive 
pursuing strategies for book selection and display, library layout, 
signage, promotional events and ICT. 

Recent examples include a reading groups seminar led by local 
librarians and held in March 2007. Over 50 people came together to 
share their enjoyment of reading.  A regular pattern of author visits 
takes place from Susanna Gretz for children to Lionel Shriver for adults.
Reminiscence sessions have been introduced in Ascot Heath and 
Crowthorne Libraries. 

All events are advertised on library plasma screens in Bracknell and 
Crowthorne Libraries and the Council’s public website, thereby utilising 
ICT to promote events. 

Agenda Item 5

9



4.3 Library location and layout is thought to be crucial to vibrancy as, despite 
its appeal, the Ascot Durning Library appears under utilised owing to its 
remote siting and limited signage. 

This confirms the experience of the service. 

4.4 Accessibility is an important library feature and consideration should be 
given to physical access, parking and opening hours. 

Feasibility studies have been undertaken to provide lift access in the 
current Bracknell library.  The estimated cost of a suitable lift is £60,000.
This would be difficult to justify in the current budget situation and lifetime 
of the current library.  A lift will be provided in the new library in the Civic 
Hub.  Extending opening hours would carry further revenue costs not 
provided for within the Library budget. 

4.5 Volunteers are a valued commodity assisting with the home library 
service and use of further volunteers could be made especially where 
funding constraints limit services. 

The Library Service values highly the contribution of our volunteers but it 
is not without a cost.  It should be noted that volunteers require 
management and support through training, communication and for health 
and safety considerations. 

4.6 As reading groups and book clubs appear popular and over subscribed 
they could be extended for all age groups in libraries across the borough. 

The range of existing reading groups already covers primary school 
children to those living in residential accommodation.  Recently a 
librarian has become involved in providing storytelling and sharing books 
with children who attend the breakfast club in Crown Wood Primary as 
part of the extended services developments. 

4.7 There is a valuable link between libraries and education and the Working 
Group would like to see this extended, e.g. via ICT learning suites as 
approximately 20% of adult are said to have limited literacy skills.  This 
has been commenced with Learn Direct. 

The Library Service would be pleased to expand these facilities as soon 
as resources allow. 

4.8 A coffee shop and toilets would be a welcome addition to a library. 

These facilities will be accessible in the new Civic Hub. 

4.9 It appears that some users are unaware that they can return loan 
material to any library in the Borough as the courier service will return 
items to the library of origin.  Wider promotion of this facility would be 
beneficial.

Promotion of this facility will continue. 

10



4.10 Themed display of books, e.g. a best sellers section, facilitates 
borrowers’ selection. 

4.11 Users have an expectation of a 24/7 service and means of increasing 
opening hours and accessibility would be welcomed.  This may include 
an on-line reference facility of reference texts such as the Encyclopedia 
Britannica available to users at home 24/7, a self-issue loan scheme, 
electronic ordering of loan items for home delivery at a charge, an out-of-
hours return ‘drop box’ or introduction of e-books. 

An online reference facility is already available throughout the library 
service regarding access to the Oxford English Dictionary and other 
reference works, including encyclopaedias. 

4.12 The ‘Bookstart’ project, which introduces young children to reading, is 
important and should be continued.

The “Bookstart” project is continuing with financial support from Early 
Years funding.

4.13 As much demand for library services is from those learning English as a 
second language, the provision of translation information would assist. 

The Library Service has recognised the needs of those for whom English 
is a second language.  It has purchased stock which includes books in 
foreign languages and has copies of information booklets for families 
new to Bracknell Forest in some foreign languages.  Further expansion 
of translation services is dependent on resources. 

4.14 Users appear to be more satisfied with the re-organised mobile library 
service which is more personalised than that previously provided.

This confirms that the objectives for redesigning the service are being 
achieved.

4.15 Modernisation and increased use of ICT is necessary for libraries to 
flourish in the 21st century where their role is seen to be moving towards 
promoting reading and learning, enabling access to digital skills and 
services and encouraging community cohesion and civic values. 

The library service in Bracknell Forest is making good progress in modernisation 
and provision of ICT facilities, with enhanced ICT in two new libraries since 1997 
and a new library in Bracknell as part of the Civic Hub to look forward to.  It already 
meets the Public Library Standard in its provision for ICT. 

Recommendations

General Recommendations

5.1 As teenagers represent the lowest library user age group (2% of 
borrowers), further work to provide appropriate stock and surroundings 

11



should be undertaken to encourage them to make greater use of libraries 
and develop reading habits. 

This is part of the Libraries strategy and it takes account of the 
access that this age group have to school libraries and other 
sources of information.  Our most recent data shows an increase in 
usage by this group from 2% to 5%. 

5.2 Internal and external library signage should be reviewed and updated 
where necessary. 

This work is ongoing. 

5.3 The provision of further ICT learning suites in libraries should be pursued 
if possible to provide learning opportunities for adults with limited literacy 
skills in a non-threatening environment in conjunction with adult 
education co-ordinators. 

This is largely prevented by lack of capital resources, but is part of 
the planning for the new Civic Hub. 

5.4 Consideration should be given to introducing an on-line system enabling 
library users to access reference materials at all times from their homes 
utilising their library card and a pin number. 

See 4.11 above – such facilities are already available across all 
libraries.

5.5 The Library and Information Service could make greater use of 
volunteers to enhance and expand its services, to engage residents in 
promoting the libraries as a community place. 

See 4.5 above – volunteers are encouraged in so far as adequate 
supervision can be arranged.

Recommendations Concerning the Civic Hub Library

The new civic hub library should: 

5.6 be flexible to facilitate development and adaptation to meet future needs; 

5.7 have an exhibition style to facilitate public art, heritage collections and 
other displays as an entrance feature and be light and airy with planting; 

5.8 feature flexible low level display shelving and versatile furniture which 
can be re-arranged to accommodate displays/events etc; 

5.9 locate the children’s area on the ground floor to facilitate access; 

5.10 include an ICT learning suite, preferably in a separate room with links to 
the library, preferably featuring a Learn Direct outreach centre; 

12



5.11 utilise electronic signage and boards both within and outside; 

5.12 offer a ‘quick pick and browse’ self-issue loan scheme to speed 
borrowing and free staff for other duties and extended opening; and 

5.13 Include a loan material ‘drop off’ facility to enable return of borrowed 
items outside opening hours. 

These comments will be taken into account in designing the new 
central library. 

 I can assure you that all of these points have or will be taken into account in 
future planning, in so far as resources allow. 

Yours sincerely, 

Councillor Alan Ward 
Executive Member for Education & Libraries 

13



14

This page is intentionally left blank



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
19 JULY 9007 

 
EXTRACTS FROM THE REPORT OF THE REVIEW OF LIBRARIES 

 
 

1. Observations / Conclusions 

 
 
4.1 From its investigations, the Working Group concludes that libraries are hubs of 

their communities, as evidenced in the surveys undertaken as part of the 
review, and offer valued meeting places for all, particularly the elderly and 
isolated. 
 

4.2 Members feel that the Library and Information service is proactive pursuing 
strategies for book selection and display, library layout, signage, promotional 
events and ICT. 
 

4.3 Library location and layout is thought to be crucial to vibrancy as, despite its 
appeal, the Ascot Durning Library appears under utilised owing to its remote 
siting and limited signage. 
 

4.4 Accessibility is an important library feature and consideration should be given to 
physical access, parking and opening hours. 
 

4.5 Volunteers are a valued commodity assisting with the home library service and 
use of further volunteers could be made especially where funding constraints 
limit services. 
 

4.6 As reading groups and book clubs appear popular and over subscribed they 
could be extended for all age groups in libraries across the borough. 
 

4.7 There is a valuable link between libraries and education and the Working Group 
would like to see this extended, e.g. via ICT learning suites as approximately 
20% of adult are said to have limited literacy skills.  This has been commenced 
with Learn Direct. 
 

4.8 A coffee shop and toilets would be a welcome addition to a library. 
 

4.9 It appears that some users are unaware that they can return loan material to 
any library in the Borough as the courier service will return items to the library of 
origin.  Wider promotion of this facility would be beneficial. 
 

4.10 Themed display of books, e.g. a best sellers section, facilitates borrowers’ 
selection. 
 

4.11 Users have an expectation of a 24/7 service and means of increasing opening 
hours and accessibility would be welcomed.  This may include an on-line 
reference facility of reference texts such as the Encyclopedia Britannica 
available to users at home 24/7, a self-issue loan scheme, electronic ordering of 
loan items for home delivery at a charge, an out-of-hours return ‘drop box’ or 
introduction of e-books. 
 

4.12 The ‘Bookstart’ project, which introduces young children to reading, is important 
and should be continued. 

15



 
4.13 As much demand for library services is from those learning English as a second 

language, the provision of translation information would assist. 
 

4.14 Users appear to be more satisfied with the re-organised mobile library service 
which is more personalised than that previously provided. 
 

4.15 Modernisation and increased use of ICT is necessary for libraries to flourish in 
the 21st century where their role is seen to be moving towards promoting 
reading and learning, enabling access to digital skills and services and 
encouraging community cohesion and civic values. 
 

 
 

16



 

2. Recommendations 

 
 
General Recommendations 
 
5.1 As teenagers represent the lowest library user age group (2% of borrowers), 

further work to provide appropriate stock and surroundings should be 
undertaken to encourage them to make greater use of libraries and develop 
reading habits. 

 
5.2 Internal and external library signage should be reviewed and updated where 

necessary. 
 

5.3 The provision of further ICT learning suites in libraries should be pursued if 
possible to provide learning opportunities for adults with limited literacy skills in 
a non-threatening environment in conjunction with adult education co-
ordinators. 
 

5.4 Consideration should be given to introducing an on-line system enabling library 
users to access reference materials at all times from their homes utilising their 
library card and a pin number. 
 

5.5 The Library and Information Service could make greater use of volunteers to 
enhance and expand its services, to engage residents in promoting the libraries 
as a community place. 

 
 
Recommendations Concerning the Civic Hub Library 
 
The new civic hub library should: 
 
5.6 be flexible to facilitate development and adaptation to meet future needs; 

 
5.7 have an exhibition style to facilitate public art, heritage collections and other 

displays as an entrance feature and be light and airy with planting; 
 

5.8 feature flexible low level display shelving and versatile furniture which can be 
re-arranged to accommodate displays/events etc; 
 

5.9 locate the children’s area on the ground floor to facilitate access; 
 

5.10 include an ICT learning suite, preferably in a separate room with links to the 
library, preferably featuring a Learn Direct outreach centre; 
 

5.11 utilise electronic signage and boards both within and outside; 
 

5.12 offer a ‘quick pick and browse’ self-issue loan scheme to speed borrowing and 
free staff for other duties and extended opening; and 
 

5.13 Include a loan material ‘drop off’ facility to enable return of borrowed items 
outside opening hours. 
 

 

17



18

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
GB/DK 
13 June, 2007 
 
 
Councillor R C Edger, OBE 
3 Turner Place 
College Town  
Sandhurst 
GU47 0FW 
 
 
Dear Cllr Edger 
 
Review of Youth Service Provision in Bracknell Forest 
 
I would like to thank the Lifelong Learning and Scrutiny Committee for the Review of 
Youth Provision forwarded to me by Michael Sargeant on 1 May 2007.  I have now 
had the opportunity to consider the report and to discuss its findings with officers. 
 
I recognise the hard work that has gone into the production of the report and the 
sensitive way in which the issue was addressed.  I welcome the report and its 
findings not least because it represents an excellent example of engagement with 
young people in terms of ascertaining their views. 
 
The ‘good news’ section, section 2 is pleasing: it recognises the qualities that young 
people in the Borough have as well as the commitment of large numbers of adults to 
working alongside them, sometimes as part of their paid employment but frequently 
in a voluntary capacity.  It also demonstrates that there are actually quite a lot of 
activities available for them to get involved in. 
 
The report has obviously unearthed a number of issues which need to be considered. 
I propose to address each in turn: 
 
Encouraging more volunteer opportunities for this age group 
 
This section contains a positive suggestion and a way in which local councils can 
demonstrate an aspect of community leadership.  I have asked officers in the youth 
service to take a lead in seeing how we might bring this about. 
 
Enabling young people to find volunteer opportunities 
 
I am pleased to say that we now have one of the suggested vehicles for doing this. 
The Xpresionz website, launched at the BAFTA awards in March is just the sort of 
website that I believe the report advocates.  Young people are actively engaged in 
the development of Xpresionz with the support of members of the Youth Service. 
This is exactly the kind of use that it can be put to.  I have been assured by officers 
that the Connexions Service is also actively engaged in promoting volunteering 
opportunities and I am aware that there is a tremendous amount that goes on in 
schools. We will look at ways in which schools can be more actively involved in 
promoting a wider range of opportunities. 

Agenda Item 6

19



 
Building the confidence to try volunteering 
 
Agreed.  We need to spread the expertise and experience that we have more widely. 
Many of the programmes that are mentioned already take place in Bracknell Forest 
but I agree that they may not be widespread.  You know that I have a personal 
interest in the Duke of Edinburgh scheme and am particularly pleased with the 
increase in uptake that has occurred this year. 
 
Knowing what is available 
 
The Youth Service has recently completed an audit of ‘things to do and places to go’. 
The intention is that this will be placed on Xpresionz, which will be able to hold the 
information but is currently without an events calendar.  This is under development 
and will be an important addition to the site.  Part of the requirement for developing 
the ‘things to do and places to go’ aspect of the Youth Matters Green Paper is that a 
number of different ways of communicating with young people are developed.  We 
need to have made substantial progress with this by April 2008 and things are 
happening now. 
 
Adult volunteers to support youth volunteering and activities 
 
The suggestions here need consideration.  There are resource implications that flow 
from some of the suggestions that are made.  The Youth Service will always be 
willing to provide advice and there are a number of voluntary organisations that 
provide such support for affiliated groups. 
 
Access costs and transport 
 
Some of the suggestions under this recommendation will be considered as part of the 
‘things to do and places to go’ developments and some of them are already in place. 
I am aware that transport availability and cost remains an issue for many young 
people.  The suggestion in the report about the use of the e+ card is helpful and 
would certainly be a way of addressing the cost of transport.  Availability may prove 
more challenging. 
 
The Town Centre 
 
There is already involvement with the Youth Forum over the development of facilities 
for young people within the new town centre.  There have been a number of 
productive sessions where young people’s views have been raised and there is a lot 
of support for the view that we should be considering the interests of this section of 
our community in terms of what is being planned. 
 
I trust that the above provides the Overview and Scrutiny Commission with an 
indication of where the Youth Service is responding to the issues raised in a helpful 
and thorough report. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 

Councillor Dr G M Barnard 
Executive Member for Children’s Services 

20



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
19 JULY 2007 

 
EXTRACT FROM THE REPORT OF THE REVIEW OF YOUTH PROVISION 

 
 

1. Overcoming the Problems 

 
Encouraging more volunteer opportunities for this age group. 
 
5.1 The Councils should set the example by looking at their own activities and find 

volunteering opportunities for young people in environment, care, events etc.  
They should publicise the need and responsibility of organisations to bring on 
the “next generation” and encourage them to identify opportunities for young 
people to become involved in suitable voluntary organisations.  They can ask 
those they fund and others to do this. 

 
Enabling young people to find volunteer opportunities. 
 
5.2 There are volunteering web-sites for adults and older young people, e.g. 

Millennium Volunteers, Community Service Volunteers etc. but nothing we can 
find for young people in the 13 to 16/17 age group.  Currently those that find 
opportunities do so through friends and family.  The young people’s suggestion 
is that volunteering opportunities should be advertised in school and information 
on a youth web-site would be a good way to publicise opportunities. 

 
Building the confidence to try volunteering. 
 
5.3 For young people who are not encouraged or introduced to volunteering by their 

home and family this encouragement comes from school, church and youth 
service.  The extended schools initiative should be used to introduce young 
people to youth service activities that support Youth Achievement Awards, 
Youth Arts Awards, Duke of Edinburgh programmes and volunteering 
opportunities.  The skills needed to achieve this are available in the Youth 
Service, South Hill Park, voluntary sector and some non-teaching school staff. 
 

Knowing what is available. 
 

5.4 The Working Group looked for a young people’s web-site that identified “things 
to do and places to go” for young people.  There are national sites, pieces of 
information on a variety of local sites, e.g. sports clubs’ sites, some links 
through the clubs information on the Council web-site but it appears that there 
is no site that brings together things for young people to do. 
 

5.5 It is suggested that the Council promotes a web-site that highlights things to do 
for young people that will be easily found.  It should range, as our audit did over 
all sectors, so maybe commercial sector advertising or sponsorship could 
support this activity. 
 

Adult volunteers to support youth volunteering and activities. 
 

5.6 Publicity, recruitment and training are things to which the Council could 
contribute.  The training, support and Criminal Record Bureau checks are an 
aspect of this for all voluntary youth workers, not just those connected with the 
Youth Service.  It could be a vehicle for supporting the development of “youth 

21



places” in existing organisations and overcoming concerns about bringing in 
younger members and child protection requirements.  The Council could also 
facilitate insurance information and arrangements. 
 
Access costs & transport. 
 

5.7 We noted that one access obstacle is paying a sizeable bill up-front; would it be 
feasible to pay in several instalments rather than requiring the full cost at the 
outset?  The Council could be promoting free taster sessions, both at its own 
facilities and with other providers.  The Working Group thinks that the net cost 
of providing membership of Bracknell Forest Borough Council facilities for all 
children resident in the Borough for free or for a nominal fee may not be great.  
(Preliminary investigation suggests that an initial loss of income in the order of 
£55k may result but this could possibly be off set by increased usage and 
associated income generation.)  If this could be introduced it would mean that 
all young people would have access at member prices not just those whose 
parents purchase membership for them. 

 
5.8 It is difficult to suggest solutions to the cost and availability of transport but if the 

e+ card is developed for transport applications it could open a way to reduced 
fares for young people up to age 16 or in full-time education. 
 
The town centre. 
 

5.9 The young people’s comments are a timely reminder that as the new town 
centre is being developed consideration is given to how this age group will have 
a positive place in it. 
 
- “There is nothing in the town centre; will the new town centre have things 

for us?” 
 
- “Could there be a no-alcohol club for young people?  Or a youth café?” 

 
The Working Group has not had time to take this further but recommend that 
the Council’s Town Centre regeneration team seek the views of the Youth 
Forum on what would be appropriate and work to deliver facilities for young 
people in the new town centre. 
 
Much of the town centre is not being replaced and the opportunity to deliver 
something sooner should be taken if it arises. 
 
 

22



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
 
EXECUTIVE WORK PROGRAMME: Chief Executive’s/Corporate Services 
 

REFERENCE I007226 

 

TITLE: ICT Strategy 2007-2012 

PURPOSE OF DECISION: To approve the Council's ICT Strategy for the next 5 years.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: To be confirmed. 

WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive 

PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: None.  

METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  Not applicable.  

DATE OF DECISION: 24 Jul 2007 

 
 

REFERENCE I006920 

 

TITLE: Sale of part of land known as Old Manor Car Park 

PURPOSE OF DECISION: To sell the Old Manor car park to resolve a compulsory purchase 
order issue affecting the town centre regeneration.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: To be confirmed. 

WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive 

PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: None. 

METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  None. 

DATE OF DECISION: 24 Jul 2007 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7

23



REFERENCE I006993 

 

TITLE: Developing the Neighbourhood Consultation Process 

PURPOSE OF DECISION: Bracknell Forest Partnership (with Thames Valley Police) 
adopted a jointly resourced Community Engagement Strategy, one element of which was 
supporting the neighbourhood consultation process.  In March 2007 a working group was 
set up to consider the efficiency of Neighbourhood Foorums and developments in the 
neighbourhood consultation process in the light of advances in Neighbourhood Policing and 
community expectations.  This report sets out the findings of the working group and 
recommends a way to proceed.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Within existing budget. 

WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive 

PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: Police, the Voluntary Sector, Neighbourhood 
Action Group members, the Youth Services Manager, Children's Services, Community 
Development Officer and members of the Community Cohesion Working Group.  

METHOD OF CONSULTATION:   

DATE OF DECISION: 24 Jul 2007 

 
 

REFERENCE I006059 

 

TITLE: Award of framework agreements for transport services 

PURPOSE OF DECISION: Home to school and ad hoc transport services.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None - covered by existing budgets. 

WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive 

PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: Parents / guardians  

METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  Consultations have been held with parents.  

DATE OF DECISION: 24 Jul 2007 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

24



REFERENCE I005759 

 

TITLE: Commitment Budget 2008/09-2010/11 

PURPOSE OF DECISION: To approve changes to the commitment budget. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Within existing budget. 

WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive 

PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: None. 

METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  None. 

DATE OF DECISION: 24 Jul 2007 

 
 

REFERENCE I006996 

 

TITLE: Draft Health & Wellbeing Strategy 

PURPOSE OF DECISION: The Borough Council's activities connect with the health 
economy across many fronts, directly and indirectly and this strategy seeks to set out the 
Council's priorities.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None. 

WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive 

PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: All Bracknell Forest Partnership theme 
partnerships.  
Public Consultation. 
Preliminary consultation with the PCT, including the DIrector of Public Health.  

METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  Various methods including meetings invitations to 
comment on the draft strategy. 

DATE OF DECISION: 18 Sep 2007 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25



REFERENCE I006639 

 

TITLE: Community Cohesion Strategy 2007-2010 

PURPOSE OF DECISION: To agree the next three years' Community Cohesion Strategy.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Within existing budget. 

WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive 

PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: Voluntary sector groups, officers, service 
departments, BF1500, Police, Fire, Berkshire East PCT and the Bracknell Forest 
Partnership. 

METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  Meetings with interested parties  
Presentation  
Consultation Document  

DATE OF DECISION: 18 Sep 2007 

 
 

REFERENCE I006637 

 

TITLE: Gender Equality Scheme 2007-2010 

PURPOSE OF DECISION: To agree the final Gender Equality Scheme and Action Plan 
following consultation. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Within existing budget. 

WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive 

PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: Voluntary sector groups, officers, service 
departments, BF1500, Police, Fire, Berkshire East PCT and Bracknell Forest Partnership.  

METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  Meetings with interested parties  
Presentation  
Questionnaires  

DATE OF DECISION: 23 Oct 2007 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

26



REFERENCE I005761 

 

TITLE: Draft Budget Proposals 2008/09 

PURPOSE OF DECISION: To agree draft budget proposals for consultation.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: To be determined. 

WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive 

PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: Council Tax payers and business rate payers.  

METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  To be determined.  

DATE OF DECISION: 18 Dec 2007 

 
 

REFERENCE I005767 

 

TITLE: Draft General Fund Revenue Budget 2008/09 

PURPOSE OF DECISION: To agree draft budget proposals for consultation.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: To be determined. 

WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive 

PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: Council tax payers and business rate payers.  

METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  To be determined.  

DATE OF DECISION: 18 Dec 2007 

 
 

REFERENCE I005763 

 

TITLE: Draft Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 2008/09 

PURPOSE OF DECISION: To agree draft budget proposals for consultation. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: To be determined. 

WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive 

PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: Council tax payers and business rate payers.  

METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  To be determined.  

DATE OF DECISION: 18 Dec 2007 

 
 

27



 

REFERENCE I005765 

 

TITLE: Draft Capital Programme 2008/09 - 2010/11 

PURPOSE OF DECISION: To agree draft budget proposals for consultation. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: To be determined. 

WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive 

PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: Council tax payers and business rate payers. 

METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  To be determined.  

DATE OF DECISION: 18 Dec 2007 

 
 

REFERENCE I005776 

 

TITLE: General Fund Revenue Budget 2008/09 

PURPOSE OF DECISION: To approve the General Fund Revenue budget 2008/09 for 
submission to Council.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: To be determined. 

WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive 

PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: Council tax payers and business rate payers.  

METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  Widespread consultation with stakeholders via meetings 
and the Council's website. 

DATE OF DECISION: 12 Feb 2008 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

28



REFERENCE I005774 

 

TITLE: Capital Programme 2008/09-2010/11 

PURPOSE OF DECISION: To approve the capital programme 2008/09 to 2010/11 for 
submission to Council. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: To be determined. 

WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive 

PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: Council tax payers and business rate payers.  

METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  Widespread consultation with stakeholders via meetings 
and the Council's website.  

DATE OF DECISION: 12 Feb 2008 

 
 

REFERENCE I005772 

 

TITLE: Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 2008/09 

PURPOSE OF DECISION: To approve the Housing Revenue Account 2008/09 for 
submission to Council. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: To be determined. 

WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive 

PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: Council Tenants.  

METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  To be determined.  

DATE OF DECISION: 12 Feb 2008 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

29



REFERENCE I005770 

 

TITLE: Budget Proposals 2008/09 

PURPOSE OF DECISION: To recommend to Council General Fund, HRA and Capital 
Budgets for 2008/09.  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: To be determined. 

WHO WILL TAKE DECISION: Executive 

PRINCIPAL GROUPS TO BE CONSULTED: Council tax payers and business rate payers.  

METHOD OF CONSULTATION:  Widespread consultation with stakeholders via meetings 
and the Council website.  

DATE OF DECISION: 12 Feb 2008 

 
 

30



P
a
g

e
 1

 
  

A
N

N
E

X
 A

 
       

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 

 

F
o

r 
 

4
th

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
0

0
6
/0

7
 

     

T
im

o
th

y
 W

h
e
a
d

o
n

 
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

Agenda Item 8

31



P
a
g

e
 2

 
 

 
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

 
  1
 

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

: 
 1
.1

 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

a
n
 o

v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 o

n
 k

e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

o
u
rt

h
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

o
f 

 2
0
0
6
/7

 (
ie

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

- 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
).

 T
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 c
o
m

p
le

m
e
n
ts

 t
h
e
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 b

y
 e

a
c
h

 D
ir
e
c
to

r,
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
d
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
ly

 t
o
 a

ll 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

. 
T

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 R
e
p
o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t

h
e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 w

it
h
 a

 h
ig

h
 l

e
v
e
l 

s
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

k
e
y
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

a
re

a
s
 w

h
e
re

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
, 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 r

e
m

e
d
ia

l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 t

a
k
in

g
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
ls

o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
ts

 t
h
e
 

w
o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 B

ra
c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
g

iv
e
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 
  2
 

K
e

y
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

ts
: 

 2
.1

 
O

v
e
ra

ll,
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 g

o
o
d
 t
h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r.

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

’ 
a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
s
 d

ra
w

n
 t
o
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r:
 

 2
.2

 
C

lim
a
te

 C
h
a
n
g

e
 

 
 

 
T

h
e
 N

o
tt

in
g

h
a
m

 D
e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n
 o

n
 C

lim
a
te

 C
h
a
n
g
e
 w

a
s
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 o

n
 B

ra
c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 

B
o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

b
y
 t

h
e
 L

e
a
d
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 o

n
 2

7
th
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
0
7
. 

T
h
e
 D

e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n
 a

c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 i
s
 o

c
c
u
rr

in
g
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
s
 

to
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 p

la
n
s
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

a
u
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
, 

a
c
c
o
rd

in
g

 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 

tw
o
 y

e
a
rs

. 
T

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 L

e
is

u
re

 h
a
s
 c

o
n
v
e
n
e
d
 a

n
 i
n
te

r-
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

C
lim

a
te

 C
h
a
n
g

e
 W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p
 

to
 c

a
rr

y
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 a
n
d
 h

a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t’
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
 f

o
r 

2
0
0
7
/0

8
 t

o
 w

ri
te

 a
n
d
 p

u
b
lis

h
 a

n
 e

n
e

rg
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
y 

fo
r 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 a

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 w

id
e
 a

u
d
it
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 o

f 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 b
e
g

in
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 

a
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

 2
.3

 
T

h
e
 A

lt
e
rn

a
te

 B
in

 C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

 
 

 
T

h
e
 A

lt
e
rn

a
te

 B
in

 C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
s
 n

o
w

 w
e
ll 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 k

e
rb

s
id

e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

re
 n

o
w

 a
ro

u
n
d
 7

5
%

. 

32



P
a
g

e
 3

 
  2
.4

 
T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

  
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 B

ra
c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 

B
o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 B

ra
c
k
n
e
ll 

R
e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 r

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 r

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

ra
c
k
n
e
ll 

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
. 

T
h
e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
a
s
 s

ig
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 e

x
c
h
a
n
g

e
d
 i

n
 A

p
ri
l 

th
is

 
y
e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
m

ile
s
to

n
e
 i

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

m
b
it
io

n
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 t

o
w

n
 f

it
 f

o
r 

th
e
 2

1
s
t  C

e
n
tu

ry
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 p
e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
in

te
n
s
iv

e
 w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

ra
c
k
n
e
ll 

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
. 

  2
.6

 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

c
ti
o
n
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 e

m
b
e
d
 a

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

c
u
lt
u
re

, 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

re
 s

h
o
w

in
g

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t,
 w

it
h
 

e
le

v
e
n
 i
n
d

ic
a
to

rs
, 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 a

d
u
lt
s
 w

it
h
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
n

d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 h

e
lp

e
d
 t

o
 l
iv

e
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
, 

d
ir
e
c
t 

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 e

th
n
ic

it
y
 o

f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 a

 w
h
o
le

 b
a

n
d
 r

a
ti
n
g

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 i

m
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 f

o
r 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 I
n
s
p
e
c
to

ra
te

 a
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 o
v
e
ra

ll 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 a
d
u
lt
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

  2
.7

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

to
c
k
 T

ra
n
s
fe

r 
 

T
e
n
a
n
ts

 v
o
te

d
 i
n
 f

a
v
o
u
r 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 t

o
 a

 n
e
w

 l
o
c
a
l 
la

n
d
lo

rd
 c

a
lle

d
 B

ra
c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 

H
o
m

e
s
. 

T
h
e
 f

o
u
r 

w
e
e
k
 p

o
s
ta

l 
b
a
llo

t 
c
lo

s
e
d
 1

0
 A

p
ri
l 
w

it
h
 7

6
%

 v
o
ti
n
g

 i
n
 f

a
v
o
u
r 

o
f 

th
e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r.
 J

u
s
t 

o
v
e
r 

7
0
%

 o
f 

te
n
a
n
ts

 v
o
te

d
. 

B
ra

c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 
is

 
th

e
 
n
e
w

, 
lo

c
a
l 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 
a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 
s
e
t 

u
p
 
w

it
h
 
th

e
 
h
e
lp

 
o
f 

th
e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il.

 
It
 
p
la

n
s
 
to

 
m

a
k
e
 
£
6
1
 
m

ill
io

n
 
w

o
rt

h
 
o
f 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 h

o
m

e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 
fi
v
e
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 B

ra
c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 t
e
n
a
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 s

a
id

 t
h
e
y
 w

a
n
t.
  

  2
.8

 
A

n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g

 
 In

 M
a
rc

h
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

e
v
e
r 

c
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
, 

‘S
p
ri
n
g

 i
n
to

 A
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 B

u
lly

in
g

’,
 d

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 t

o
 c

o
m

b
a
t 

b
u
lly

in
g

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
a
s
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 B

ra
c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t.
 

T
h
e
 e

v
e
n
t 
w

e
lc

o
m

e
d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
th

e
 y

o
u
th

 s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

p
a
re

n
ts

, 
y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 m

a
n
y
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

 w
h
o
 c

o
m

e
 i
n
to

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
b
le

m
 e

v
e
ry

 d
a
y
. 

 
 

33



P
a
g

e
 4

 
  

 D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ta

l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

ig
h
lig

h
ts

: 
 

2
.1

1
 

E
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 S

A
P

 r
a
ti
n
g

 (
th

e
rm

a
l 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
) 

fo
r 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
w

n
e
d
 h

o
m

e
s
 

M
e
t 

th
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

o
w

n
e
d
 h

o
m

e
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

n
 t

im
e
 a

n
d
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

te
n
a
n
t 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

re
p
a
ir
s
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
m

in
im

is
in

g
 n

e
t 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 i
n
 L

e
is

u
re

 
E

x
c
e
e
d
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 v
is

it
in

g
 s

p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 l
e
is

u
re

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

E
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
fo

o
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 f
o
o
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 

E
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
th

re
e
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 E

a
rl
y
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 

E
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 h
e
lp

e
d
 t

o
 l
iv

e
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
 

E
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
o
ld

e
r 

c
lie

n
ts

 w
h
o
s
e
 t

im
e
 f

ro
m

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 

to
 s

ta
rt

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

w
a
s
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 o

r 
e
q

u
a
l 
to

 t
h
e
 s

e
t 
ti
m

e
 l
im

it
. 

M
e
t 

th
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 a

n
d
 n

o
n
-d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 r

a
te

s
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
  

E
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 
p
o
in

t 
o
f 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 

E
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 a

ll 
th

re
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

e
t 
ti
m

e
 l
im

it
s
 

M
e
t 

th
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
e
a
rc

h
e
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

w
it
h
in

 1
0
 d

a
y
s
 

 
 3
 

A
re

a
s
 f

o
r 

C
o

n
c
e
rn

: 
 T

h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 b

u
d
g

e
t 

w
a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 M

a
rc

h
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 i
ts

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
ra

is
in

g
 t

h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 o

f 
a
ll 

u
n
it
a
ry

 a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

A
t 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e
, 

th
e
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 v

o
te

 o
n
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
h
a
s
 e

a
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
re

s
s
u
re

s
 f

a
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

in
g

 t
h
re

e
 y

e
a
rs

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

w
h
ils

t 
th

e
 b

u
d
g

e
t 

g
a
p
 h

a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
, 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 w

ill
 r

e
m

a
in

, 
n
o
t 

le
a
s
t 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

y
e
a
r’
s
 s

p
e
n
d
in

g
 a

u
g
m

e
n
te

d
 b

y
 £

2
.8

m
 o

f 
b
a
la

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 £

0
.7

7
5
m

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 L

A
B

G
I 

w
h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e
 r

e
c
o
v
e
re

d
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
. 

C
o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
tl
y
 i

t 
is

 e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 

th
a
t 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 p

la
n
s
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 i

n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 a

n
d
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 a

re
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

in
g

 6
 

m
o
n
th

s
. 

A
s
 a

 f
ir
s
t 

s
te

p
 P

ri
c
e
 W

a
te

rh
o
u
s
e
 C

o
o
p
e
rs

 w
e
re

 a
s
k
e
d
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

. 
A

 f
u
ll 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 

b
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 b

u
d
g

e
t 
in

to
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r.

 
 

4
 

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

B
ra

c
k
n

e
ll
 F

o
re

s
t 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
: 

4
.1

 
T

h
e
 B

ra
c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 h
a
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
A

 B
F

P
 H

a
n
d
b
o
o
k
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

o
 a

c
t 
a
s
 a

n
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 n

e
w

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 a

s
 a

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
o
l 
fo

r 
p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

 

34



P
a
g

e
 5

 
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
T

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t

h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 L

P
S

A
2
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
n
d
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 a

n
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
, 
s
o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
a
u
d
it
 t
o
 a

c
t 

a
s
 t
h
e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 b

a
s
e
 f

o
r 

w
o
rk

 o
n
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t.
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

p
o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 T

V
 f
o
r 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 4
.2

 
W

o
rk

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 t
h
e
m

e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

re
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t
h
e
 A

n
n
e
x
 A

 t
o
 t
h
is

 R
e
p
o
rt

. 
 

 
 5
 

C
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
: 

 5
.1

 
 T

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
ic

tu
re

 o
f 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i

s
 v

e
ry

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 o

n
. 

P
la

in
ly

, 
w

o
rk

 
re

m
a
in

s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

o
m

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

a
s
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 a

b
o
v
e
, 

b
u
t 

th
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

d
e
tr

a
c
t 

fr
o
m

 w
h
a
t 

is
 e

v
id

e
n
tl
y
 a

 s
o
u
n
d
, 

ro
b
u
s
t 

tr
a
c
k
 r

e
c
o
rd

 o
f 

q
u
a
lit

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 t
o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

. 
F

u
ll 

d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 w

h
o
le

 o
f 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 w

ill
 b

e
 

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
. 

 
T

im
o
th

y
 W

h
e
a
d
o
n
 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
0
7
 

35



P
a
g

e
 6

 
 

•
 

H
ig

h
li

g
h

t 
R

e
p

o
rt

 
A

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

s
 s

h
o

w
n

 i
n

 t
h

is
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 r
e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 a

s
 f

o
ll

o
w

s
: 

 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

N
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

* 

n
/a

 

G
o
o
d
/ 
L
o
w

 
ri
s
k
 

�
 

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
/ 

M
e
d

iu
m

 R
is

k
 

�
 

P
o
o
r/

 H
ig

h
 

R
is

k
 

�
 

T
o
ta

l 

2
 

4
1
 

2
2
 

0
 

6
5
 

* 
F

o
r 

n
e

w
 o

r 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 i
n
d

ic
a

to
rs

 

 
  
  

A
n

n
u

a
l 

in
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

N
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

**
 

n
/a

 

G
o
o
d
/ 
L
o
w

 
ri
s
k
 

�
 

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
/ 

M
e
d

iu
m

 R
is

k
 

�
 

P
o
o
r/

 H
ig

h
 

R
is

k
 

�
 

T
o
ta

l 

6
 

2
2
 

2
2
 

2
 

5
2
 

 
**

 B
y
 t

h
e

ir
 v

e
ry

 n
a

tu
re

 d
a

ta
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

 f
o

r 
e

a
c
h

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
e

a
c
h

 q
u
a

rt
e

r.

36



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 7

 
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 O

V
E

R
V

IE
W

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
O

R
 4

th
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 2
0

0
5

/0
6

 
P

ro
g

re
s

s
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
o

b
je

c
ti

v
e

s
 

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
K

e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 

M
T

O
 1

: 
T

o
 l
e
a
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
B

ra
c
k
n

e
ll
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 t
o

w
n

 f
it

 f
o

r 
th

e
 2

1
s

t  c
e
n

tu
ry

 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

1
2
0
 

T
o
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
 

th
e
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n

 
fo

r 
th

e
 

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

re
g
e
n

e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 r
e
d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 t

o
w

n
 

c
e
n
tr

e
 [

E
&

L
] 

n
/a

 

(m
e
t)

 

O
u
tl
in

e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

P
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 

g
ra

n
te

d
 D

e
c
. 

2
0
0
6
 

A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
S

e
c
ti
o
n
 1

0
6
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

(n
e

w
) 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 
w

it
h

 
p
la

n
 
fo

r 
th

e
 
n
e

w
 

C
iv

ic
 H

u
b
 l
ib

ra
ry

. 
[E

C
S

&
L

] 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

m
a
d
e
 o

n
 l
ib

ra
ry

 f
it
 o

u
t 

a
n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
c
o
s
ts

 
(N

/A
) 

D
e
ta

ile
d
 l
ib

ra
ry

 
la

y
o
u
ts

 u
n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
. 

 
C

o
s
ti
n
g

s
 f

o
r 

fi
tt

in
g

 o
u
t 
a
n
d
 

ru
n
n
in

g
  

b
e
in

g
 

p
re

p
a
re

d
 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
lie

rs
 f

o
r 

fi
tt

in
g

 o
u
t 
L
ib

ra
ry

 

 

M
T

O
 2

: 
P

ro
m

o
te

 s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 i

n
n

o
v
a
ti

v
e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
0

1
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
a
lid

 
d
is

a
b

le
d

 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 

g
ra

n
t 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
w

a
it
in

g
 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
fo

r 
m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 3

 m
o
n
th

s
 [
E

&
L
] 

0
 

(0
) 

0
 

(0
) 

0
 

N
o
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

n
o
rm

a
lly

 h
a
s
 t

o
 w

a
it
 t

o
 b

e
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 f

o
r 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 a

 
fe

w
 d

a
y
s
 a

ft
e
r 

re
c
e
ip

t.
 

� ���
 

B
V

 
6
3
 

T
h
e
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

S
A

P
 

(S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

) 
ra

ti
n
g

 o
f 

th
e
rm

a
l 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 

o
f 

lo
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 
o
w

n
e
d
 

n
/a

 

6
9
 

(6
5
) 

6
6
 

T
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 

37



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 8

 
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 
d
w

e
lli

n
g

s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

(e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d

 
a
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 v

a
lu

e
 o

u
t 

o
f 

1
2
0
) 

[S
S

&
H

] 

� ���
    

 

B
F

P
I 

 
7
2
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

u
rg

e
n
t 

re
p
a
ir
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

to
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

 
[S

S
&

H
] 

n
/a

 

9
8
.2

7
%

 
(9

8
.7

%
) 

9
8
%

 
 

� ���
    

 

B
V

 
1
8
3
a
 

T
h
e
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

le
n
g

th
 

o
f 

s
ta

y
 

(w
e
e
k
s
) 

in
 

b
e
d
 

&
 

b
re

a
k
fa

s
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 

w
h
ic

h
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

c
h
ild

re
n
 o

r 
a
 p

re
g

n
a
n
t 

w
o
m

a
n
 [

S
S

&
H

] 

n
/a

 

3
.9

6
 w

e
e
k
s
 

 
(5

) 

5
 

T
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 

� ���
    

 

B
V

 
1
8
3
b
 

T
h
e
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 

le
n
g

th
 

o
f 

s
ta

y
 

(w
h
o
le

 
w

e
e
k
s
) 

in
 
h
o
s
te

l 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 

th
a
t 

a
re

 
u
n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
lly

 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

in
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 
n
e
e
d
 

in
 

th
e

 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

[S
S

&
H

] 

n
/a

 

0
 

(0
) 

0
 

N
o
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 

p
la

c
e
d
 i
n
to

 h
o
s
te

l 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

� ���
    

 

B
F

P
I 

0
0
1
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 b

e
d
 &

 
b
re

a
k
fa

s
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 [

S
S

&
H

] 
n
/a

 

8
 

(4
) 

8
 

 

� ���
        

B
V

 
1
8
4
 

a
 

T
h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 

o
f 

B
ra

c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 

d
w

e
lli

n
g

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
n
-d

e
c
e
n
t 

a
t 

th
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

[S
S

&
H

] 
n
/a

 

3
5
.8

%
 

(3
6
%

) 
3
7
%

 
T

h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e
 B

V
P

I 
fi
g

u
re

 
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 

� ���
    

 

B
F

P
I 

0
3
5
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 

in
 

P
ri
v
a
te

 
S

e
c
to

r 
L
e
a
s
in

g
 

(P
S

L
) 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 [
S

S
&

H
] 

n
/a

 

1
0
 

(8
) 

1
7
 

 

� ���
    

B
F

P
I 

 0
3
0
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
 [
S

S
&

H
] 

n
/a

 
2
9
 

(7
3
) 

1
2
0
 

 

38



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 9

 
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 

 � ���
        

B
F

P
I 

0
0
1
 T

e
n
a
n
t 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 [

S
S

&
H

] 
n
/a

 

9
3
%

 
(9

7
.6

6
%

) 
9
7
%

 
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

in
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

�
    

B
V

 
1
8
4
b
 

T
h
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

c
h
a
n
g

e
 

in
 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
n
o
n
-d

e
c
e
n
t 

B
ra

c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 

d
w

e
lli

n
g

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 s

ta
rt

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 

o
f 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

2
3
.2

5
%

 
(1

2
%

) 

1
7
%

 
 

M
T

O
 3

: 
T

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
a
fe

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

� ���
    

 

B
V

 1
2
6
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 b

u
rg

la
ri
e
s
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r,

 p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 L

A
 a

re
a
 [
S

S
&

H
] 

n
/a

 

1
0
.1

 
(9

.9
) 

7
.9

 
T

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
ti
n
g

 o
f 
k
n
o
w

n
 

o
ff

e
n
d
e
rs

 h
a
s
 h

a
d
 s

o
m

e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

 
A

lt
h
o
u
g

h
 t

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
, 
th

e
 r

a
te

 o
f 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 h

a
s
 f

a
lle

n
. 

� ���
    

 

B
V

 1
2
8
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
e
h
ic

le
 c

ri
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r,

 p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 i

n
 t

h
e
 L

A
 a

re
a
 

[S
S

&
H

] 

1
2
.8

 
(1

2
.3

) 
1
1
.3

 
A

 s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

w
o
rk

 h
a
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 

e
d
u
c
a
te

 c
a
r 

u
s
e
rs

 n
o
t 
to

 
le

a
v
e
 v

a
lu

a
b
le

s
 i
n
 c

a
rs

. 
E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

ig
o
ro

u
s
, 

u
s
in

g
 

b
o
th

 c
o
n
v
e
n
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 n

e
w

 
m

e
th

o
d
s
 t

o
 c

a
tc

h
 

o
ff

e
n
d
e
rs

. 

39



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 1

0
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 

n
/
a

n
/
a

n
/
a

n
/
a
    

B
V

 
2
2
5
 T

h
e
 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 
a
n
d
 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 

o
f 

B
ra

c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 v

ic
ti
m

s
 o

f 
d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n
c
e
 

a
n
d

 
o
f 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

to
 

p
re

v
e
n
t 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
n
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

c
h
e
c
k
lis

t 
[S

S
&

H
] 

n
/a

 
(3

6
.4

%
) 

9
0
.9

%
 

 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

in
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

�
 

B
V

P
I 

2
 

(a
) 

T
h
e
 

le
v
e
l 

(i
f 

a
n
y
) 

o
f 

th
e
 

E
q

u
a
lit

y
 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 
fo

r 
L
o
c
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 c
o
n
fo

rm
s
 [
C

E
x
] 

1
 

(2
) 

3
 

N
e

w
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 
o

n
 t

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

h
ic

h
 o

n
 f

ir
s
t 

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
o

w
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 L

e
v
e

l 
1
. 

�
 

B
V

P
I 

2
 

(b
) 

T
h
e
 

d
u
ty

 
to

 
p
ro

m
o
te

 
ra

c
e
 

e
q

u
a
lit

y
 c

h
e
c
k
lis

t 
s
c
o
re

 [
C

E
x
] 

n
/a

 
(6

8
%

) 
1
0
0
%

 
N

e
w

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 
o

n
 t

h
is

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

h
ic

h
 o

n
 f

ir
s
t 

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
o

w
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 

a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 L

e
v
e

l 
1
. 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

3
5
(a

) 
B

y 
w

h
e
n
 

(m
m

, 
y
y
) 

w
ill

 
a
 

fu
ll 

re
v
ie

w
 

o
f 

th
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

s
tr

a
te

g
y 

b
e

 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
?
 [
C

E
x
] 

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

(c
o
m

p
le

te
d
) 

- 
A

 n
e
w

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 

a
b
o
u
t 
to

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
. 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

3
5
 b

) 
If

 s
u
c
h
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 w

a
s
 s

c
h
e
d
u

le
d

 
fo

r 
th

is
 y

e
a
r,

 w
a
s
 i
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

n
 t
im

e
?
 [
C

E
x
] 

Y
e
s
 

(Y
e
s
) 

- 
 

�
 

C
C

0
1
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 f

e
e
l 

th
a
t 

th
e
ir
 l

o
c
a
l 

a
re

a
 i

s
 a

 p
la

c
e
 w

h
e
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 
fr

o
m

 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 

b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 

c
a
n
 

g
e
t 

o
n
 

w
e

ll 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

[C
S

] 
5
4
.1

3
%

 

(N
/A

) 

 

n
/a

 

D
a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 e

v
e
ry

 t
h

re
e
 

y
e
a
rs

. 

T
h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 i
t 

w
a
s
 i
n
 2

0
0
3
 (

5
1
.4

%
).

  
T

h
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
P

u
b
lic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 
T

a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
o
r 

th
is

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 

5
7
.6

%
. 

40



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 1

1
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 

� ���
    

 

B
V

 
4
9
 

(P
A

F
 

C
F

/A
1
) 

T
h
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

lo
o
k
e
d
 
a
ft

e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 
o
n
 
3
1

s
t  

M
a
rc

h
 
w

it
h

 
th

re
e
 

o
r 

m
o
re

 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 
d
u
ri
n
g

 
th

e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

[E
C

S
&

L
] 

1
3
.9

%
 

(0
5
/0

6
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
P

I)
 

1
3
%

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

fi
g

u
re

 
0
5
/0

6
 

–
 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 d

a
ta

 u
n
a

v
a
ila

b
le

. 
 

Y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 f

ig
u
re

s
 f

o
r 

0
6
/0

7
 

n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 u
n
ti
l 

3
1

t  M
a
y
 

2
0
0
7
. 

n
/
a
 

P
A

F
 

C
F

/ 
C

1
8
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

a
g

e
d
 1

0
+

 w
h
o
 w

e
re

 g
iv

e
n
 a

 
fi
n
a
l 

w
a
rn

in
g

 o
r 

c
o
n
v
ic

ti
o
n
, 

e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 a

s
 

a
 
ra

ti
o
 
o
f 

a
ll 

c
h
ild

re
n
 
a

g
e
d
 
1
0
+

 g
iv

e
n
 
a

 
w

a
rn

in
g

 
o
r 

c
o
n
v
ic

ti
o
n

 
in

 
th

e
 

P
o

lic
e

 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
. 
[E

C
S

&
L
] 

n
/a

 
(7

.6
9
) 

3
  

T
h
e
 O

C
2
 r

e
tu

rn
 f

o
r 

0
1
/1

0
/0

5
 –

 3
0
/0

9
/0

6
 w

a
s
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
N

o
v
 2

0
0
6
. 

 T
h

e
 d

a
ta

 
s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

y
e
t 

b
e
e
n

 c
o

n
fi

rm
e
d

 b
y
 D

fE
S

. 
  

 

n
/a

 
B

V
 

1
5
6
 

T
h
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 
b
u
ild

in
g

s
 o

p
e
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 i
n

 w
h
ic

h
 a

ll 
p
u
b
lic

 
a
re

a
s
 

a
re

 
s
u
it
a
b
le

 
fo

r 
a
n
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

 [
C

S
] 

3
5
.7

%
  

(2
8
.5

0
%

) 
3
4
.6

0
%

 
D

a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

. 
  

L
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r’
s
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 =
 

2
8
.5

0
%

. 

M
T

O
 4

: 
T

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

rt
, 
c
u

lt
u

re
, 
s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
re

a
ti

o
n

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

�
 

B
V

P
I 
1

1
7
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
v
is

it
s
 

p
e
r 

1
0
0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 p

u
b
lic

 l
ib

ra
ry

 
p
re

m
is

e
s
. 
[E

C
S

&
L
] 

9
9
 

(n
/a

) 

4
7
4
3
 

(4
8
8
4
) 

4
9
9
0
 

T
h
is

 m
a
y
 h

ig
h
lig

h
t 
a
n
 

in
te

re
s
ti
n
g
 a

n
o
m

a
ly

 
re

g
a
rd

in
g

 P
Is

 d
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 

v
is

it
o
r 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

. 
O

n
 t

h
e
 

o
n
e
 h

a
n
d
 w

e
 a

re
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 u

s
e
 

o
n
 l
in

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 

a
n
d
 r

e
n
e
w

 b
o
o
k
s
, 
ra

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
lly

 h
a

v
in

g
 t

o
 

41



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 1

2
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 
v
is

it
 a

 l
ib

ra
ry

, 
o
n
 t
h
e
 o

th
e
r 

h
a
n
d
 w

e
 a

re
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 

th
a
t 
a
c
tu

a
l 
p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
v
is

it
s
 

a
re

 d
e
c
lin

in
g
. 

� ���
    

 

B
F

P
I 

0
2
0

 I
te

m
s
 i

s
s
u
e
d
 t

o
 1

5
-1

9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 
a
c
ti
v
e
 u

s
e
rs

. 
[E

C
S

&
L
] 

n
/a

 

5
4
4
 

(3
0
5
) 

2
8
0
 

T
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

e
t,
 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
is

 i
s
 p

ro
b
a
b
ly

 
d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 P

I 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 

c
le

a
rl
y
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 

th
a
t 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 o

ld
 D

y
n
ix

 s
y
s
te

m
 

w
a
s
 n

o
t 

a
c
c
u
ra

te
 w

h
e
n
 

c
a
lc

u
la

ti
n
g

 P
Is

 o
f 
th

is
 

c
o
m

p
le

x
it
y
. 

 T
h
e
 P

I 
h
a
s
 

n
o
w

 b
e
e
n
 c

la
ri
fi
e
d
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 

it
 

is
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 A

c
ti
v
e
 

B
o
rr

o
w

e
r 

c
o
u
n
t 
d
e
fi
n
e
d
 b

y
 

C
IP

F
A

. 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
2
5
 I

n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

B
ra

c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 
in

 
S

c
h
o
o
l 

S
p
o
rt

s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
[E

C
S

&
L
] 

A
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 n
o
w

 i
n
v
o

lv
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 

S
p
o
rt

s
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 

(2
6
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 o
u
t 
o
f 

3
7
) 

1
0
0
%

 b
y
 S

e
p
t 
0
6
 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
3
0
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 

S
p
o
rt

 
P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 [

E
C

S
&

L
] 

8
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 w

it
h
 

5
 t
e
a
c
h

e
rs

 a
n
d

 A
O

T
T

’s
 

tr
a
in

e
d
 

1
9
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 w

it
h
 

1
8
0
 t

e
a
c
h
e
rs

 
a
n
d
 A

O
T

T
’s

 
tr

a
in

e
d
 

(p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

la
u
n
c
h
 A

p
ri
l 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 b

e
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

th
e
 B

ra
c
k
n
e
ll 

 

42



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 1

3
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 
2
0
0
5
) 

F
o
re

s
t 
IN

S
E

T
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P

E
 C

P
D

 
m

o
d
u
le

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 

a
c
c
o
rd

in
g

 t
o
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

(n
e
w

) 
P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 

B
o
o
k
s
ta

rt
: 
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
a
c
k
s
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 [
E

C
S

&
L
] 

7
9
3
 

(n
/a

) 

2
9
4
2
 

(N
/A

) 
4
2
9
0
 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 

o
u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 
th

e
 

lib
ra

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t

o
 t
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t 

n
o
t 

b
e
in

g
 r

e
a
c
h
e
d
. 
W

e
 a

re
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
is

 
is

s
u
e
 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

1
4
0
 T

o
 m

in
im

is
e
 n

e
t 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
y
 

o
p
ti
m

is
in

g
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 L

e
is

u
re

 [
E

&
L
] 

£
2
,5

3
9
,0

0
0
 

(£
1
,8

7
1
,0

0
0
) 

 

£
8
,7

9
9
,0

0
0
 

(8
,3

5
3
,0

0
0
) 

£
8
,6

1
5
,0

0
0
 n

e
t 

V
A

T
 

£
9
,9

8
0
,0

0
0
 i
n
 

V
A

T
 

 

T
a
rg

e
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
4
5
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 
v
is

it
s
/ 

c
o
n
ta

c
ts

 
to

 
le

is
u
re

 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 

s
p
o
rt

s
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

E
a
s
th

a
m

p
s
te

a
d
 

P
a
rk

 C
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 C

e
n
tr

e
) 

[E
&

L
] 

6
1
3
,5

3
5
 

(5
0
8
,7

4
2
) 

 

2
,3

4
6
,6

4
2
 

(2
,2

3
2
,2

7
9
) 

2
,2

3
7
,0

0
0
 

T
o
ta

l 
u
s
a
g

e
 i
s
 a

lm
o
s
t 

5
%

 
h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

in
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

�
 

B
V

 
2
2
0

 
C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 
a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 
p
u
b
lic

 
lib

ra
ry

 
s
e
rv

ic
e

 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 (

P
L
S

S
) 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

3
 

(4
) 

4
 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

P
lu

s
 U

s
e
r 

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 

S
u
rv

e
y
 t

h
a
t 

to
o
k
 p

la
c
e
 

43



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 1

4
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 
e
x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 
a
s
 
a
 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 
1
 
&

 
4
 

[E
C

S
&

L
] 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r,

 t
h
e
 

L
ib

ra
ry

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 f

a
ile

d
 t

o
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
e
 9

4
%

 u
s
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 

m
a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 (
it
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 9

3
.1

%
).

 W
e
 n

o
w

 
m

e
e
t 
8
 o

f 
th

e
 1

0
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 r

e
d
u
c
e
s
 

o
u
r 

s
c
o
re

 f
ro

m
 4

 t
o
 3

. 
 

�
 

B
V

 2
2
1
 (

a
) 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 
a
g

e
d
 

1
3
-1

9
 

in
v
o
lv

e
d

 
in

 
y
o
u
th

 
w

o
rk

 
g

a
in

in
g

 a
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 

th
e
 

b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

 
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g

 i
n
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 
a
re

a
 [
E

C
S

&
L
] 

7
6
%

 
(N

/A
) 

6
5
%

 
P

le
a
s
e
 n

o
te

 a
n
n
u
a
l 
re

tu
rn

s
 

a
re

 n
o
t 

y
e
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
. 

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 3
1

s
t  M

a
y
. 

�
 

B
V

 2
2
1
  

(b
) 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 
a
g

e
d
 

1
3
-1

9
 

in
v
o
lv

e
d

 
in

 
y
o
u
th

 
w

o
rk

 
g

a
in

in
g
 a

n
 a

c
c
re

d
it
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 

to
 
th

e
 
b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

  
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 
o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g

 i
n
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 
a
re

a
 [
E

C
S

&
L
] 

1
0
%

 
(N

/A
) 

1
6
%

 
P

le
a
s
e
 n

o
te

 a
n
n
u
a
l 
re

tu
rn

s
 

a
re

 n
o
t 

y
e
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
. 

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 3
1

s
t  M

a
y
. 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
3
5
 
T

h
e
 
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 
o
f 

ju
n
io

r 
a
n
d
 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
e
re

 m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 5

%
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 

in
s
tr

u
m

e
n
ta

l 
tu

it
io

n
 

[E
C

S
&

L
] 

8
8
%

 
(8

9
%

) 
1
0
0
%

 
 

M
T

O
 5

: 
T

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 h

e
a
lt

h
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 

44



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 1

5
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
6
0
 

T
h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

H
e
a
lt
h
y
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 (
N

H
S

S
) 

[E
C

S
&

L
] 

n
/a

 

1
4
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 N

H
S

S
 

a
n
d
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
h
a
v
e
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d
 i
n
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 

N
H

S
S

 
(N

/A
) 

1
9
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 (
h
a
lf
 

o
f 

B
ra

c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

) 
to

 m
e
e
t 
N

H
S

S
 b

y
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 

a
n
d
 2

5
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 
b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
. 

O
u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 g

re
a
tl
y
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
s
 t

h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 
U

n
d
e
r 

re
v
is

e
d
 

D
o
H

 d
e
fi
n
it
io

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

c
a
m

e
 i
n
to

 e
ff

e
c
t 
fr

o
m

 D
e
c
. 

2
0
0
6
, 

w
e
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 

2
0
0
9
 t

a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
N

H
S

S
 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

1
0
0
 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 
u
s
in

g
 e

+
 c

a
rd

 f
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
y 

e
a
ti
n
g

 [
E

C
S

&
L
] 

1
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 (
R

a
n
e
la

g
h
) 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

s
in

g
 

e
+

 c
a
rd

 t
o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 e

a
ti
n
g
 b

y
 

a
w

a
rd

in
g

 p
o
in

ts
 f
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 m

e
a
l 
c
h
o
ic

e
s
. 

B
ra

k
e
n
h
a
le

 a
n
d
 S

a
n
d
h
u
rs

t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 s

im
ila

r 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
. 

O
n
u
s
 n

o
w

 o
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
. 

     
(4

) 

O
n
u
s
 

n
o
w

 
o
n
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
to

 
m

a
k
e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
. 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

(n
e

w
) 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

w
it
h

 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

m
e
a
ls

 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
[E

C
S

&
L
] 

n
/a

 

N
e
w

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
. 

(N
/A

) 

C
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 n

e
w

 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

G
e
n
e
ra

lly
 w

e
ll 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 b

y
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 

n
/
a
 

P
A

F
 C

F
/ 

A
7
0
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 a

 
c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 A

d
o
le

s
c
e
n
ts

 
M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
. 

[E
C

S
&

L
] 

n
/a

 

8
 

(0
5
/0

6
 A

n
n
u
a
l 

P
I)

 
(N

/A
) 

1
2
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
fi
g

u
re

 0
5
/0

6
 –

 
q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 d

a
ta

 u
n
a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 
 

Y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 f
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

0
6
/0

7
 

n
o
t 

y
e
t 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 

 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
5
5
 

T
o
 

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
 

a
 

ri
s
k
 

b
a
s
e
d
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 
o
f 

lo
c
a
l 

fo
o
d
 
o
u
tl
e
ts

 
fo

r 
fo

o
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 [

E
&

L
] 

2
3
5
 

(1
1
5
) 

5
6
2
 

(3
3
0
) 

5
5
8
 

T
h
e
 

ta
rg

e
t 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

m
e
t 

a
n
d
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 

w
e
re

 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

to
 

re
s
o
lv

e
 

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 

45



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 1

6
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 
re

v
e
a
le

d
 b

y
 a

n
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 

M
3
 d

a
ta

b
a
s
e
. 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
5
7
 

T
o
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 

a
 

ri
s
k
 

b
a
s
e
d
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

fo
r 

lo
c
a
l 

fo
o
d
 

o
u
tl
e
ts

 f
o
r 

fo
o
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 [

E
&

L
] 

4
6
 

(1
4
9
) 

1
3
8
 

(2
1
4
) 

1
1
8
 

In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
6
0
 

T
o
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 

a
 

ri
s
k
 

b
a
s
e
d
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

fo
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
.[

E
&

L
] 

1
1
 

(5
5
) 

1
0
5
 

(6
9
) 

1
0
3
 

T
h
e
 

ta
rg

e
t 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

m
e
t 

a
n
d
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

F
it
3
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

d
u
ri
n
g

 2
0
0
6
/0

7
 i

s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

w
ill

 
in

fo
rm

 
th

e
 

F
it
3
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

2
0
0
7
/0

8
. 

� ���
    

 

P
A

F
 D

4
1
 D

e
la

y
e
d
 t

ra
n
s
fe

rs
 o

f 
c
a
re

 (
fr

o
m

 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l)
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 

6
5
+

 [
S

S
&

H
] 

2
8
 

(2
3
.7

3
) 

1
5
 

B
a
n
d
 4

 –
 g

o
o
d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

T
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
e
la

y
e
d
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rs
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

u
e
 t
o
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 d
e
la

y
s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 H

e
a
lt
h
 

h
a
v
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 t

h
e
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
in

 t
h
e
 f

in
a
l q

u
a
rt

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 y

e
a
r.

 I
f 
th

is
 w

a
s
 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b

a
n
d
. 

n
/a

 
B

V
 1

9
8
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

b
le

m
 d

ru
g
 

m
is

u
s
e
rs

 i
n
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

p
e
r 

th
o
u
s
a
n
d
 h

e
a
d
 

o
f 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 1

5
-4

4
 [

S
S

&
H

] 

n
/a

 
(9

2
) 

n
/a

 
R

e
v
is

e
d
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 

46



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 1

7
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

in
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

�
 

B
V

 
1

9
7
 

T
h
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

c
h
a
n
g

e
 

in
 

th
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 

a
m

o
n
g

s
t 

1
5
-1

7
 

y
e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 

to
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 

c
a
le

n
d
a
r 

y
e
a
r 

[E
C

S
&

L
] 

-4
0
.7

%
 r

a
te

 
(2

0
0
5
 A

n
n
u
a
l)
 

(-
1
9
.3

%
) 

-2
1
.6

0
%

 
 

B
ra

c
k
n
e
ll 

h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

 
d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 u

n
d
e
r 

1
8
 

c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
 o

f 
4
0
.7

%
 

s
in

c
e
 1

9
9
8
. 
 O

u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t

h
is

 y
e
a
r 

h
a
s
 

p
u
t 

u
s
 a

s
 3

rd
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
. 

 
T

h
is

 m
e
a
n
s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 m

e
t 

th
e
 2

0
0
4
 i
n
te

ri
m

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 

1
0
%

 a
n
d
 i
s
 o

n
 

tr
a
c
k
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 2

0
1
0
 

tr
a
je

c
to

ry
. 

�
 

P
A

F
 C

1
9
 H

e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
lo

o
k
e
d
-a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
. 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 
o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 
lo

o
k
e
d
 
a
ft

e
r 

w
h
o

 
h
a
d
 

th
e
ir
 

d
e
n
ta

l 
a
n
d
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 

c
h
e
c
k
s
 

[E
C

S
&

L
] 

8
0
.5

%
 

 (
8
6
.2

%
) 

8
8
%

 
 

M
T

O
 6

: 
T

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 t

h
e
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

e
c
to

r 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

v
u

ln
e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p

s
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

In
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

n
/a

 
C

C
0
4
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 f

e
e
l 

th
a
t 

th
e
y
 

c
a
n
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 

a
ff

e
c
ti
n
g
 

th
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re

a
 [
C

E
x
] 

2
5
.3

%
 

(N
/A

) 
- 

 

M
T

O
 7

: 
T

o
 r

a
is

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t 
in

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
4
0
 

T
o
 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
 

a
n
d
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

th
e
 

M
a
s
te

r 
P

la
n
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

D
ra

ft
 M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
l.
 

A
w

a
it
in

g
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 p

la
n
n
e
rs

 
M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
 w

ill
 

b
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

 

47



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 1

8
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 
B

ra
k
e
n
h
a
le

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
[E

C
S

&
L
] 

(F
ir
s
t 
d
ra

ft
 o

f 
n
e
w

 M
a
s
te

rp
la

n
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 b

y
 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
ts

) 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
b
y
 S

e
p
t 

2
0
0
6
. 
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
in

 
a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

P
la

n
 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
4

8
 %

 o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

L
A

 
–
 

s
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
. 

[E
C

S
&

L
] 

0
%

 
(0

%
) 

0
%

 
 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
7
5
 %

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 j
u
d
g
e
d
 a

s
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 

o
r 

b
e
tt

e
r 

in
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 b

y
 O

fs
te

d
 [
E

C
S

&
L
] 

9
7
.4

%
 

(1
0
0
%

) 
1
0
0
%

 
 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
8
0
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

o
f 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 

p
u
p
ils

 a
t 

L
E

A
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 [
E

C
S

&
L
] 

9
4
.9

%
 

(9
4
.9

%
) 

9
5
.2

%
 

T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 f

in
a
l 
fi
g

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

0
5
/0

6
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 N
e
w

 
d
a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
7
 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
8
5
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

o
f 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

p
u
p
ils

 
a
t 

L
E

A
 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 [
E

C
S

&
L
] 

9
2
.5

%
 

(9
2
.9

) 
9
3
.3

%
 

T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 f

in
a
l 
fi
g

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

0
5
/0

6
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r.

 N
e
w

 
d
a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
7
 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
4
4
 

T
h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
u
p
ils

 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
tl
y
 

e
x
c
lu

d
e
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g

 
th

e
 

y
e
a
r 

fr
o
m

 
a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 
b
y
 
th

e
 
L
E

A
 

p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

u
p
ils

 a
t 

a
ll 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 
[E

C
S

&
L
] 

1
.8

 
(2

.8
%

) 
2
.5

 
B

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 2

6
 p

u
p
ils

 (
A

p
ri
l-

M
a
r)

 a
n
d
 t

o
ta

l 
N

O
R

  
o
f 

1
4
4
0
9
 (

a
s
 a

t 
J
a
n
 2

0
0
6
) 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

in
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

�
 

B
V

 3
8
 %

 o
f 

1
5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 p

u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 
m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 

b
y
 

th
e
 

L
A

 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 

fi
v
e
 

o
r 

6
0
%

 
(5

4
.5

%
) 

6
2
%

 
 

48



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 1

9
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 
m

o
re

 
G

C
S

E
s
 

a
t 

g
ra

d
e
s
 

A
*-

C
 

o
r 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 

[E
C

S
&

L
] 

�
 

B
V

 3
9
 %

 o
f 

1
5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 
m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 L

A
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 G
C

S
E

s
 

o
r 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 

a
t 

g
ra

d
e
s
 

A
*-

G
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

M
a
th

s
 a

n
d
 E

n
g

lis
h
 [
E

C
S

&
L
] 

9
5
%

 
(9

4
%

) 
9
2
%

 
 

�
 

B
V

 4
0
 %

 o
f 

p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 

b
y
 t

h
e
 L

A
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
ve

l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 

K
e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 M
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 t

e
s
t 
[E

C
S

&
L
] 

7
9
%

 
(7

7
%

) 
8
3
%

 
 

�
 

B
V

 4
1
 %

 o
f 

p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 

b
y
 t

h
e
 L

A
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 

4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e

 i
n

 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 E
n
g

lis
h
 t

e
s
t 
[E

C
S

&
L
] 

8
6
%

 
(8

2
.9

%
) 

8
4
%

 
 

�
 

B
V

 5
0
 P

A
F

 A
2
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 l
e
a
v
in

g
 c

a
re

 a
g

e
d
 1

6
 o

r 
o
v
e
r 

w
it
h

 
a
t 

le
a
s
t 

o
n
e
 

G
C

S
E

 
a
t 

g
ra

d
e
s
 

A
*-

G
 

o
r 

G
N

V
Q

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

[E
C

S
&

L
] 

7
7
.8

%
 

(0
5
/0

6
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
P

I)
 

(7
1
.4

%
) 

6
7
%

 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
fi
g

u
re

 0
5
/0

6
 –

 
q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 d

a
ta

 u
n
a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 
 

Y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 f
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

0
6
/0

7
 

n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 u
n
ti
l 
3
1

t  M
a

y
 

2
0
0
7
. 

 
B

V
 1

8
1
 %

 o
f 

p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 

b
y
 t

h
e
 L

A
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 

5
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e

 i
n

 
th

e
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 3

 t
e
s
t 
in

 [
E

C
S

&
L
] 

 
 

 

�
 

a
) 

E
n

g
lis

h
 

8
1
%

 
(8

2
%

) 
8
1
%

 
 

�
 

b
) 

M
a
th

s
 

8
5
%

 (
7
7
%

) 
8
0
%

 
 

�
 

c
) 

S
c
ie

n
c
e
 

8
1
%

 (
7
0
%

) 
7
9
%

 
 

�
 

d
) 

IC
T

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

7
0
%

 (
6
9
%

) 
7
9
%

 
F
ig
u
re
s
 

a
re
 

b
a
s
e
d
 

o
n
 

T
e
a
c
h
e
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

a
s
 

th
e
re
 
is
 
n
o
 
K
S
3
 
te
s
t 
in
 

49



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 2

0
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 
IC
T
. 
 
T
h
e
 
in
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

m
o
re
 
ro
b
u
s
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 
h
a
s
 
re
s
u
lt
e
d
 
in
 

lo
w
e
r 
b
a
s
e
li
n
e
 
fi
g
u
re
s
 
fo
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 
 

H
o
w
e
v
e
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

h
a
s
 

s
ti
ll
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 
b
y
 
5
%
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 

la
s
t 
y
e
a
r.

 

�
 

B
V

 4
6
 %

 o
f 

h
a
lf
 d

a
y
s
 m

is
s
e
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

o
ta

l 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 [
E

C
S

&
L
] 

5
.1

%
 

(5
.1

%
) 

4
.8

%
 

 

�
 

B
V

 4
5
 %

 o
f 

h
a
lf
 d

a
y
s
 m

is
s
e
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

o
ta

l 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 

b
y
 t

h
e
 L

A
. 
[E

C
S

&
L
] 

7
.5

%
 

(7
.1

%
) 

6
.9

%
 

 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

(n
e

w
) 

%
 

o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
w

it
h
 

fu
ll 

o
r 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
n
: 

(a
) 

3
 o

r 
m

o
re

 e
le

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
re

 o
ff

e
r 

A
ll 

5
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
re

 o
ff

e
r 

a
) 

5
3
%

 
b
) 

1
6
%

 
(N

/A
) 

  

a
) 

5
0
%

 

b
) 

2
0
%

 

M
in

o
r 

c
h
a
n
g

e
 t
o
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 

o
f 

‘c
o
re

 o
ff

e
r’
 i
n
 D

e
c
. 
2
0
0
6
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 a

n
d
 f
u
tu

re
 f
ig

u
re

s
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 n

e
w

 d
e
fi
n
it
io

n
 

�
 

B
V

 1
9
4
 %

 o
f 

p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 L

e
v
e
l 

5
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i

n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 E
n
g

lis
h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 

[E
C

S
&

L
] 

E
n
g

lis
h
 3

6
%

 (
3
0
%

) 
M

a
th

s
 3

4
%

 (
3
1
%

) 
E

n
g

lis
h
 3

9
%

 
M

a
th

s
 3

8
%

 
S
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
re
 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 s
e
t 
th
e
s
e
 

ta
rg
e
ts
. 
 O
n
 M
a
th
s
, 
w
h
il
s
t 

a
tt
a
in
m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 

s
in
c
e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r,
 t
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 

is
 m

o
v
in
g
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 l
e
v
e
l 

4
+
 a
n
 n
o
n
-m

o
v
e
rs
. 

M
T

O
 8

: 
T

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

la
c
e
s
 i

n
 B

ra
c
k
n

e
ll

 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

50



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 2

1
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
9
5

 
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

a
ll 

 
th

re
e
 

y
e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 

in
 

th
e
 

P
ri
v
a
te

, 
V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
, 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

M
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 

(P
V

IM
) 

s
e
c
to

rs
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 

E
a
rl
y
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

 
F

u
n
d
in

g
 (

E
E

F
) 

in
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 [

E
C

S
&

L
] 

8
8
%

 
(8

1
%

) 
8
3
%

 
C

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
o
ta

l 
n
o
. 

o
f 

3
-y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 a

s
 p

e
r 

U
V

4
0
 t

a
b
le

 (
2
0
0
1
 c

e
n
s
u
s
) 

N
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

3
-y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 i
n
 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 n

u
rs

e
ri
e
s
 a

re
 

a
ro

u
n
d
 2

0
%

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

in
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

�
 

B
V

 
0

4
5
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

s
u
rp

lu
s
 

p
la

c
e
s
 

–
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 [
E

C
S

&
L
] 

1
1
.7

%
 

(1
2
.4

%
) 

9
.5

%
 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
D

fE
S

 
S

u
rp

lu
s
 P

la
c
e
s
 R

e
tu

rn
 J

u
ly

 
2
0
0
6
 

 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

(n
e

w
) 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 
s
u
rp

lu
s
 
p
la

c
e
s
 
–
 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 [
E

C
S

&
L
] 

1
1
.4

%
 

(N
/A

) 
8
.3

%
 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
D

fE
S

 
S

u
rp

lu
s
 P

la
c
e
s
 R

e
tu

rn
 J

u
ly

 
2
0
0
6
 

 

M
T

O
 9

: 
T

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 a
d

u
lt

 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 b

a
s
ic

 s
k
il
ls

 f
o

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
0
1

 
P

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T

ra
in

in
g

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 [

E
C

S
&

L
] 

W
o
rk

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 S

E
E

D
A

 t
o
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

‘G
ro

w
 O

u
r 

O
w

n
’ 
p
ro

je
c
t 

(P
la

n
n
in

g
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 A

p
ri
l 
0
5
) 

P
la

n
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

a
s
 w

o
rk

in
g

 d
ra

ft
 

b
y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
. 

 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
0
5

  
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

n
e
w

 a
n
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

tr
a
in

in
g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t

o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

[E
C

S
&

L
] 

(N
/A

) 

W
o
rk

 t
o
 p

la
n
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
. 

L
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

N
o
 t

a
rg

e
t 
s
e
t 

(l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 T

o
w

n
 

C
e
n
tr

e
 

R
e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

) 

 

51



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 2

2
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 
‘G

ro
w

 O
u
r 

O
w

n
’ 

p
ro

je
c
t 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

in
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

�
 

B
V

 1
6
1
 (

P
A

F
 C

F
/ 

A
4
) 

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o

 w
e
re

 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

o
n
 1

 
A

p
ri
l 
in

 t
h
e
ir
 1

7
th
 y

e
a
r 

(a
g

e
d
 1

6
) 

w
h
o
 w

e
re

 
e
n
g

a
g

e
d
 

in
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

tr
a
in

in
g

 
o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
t 

th
e
 

a
g
e
 

o
f 

1
9
 

to
 

th
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 
in

 
th

e
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

w
h
o

 
w

e
re

 
e
n
g

a
g

e
d
 

in
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

tr
a
in

in
g

 o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

a
t 

th
e
 

a
g

e
 o

f 
1
9
 [
E

C
S

&
L
] 

0
.6

9
 

(0
5
/0

6
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
P

I)
 

(0
.4

9
) 

0
.6

7
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
fi
g

u
re

 0
5
/0

6
 –

 
q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 d

a
ta

 u
n
a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 
 

Y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 f
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

0
6
/0

7
 

n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 u
n
ti
l 
3
1

t  M
a

y
 

2
0
0
7
. 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
5
5
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

n
e
w

 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

 
(t

h
o
s
e
 n

o
t 
in

 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 i
n
 l
a
s
t 
tw

o
 y

e
a
rs

) 
[E

C
S

&
L

] 

4
3
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

le
a
rn

e
rs

 i
n
 0

5
/0

6
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r 

w
e
re

 n
e
w

. 
(5

4
.4

%
) 

L
S

C
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0
0
6

/0
7
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e

a
r 

is
 f

o
r 

2
,3

0
0
 

le
a
rn

e
rs

 i
n
 A

C
L

 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
. 
N

o
 

ta
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
n
e

w
 

le
a
rn

e
rs

 

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

ll 
m

e
t 
th

e
ir
 t

a
rg

e
ts

. 
2
0
6
2
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
le

a
rn

e
rs

 t
o
o
k
 

p
a
rt

 i
n
 A

d
u
lt
 a

n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 0

5
/0

6
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 

y
e
a
r 

(s
o
m

e
 a

d
u
lt
s
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 1

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
) 

M
T

O
 1

0
: 

T
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e
 a

 b
e
tt

e
r 

m
a
tc

h
 o

f 
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 t
o

 n
e
e
d

 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

�
 

B
V

 
4
3
a
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 
o
f 

S
p
e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

N
e
e
d
 

is
s
u
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
n
 a

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 1
8
 w

e
e
k
s
 e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

1
0
0
%

 
(1

0
0
%

) 
1
0
0
%

 
 

52



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 2

3
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 
e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
. 

[E
C

S
&

L
] 

�
 

B
V

 
4
3
b
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 
o
f 

S
p
e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

N
e
e
d
 

is
s
u
e
d
 

b
y
 

th
e
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 
in

 
th

e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 

p
re

p
a
re

d
 

w
it
h
in

 
1
8
 

w
e
e
k
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 ‘
e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
’ 
[E

C
S

&
L
] 

9
6
%

 
(9

6
%

) 
9
5
%

 
T

h
is

 P
I 

d
e
p
e
n
d
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
a
d
v
ic

e
 f
ro

m
 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 

p
a
re

n
ts

 w
it
h
in

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
. 
T

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 c
a
n
n
o
t 

d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
o
u
ts

id
e
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
. 

M
T

O
 1

1
: 

T
o

 c
re

a
te

 a
n

d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 q

u
a
li

ty
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

(n
e

w
) 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
E

C
O

 
re

g
is

te
re

d
/ 
c
e
rt

if
ie

d
 [

E
C

S
&

L
] 

1
1
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 r
e
g

is
te

re
d
, 
1
 r

e
a
c
h
e
d
 s

ilv
e
r 

a
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 2

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

ro
n
z
e
 

(N
/A

) 

5
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d
 a

n
d
 

2
 c

e
rt

if
ie

d
 b

y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

T
a
rg

e
t 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d

 

�
 

B
V

 
8

2
 

(a
) 

(i
) 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 
w

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 s
e
n
t 

b
y
 

B
ra

c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 
fo

r 
re

c
yc

lin
g

 [
E

&
L
] 

2
5
.4

%
 

(2
1
.5

3
%

) 

2
3
.2

%
 

 (1
8
.5

%
) 

2
2
%

 
E

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 f

ig
u
re

s
 o

n
ly

. 
 

L
a
s
t 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

to
n
n
a
g

e
s
 n

o
t 

y
e
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 

�
 

B
V

 
8
2
 

(b
) 

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e

h
o
ld

 
w

a
s
te

 
s
e
n
t 

b
y
 

B
ra

c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 

fo
r 

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 

o
r 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
b

y
 a

n
a

e
ro

b
ic

 d
ig

e
s
ti
o
n

 [
E

&
L
] 

1
0
.3

%
 

(5
.5

6
%

) 

1
1
.2

%
 

 (9
.2

7
%

) 

1
2
.0

%
 

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 f

ig
u
re

s
 o

n
ly

. 
 

L
a
s
t 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

to
n
n
a
g

e
s
 n

o
t 

y
e
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 

�
 

B
V

 
8
2
 

(d
) 

(i
) 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 
a
ri
s
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 l
a
n
d
 f

ill
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

[E
&

L
] 

6
4
.3

%
 

(2
7
.9

%
) 

6
5
.5

%
 

(7
2
.0

4
%

) 
6
6
%

 
E

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 f

ig
u
re

s
 o

n
ly

. 
 

L
a
s
t 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

to
n
n
a
g

e
s
 n

o
t 

y
e
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
5
2
 

T
o
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 

a
 

ri
s
k
 

b
a
s
e
d
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 
fo

r 
a
ll 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
s
 

o
f 

th
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 A

c
t 
1
9
9
0
 [
E

&
L
] 

1
6
 

(8
) 

3
3
 

(2
6
) 

  3
3
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

53



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 2

4
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 

�
 

B
V

 2
1
8
 (

a
) 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 r
e
p
o
rt

s
 o

f 
a
b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
 

v
e
h
ic

le
s
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

d
 

w
it
h
in

 
2
4
 h

o
u
rs

 o
f 

n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

[E
&

L
] 

8
3
%

 
(N

/A
) 

8
2
%

 
(N

/A
) 

8
5
%

 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 l

o
c
a
lly

 s
e
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

b
u
t 

s
e
e
m

s
 

to
 

b
e
 

a
b
o
u
t 

ri
g

h
t 

a
n
d
 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 
h
a
v
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 

a
n
d
 

c
o
v
e
re

d
 

fo
r 

e
a
c
h
 

o
th

e
r 

w
e

ll.
 

�
 

B
V

 
2
1
8
 

(b
) 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

a
b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
 

v
e
h
ic

le
s
 

re
m

o
v
e
d
 

w
it
h
in

 
2
4
 

h
o
u
rs

 
fr

o
m

 
th

e
 

p
o
in

t 
a
t 

w
h
ic

h
 

B
ra

c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 

is
 

le
g

a
lly

 
e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 

to
 

re
m

o
v
e
 

th
e
 

v
e
h

ic
le

 
[E

&
L
] 

4
8
%

 
(N

/A
) 

4
3
%

 
(N

/A
) 

8
7
%

 
T

h
e
 

a
p
p
a
re

n
tl
y
 

lo
w

 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

o
n
 

re
m

o
v
a
l 

o
n
 w

h
a
t 

in
 r

e
tr

o
s
p
e
c
t 

is
 a

 
v
e
ry

 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 

lo
c
a
lly

 
s
e
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
a
s
 

in
it
ia

lly
 

p
a
rt

ly
 

d
u
e
 

to
 

a
d
m

in
 

s
ta

ff
 

s
h
o
rt

a
g

e
s
 

e
a
rl
ie

r 
in

 
th

e
 

y
e
a
r.

 
 

T
h
e
re

 
a
re

 
a
ls

o
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
w

it
h
 a

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 
lo

w
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
a
rs

 
to

 
re

m
o
v
e
 

(1
3
4
 

in
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

y
e
a
r)

 
th

e
 

w
o
rk

 
is

 
n
o
t 

a
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 
a
n
d
 

h
a
s
 

m
e
a
n
t 

in
te

rr
u
p
ti
n
g

 
o
th

e
r 

w
o

rk
. 
 

L
a
rg

e
r 

a
n
d
 

u
rb

a
n
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

w
ill

 
lik

e
ly

 
b
e
 

a
b
le

 
to

 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
 

a
 

h
ig

h
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

b
y
 

k
e
e
p
in

g
 

th
e
ir
 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
m

o
re

 
fu

lly
 

o
c
c
u
p
ie

d
 
b
u
t 

th
e
re

 
a
re

 a
s
 

y
e
t 

n
o
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
. 

54



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 2

5
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 

M
T

O
 1

2
: 

T
o

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 p
o

li
c
ie

s
 t

h
a
t 

im
p

ro
v
e
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
1
0

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 T

ra
v
e
l 
P

la
n
s
 [
E

C
S

&
L
] 

5
 a

w
a
rd

e
d
 e

n
d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

(7
) 

2
7
 

2
6
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 n
o
w

 h
a
v
e
 t

ra
v
e
l 

p
la

n
s
. 
W

o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 

fo
r 

n
e
x
t 

y
e
a
r’
s
 t
ra

v
e
l 
p
la

n
 

s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
s
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

in
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

1
5
0
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 
o
n
 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 [
E

&
L
] 

J
u
n
e
 0

6
 

(c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0
5
) 

J
u
n
e
 0

7
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 

n
/a

 
B

F
P

I 
1
5
5
 
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 
o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
w

it
h
 
a
 

tr
a
v
e
l 
p
la

n
 [

E
&

L
] 

n
/a

 
n
/a

 
7
1
%

 (
2
7

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
o
u
t 
o
f 

3
8
) 

B
V

P
I 

d
o
e
s
n
’t
 

e
x
is

t 
a

n
y
 

m
o
re

 

M
T

O
 1

3
: 

T
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

in
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

�
 

B
V

 
1
5
9

 
T

h
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
tl
y
 

e
x
c
lu

d
e
d
 

p
u
p
ils

 
o
ff

e
re

d
 

fu
ll-

ti
m

e
 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 
o
f 

2
1
 

h
o
u
rs

 
o
r 

m
o
re

 
in

 
th

e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

[E
C

S
&

L
] 

6
1
%

 
 (

N
/A

) 
7
0
%

 
 

�
 

B
V

 1
6
2
 P

A
F

 C
2
0
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 

c
a
s
e
s
 

w
h
ic

h
 

w
e
re

 
re

v
ie

w
e
d

 
re

g
u
la

rl
y
 o

u
t 

o
f 

th
o
s
e
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o
u

ld
 

h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
 
d
u
ri
n
g
 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

[E
C

S
&

L
] 

1
0
0
%

 
(0

5
/0

6
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
P

I)
 

(1
0
0
%

) 

1
0
0
%

 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
fi
g

u
re

 0
5
/0

6
 –

 
q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 d

a
ta

 u
n
a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 
 

Y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 f
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

0
6
/0

7
 

\n
o
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 u
n
ti
l 
3
1

t  M
a
y
 

2
0
0
7
. 

�
 

B
V

 1
6
3
 P

A
F

 C
2
3
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

w
h
o
 c

e
a
s
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 l

o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

d
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 

y
e
a
r 

a
s
 

a
 

re
s
u
lt
 

o
f 

th
e
 

g
ra

n
ti
n
g

 
o
f 

a
n
 

4
.7

%
 

(0
5
/0

6
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
P

I)
 

(9
.1

%
) 

1
.6

%
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
fi
g

u
re

 0
5
/0

6
 –

 
q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 d

a
ta

 u
n
a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 
 

Y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 f
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

0
6
/0

7
 

55



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 2

6
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

r 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
g

u
a
rd

ia
n
s
h
ip

 o
rd

e
r,

 a
s
 

a
 
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 
o
f 

th
e
 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

a
t 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 w

h
o
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 

lo
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

fo
r 

6
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

r 
m

o
re

 o
n
 t

h
a
t 

d
a
y
 [

E
C

S
&

L
] 

n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 u
n
ti
l 
3
1

t  M
a

y
 

2
0
0
7
. 

n
/
a
 

B
V

 
2
2

2
 

(a
) 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

le
a
d
e
rs

 
o
f 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 
e
a
rl
y
 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
c
h
ild

c
a
re

 
s
e
tt

in
g

s
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 

o
r 

p
a
rt

-f
u
n
d
e
d
 

b
y
 

th
e
 

lo
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
w

it
h
 

a
 

q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 

a
t 

L
e
v
e
l 

4
 

o
r 

a
b
o
v
e
 

in
 

th
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
r.

 
[E

C
S

&
L
] 

4
1
%

 
 (

N
/A

) 
5
0
%

 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
fi
g

u
re

 0
5
/0

6
 –

 
q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 d

a
ta

 u
n
a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 
 

Y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 f
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

0
6
/0

7
 

n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 u
n
ti
l 
3
1

t  M
a

y
 

2
0
0
7
. 

n
/
a
 

B
V

 2
2

2
 (

b
) 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
in

te
g
ra

te
d
 e

a
rl
y
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 
a
n
d
 
c
h
ild

c
a
re

 
s
e
tt

in
g

s
 
fu

n
d
e
d
 

o
r 

p
a
rt

-f
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
h
ic

h
 

h
a
v
e
 a

n
 i

n
p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 s
ta

ff
 w

it
h
 g

ra
d
u
a
te

 o
r 

p
o
s
t-

g
ra

d
u
a
te

 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
n
 t

e
a
c
h
in

g
 o

r 
c
h
ild

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

in
 

th
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

[E
C

S
&

L
] 

3
6
%

 
n
/a

 
4
3
.7

5
%

 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
fi
g

u
re

 0
5
/0

6
 –

 
q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 d

a
ta

 u
n
a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 
 

Y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 f
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

0
6
/0

7
 

n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 u
n
ti
l 
3
1

t  M
a

y
 

2
0
0
7
. 

�
 

B
V

 5
0
 P

A
F

 C
F

/ 
A

2
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 l
e
a
v
in

g
 c

a
re

 a
g

e
d
 1

6
 o

r 
o
v
e
r 

w
it
h
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
o
n
e
 G

C
S

E
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
s
 

A
*-

G
 o

r 
G

e
n
e
ra

l 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
V

o
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

Q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 (

G
N

V
Q

) 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

[E
C

S
&

L
] 

7
7
.8

%
 

(0
5
/0

6
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
P

I)
 

6
7
%

 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
fi
g

u
re

 0
5
/0

6
 –

 
q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 d

a
ta

 u
n
a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 
 

Y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 f
ig

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

0
6
/0

7
 

n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 u
n
ti
l 
3
1

t  M
a

y
 

2
0
0
7
. 

�
 

P
A

F
 

C
F

/ 
C

2
4
 

C
h

ild
re

n
 

lo
o
k
e
d
 

a
ft

e
r 

a
b
s
e
n
t 

fr
o
m

 s
c
h
o
o
l.
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

a
g

e
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
, 

w
h
o
 w

e
re

 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

b
y
 

B
ra

c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
ly

 
fo

r 
1
2
 

1
1
.8

%
 

(0
5
/0

6
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
P

I)
 

1
2
.5

%
 

 
T

h
e
 O

C
2
 r

e
tu

rn
 f

o
r 

0
1
/1

0
/0

5
 –

 3
0
/0

9
/0

6
 w

a
s
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
N

o
v
 2

0
0
6
. 

 T
h
e
 d

a
ta

 

56



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 2

7
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 
m

o
n
th

s
, 

w
h
o
 m

is
s
e
d
 2

5
+

 s
c
h
o
o
l 

d
a
y
s
 i

n
 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

[E
C

S
&

L
] 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
y
e
t 

b
e
e
n
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
. 

T
h
e
 f

ig
u
re

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 s

h
o
w

s
  

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
tw

o
 y

e
a
rs

. 

�
 

G
O

S
E

 G
1
6
 S

y
s
te

m
s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 j
o
in

e
d
-u

p
 

w
o
rk

in
g

 o
n
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 a

c
ro

s
s
 m

u
lt
ip

le
 

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 [

E
C

S
&

L
] 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti
n
g

 t
e
n
d
e
r 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 w
it
h
 s

u
p
p
lie

rs
. 
T

a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
g

o
 l
iv

e
 

in
 N

o
v
 2

0
0
7
 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 s

y
s
te

m
 

in
 p

la
c
e
 b

y
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

 

�
 

G
O

S
E

 1
7
 J

o
in

t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 

o
f 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 (
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
u
lt
s
) 

u
s
in

g
 

m
o
b
ile

 
te

c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 
to

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 
in

 
th

e
 f

ie
ld

. 
[E

C
S

&
L
] 

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 S
tu

d
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 

to
 p

ro
c
e
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 p
ilo

t 
s
tu

d
y
 f

o
r 

a
 s

m
a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
ta

ff
 u

s
in

g
 m

o
b
ile

 
d
e
v
ic

e
s
 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 p

ilo
t,
 b

e
in

g
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

to
 b

e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 b
e
in

g
 l
e
d
 b

y
  

th
e
 I
T

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

M
T

O
 1

4
: 

T
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

� ���
        

B
V

 5
4
 P

A
F

 C
3
2
 O

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 h
e
lp

e
d
 t

o
 

liv
e
 
a
t 

h
o
m

e
 
p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 
a
g

e
d
 

6
5
 
o
r 

o
v
e
r 

in
 
th

e
 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

[S
S

&
H

] 

8
0
 

(6
6
) 

7
0
 

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 u

p
 a

 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b

a
n
d
. 

� ���
    

 

B
V

P
I 

1
9
5
 P

A
F

 D
5
5
 i
) 

P
e

rc
e
n
ta

g
e
 o

ld
 n

e
w

 
o
ld

e
r 

c
lie

n
ts

 w
h
o
s
e

 t
im

e
 f

ro
m

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 

to
 

s
ta

rt
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

w
a
s
 l

e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
/e

q
u
a
l 

to
 2

 d
a
y
s
 [

S
S

&
H

] 

8
9
%

 (
8
0
.9

%
) 

8
5
%

 
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
th

is
 

y
e
a
r.

 I
t 

is
 n

o
w

 b
o
rd

e
ri
n
g

 o
n
 

b
a
n
d
 5

 (
h
ig

h
e
s
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

a
ti
n
g

).
 

� ���
    

B
V

P
I 

1
9
5
 

P
A

F
 

D
5
5
 

ii)
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
ld

 
8
9
%

 
8
5
 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 

57



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 2

8
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 

 
n
e
w

 o
ld

e
r 

c
lie

n
ts

 w
h
o
s
e
 t

im
e
 f

ro
m

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 

to
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

w
a
s
 

le
s
s
 

th
a
n
/e

q
u
a
l 
to

 2
8
 d

a
y
s
 [

S
S

&
H

] 

(7
9
.8

9
%

) 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
th

is
 

y
e
a
r.

 I
t 

is
 n

o
w

 b
o
rd

e
ri
n
g

 o
n
 

b
a
n
d
 5

 (
h
ig

h
e
s
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

a
ti
n
g

).
 

� ���
    

 

B
V

P
I 

1
9
6
 P

A
F

 D
5
6
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

ld
 n

e
w

 
o
ld

e
r 

c
lie

n
ts

 w
h
o
s
e
 t

im
e
 f

ro
m

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

to
 

a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

b
e
in

g
 

in
 

p
la

c
e
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
/e

q
u
a
l 
to

 2
8
 d

a
y
s
 [

S
S

&
H

] 

9
3
%

 
(8

8
.7

7
%

) 
9
0
%

 
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 m

o
v
e
d
 

u
p
 o

n
e
 b

a
n
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

b
a
n
d
 r

a
ti
n
g
. 

� ���
    

 

P
A

F
 C

7
2
 (

C
2
6
) 

A
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
g

e
d
 6

5
+

 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l/
n
u
rs

in
g

 
c
a
re

 [
S

S
&

H
] 

7
7
 

(7
7
.1

4
) 

9
4
 

A
 l
o
w

e
r 

fi
g

u
re

 i
s
 b

e
tt

e
r 

fo
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r,
 w

h
ic

h
 

re
m

a
in

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

a
ti
n
g

. 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

in
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

� ���
    

 

P
A

F
 

B
1
1
 

In
te

n
s
iv

e
 

h
o
m

e
 

c
a
re

 
a
s
 

a
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

c
a
re

 
[S

S
&

H
] 

3
2
%

 
(2

9
.7

5
) 

3
0
 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
re

m
a
in

s
 i
n
 

b
a
n
d
 5

 (
h
ig

h
e
s
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

a
ti
n
g

) 

� ���
    

 

P
A

F
 C

2
8
 I

n
te

n
s
iv

e
 h

o
m

e
 c

a
re

 p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 6

5
+

 [
S

S
&

H
] 

1
2
.2

8
 

(1
1
.4

5
) 

1
2
 

T
h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 h
a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 

th
is

 y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 m

o
v
e
s
 u

p
 a

 
b
a
n
d
 t

o
 4

 (
g

o
o
d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
).

 
   

M
T

O
 1

5
: 

T
o

 m
a
in

ta
in

 a
n

d
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e
 q

u
a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 e
x
te

n
d

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 a

ll
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

58



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 2

9
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 

�
 

B
V

 
8
 

T
h
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

in
v
o
ic

e
s
 

fo
r 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

g
o
o
d
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

p
a
id

 b
y
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
it
h
in

 
3
0
 

d
a
y
s
 

o
f 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
r 

w
it
h
in

 
a
g

re
e
d
 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

te
rm

s
. 
[C

S
] 

9
2
.6

%
 

(9
3
%

) 

 

9
5
.5

%
 

D
a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
. 

T
h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r’
s
 

fi
g

u
re

 
=

 
9
2
.6

%
 

L
a
s
t 

q
u
a
rt

e
r’
s
 

fi
g

u
re

 
=

 
9
1
.8

7
%

 

S
lo

w
e
s
t 

p
a
y
in

g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

a
re

a
s
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 

b
e
 

re
m

in
d
e
d
 

o
f 

th
e
 

n
e
e
d
 

to
 

s
e
n
d
 
in

v
o
ic

e
s
 
p
ro

m
p
tl
y
 
to

 
A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 
P

a
y
a
b
le

 
fo

r 
re

g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
. 

�
 

B
V

 
9
 

T
h
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 

c
o
lle

c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 [
C

S
] 

 

9
7
.4

%
 

(9
7
.3

) 

 

9
7
.4

0
%

 

D
a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
. 
  

F
ig

u
re

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

is
 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

=
 9

7
.4

%
 

F
ig

u
re

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
la

s
t 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

=
 8

5
.1

%
 

F
ig

u
re

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
a
m

e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

in
 t

h
e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

=
 

9
7
.3

%
 

59



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 3

0
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 

�
 

B
V

 
1
0
 
T

h
e
 
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 
o
f 

n
o
n
-d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

ra
te

s
 

d
u
e
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

w
h
ic

h
 

w
e
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 [
C

S
] 

9
9
.7

%
 

(9
8
.8

) 
9
9
.1

%
 

D
a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
. 
  

F
ig

u
re

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

is
 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

=
 9

9
.7

%
 

F
ig

u
re

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
la

s
t 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

=
 9

1
.1

%
 

F
ig

u
re

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
a
m

e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

in
 t

h
e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

=
 

9
8
.8

%
 

�
 

B
V

 1
5
7
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
ty

p
e
s
 o

f 
in

te
ra

c
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 e
n
a
b
le

d
 f

o
r 

e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 a
s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t

y
p
e
s
 o

f 
in

te
ra

c
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 l
e
g

a
lly

 p
e
rm

is
s
ib

le
 

fo
r 

e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 [
C

S
] 

1
0
0
%

 

(1
0
0
%

) 

 

1
0
0
%

 
D

a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
. 

T
h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r’
s
 f

ig
u
re

 =
 

1
0
0
%

 

L
a
s
t 
q

u
a
rt

e
r’
s
 f

ig
u
re

 =
 

1
0
0
%

 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 1

0
0
%

 t
a
rg

e
t 

w
a
s
 m

e
t 

a
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 

O
D

P
M

 a
s
 w

a
s
 o

n
 7

th
 A

p
ri
l 

2
0
0
6
. 
  

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
8
0
 

T
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 

c
a
lls

 
a
n
s
w

e
re

d
 

w
it
h
in

 5
 r

in
g

s
 [

C
S

] 
7
2
%

 
8
0
%

 
D

a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
. 
  

60



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 3

1
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 
(7

8
.9

%
) 

 

T
h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r’
s
 f

ig
u
re

 =
 7

2
%

 

L
a
s
t 
q

u
a
rt

e
r’
s
 f

ig
u
re

 =
 6

7
%

 

P
le

a
s
e
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 1
.3

3
 a

b
o
v
e
 

fo
r 

e
x
p
la

n
a
ti
o
n
. 

�
 

B
F

P
I 

0
8
5
 E

n
q

u
ir
ie

s
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 a

t 
fi
rs

t 
p
o
in

t 
o
f 

c
o
n
ta

c
t,
 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

b
y
 

te
le

p
h
o
n
e
, 

re
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 o

r 
e
m

a
il 

[C
S

] 
9
0
%

 

(9
0
%

) 

 

8
0
%

 

D
a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
. 
  

T
h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r’
s
 f

ig
u
re

 =
 

9
0
%

+
 

L
a
s
t 
q

u
a
rt

e
r’
s
 f

ig
u
re

 =
 

9
0
%

+
 

�
 

B
V

 
1

0
9
 

(a
) 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

m
a
jo

r 
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 1
3
 w

e
e
k
s
 

[E
&

L
] 

7
9
.1

7
%

 
(7

6
%

) 
6
5
%

 
T

a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 –

 P
D

G
 

ta
rg

e
t 

7
0
%

 
a
ls

o
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 

�
 

B
V

 1
0
9
 (

b
) 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
m

in
o
r 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 8
 w

e
e
k
s
 

[E
&

L
] 

8
2
.5

9
%

 
(7

4
%

) 
7
2
%

 
T

a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 –

 P
D

G
 

ta
rg

e
t 

7
5
%

 
a
ls

o
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 

�
 

B
V

 
1
0
9
 

(c
) 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

o
th

e
r 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

w
it
h
in

 
8
 

w
e
e
k
s
 

[E
&

L
] 

9
3
.1

7
%

 
(8

8
%

) 
8
5
%

 
T

a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 –

 P
D

G
 

ta
rg

e
t 

9
0
%

 
a
ls

o
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 

�
 

B
V

 1
7
9
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 
s
e
a
rc

h
e
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
in

 1
0
 w

o
rk

in
g

 d
a
y
s
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 [
E

&
L
] 

1
0
0
%

 
(9

9
.8

6
) 

1
0
0
%

 
T

a
rg

e
t 
M

e
t 

� ���
    

B
V

 7
8
 a

 T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
 t

im
e
 

ta
k
e
n
 (

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
a
le

n
d
a
r 

d
a
y
s
) 

fo
r 

a
ll 

2
7
 d

a
y
s
 

(Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 o

n
ly

) 
3
5
 d

a
y
s
 

T
h
e
 
fi
g

u
re

s
 
fo

r 
q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 
1
 

&
 2

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 c

h
e
c
k
e
d
. 

2
7
 

61



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 3

2
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 

 
n
e
w

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 

c
la

im
s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 B

ra
c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 
fo

r 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 d

a
te

 o
f 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 i
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

[S
S

&
H

] 

(6
8
.2

) 
d
a
y
s
 

is
 

v
e
ry

 
c
lo

s
e

 
to

 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

b
y
 

th
e
 

to
p
 

q
u
a
rt

ile
 

(t
o
p
 

2
5
%

 
o
f 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
).

 

�
 

B
V

 7
8
b
 S

p
e
e
d
 o

f 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 –
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 t
im

e
 f

o
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 n

o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

o
f 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 i
n
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
 [

S
S

&
H

] 

9
 d

a
y
s
  

(Q
u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 o

n
ly

) 
(2

5
.1

8
) 

1
0
 d

a
y
s
 

T
h
e
 
fi
g

u
re

s
 
fo

r 
q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 
1
 

&
 
2
 
a
re

 
b
e
in

g
 c

h
e
c
k
e
d
. 

9
 

d
a
y
s
 i

s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

to
p
 q

u
a
rt

ile
. 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

in
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

�
 

B
V

 
3
 

C
it
iz

e
n
s
 

s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 [

C
E

x
] 

7
7
.3

%
 

N
/A

 
 

�
 

B
V

 
4
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 

o
f 

c
o
m

p
la

in
a
n
ts

 
s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

h
a
n
d
lin

g
 

o
f 

th
e
ir
 

c
o
m

p
la

in
t 
[C

E
x
] 

3
4
.1

%
 

N
/A

 
 

�
 

B
V

 
1

1
a
) 

T
h
e
 
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 
o
f 

th
e
 
to

p
 
p
a
id

 
5
%

 o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 a

re
 w

o
m

e
n
 

a
t 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
. 
[C

S
] 

3
3
.3

8
%

  

(3
4
.2

9
) 

 

3
5
%

 

D
a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 a

n
n

u
a
ll
y
. 

  

L
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r’
s
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 =
 

3
4
.2

9
%

. 

�
 

B
V

 
1

1
b
) 

T
h
e
 
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 
o
f 

th
e
 
to

p
 
p
a
id

 
5
%

 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 a

re
 f

ro
m

 a
n
 

e
th

n
ic

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 a
t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 [

C
S

] 

5
.4

4
%

  

(7
.1

8
) 

 

7
%

 

D
a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 a

n
n

u
a
ll
y
. 

L
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r’
s
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 =
 

7
.1

8
%

. 

�
 

B
V

 1
6
a
) 

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 
d
e
c
la

ri
n
g

 
th

a
t 

th
e
y
 
m

e
e
t 

th
e
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
 

D
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 

A
c
t 

1
9
9
5
 

1
.8

1
%

  
1
%

 

D
a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 a

n
n

u
a
ll
y
. 

  

L
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r’
s
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 =
 

62



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 3

3
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 [

C
S

] 
(0

.9
) 

 

0
.8

8
%

. 

�
 

B
V

 1
7
a
) 
T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 f

ro
m

 e
th

n
ic

 m
in

o
ri
ty

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
. 
[C

S
] 

2
.9

6
%

  

(2
.9

9
8
) 

 

3
%

 

D
a
ta

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 a

n
n

u
a
ll
y
. 

  

P
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 
(u

n
-a

u
d
it
e
d
) 

d
a
ta

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 i
s
 2

.9
6
%

, 
re

m
a
in

s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

 

L
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r’
s
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 =
 

2
.9

8
%

. 

n
/a

 
L
P

I 
1
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g

 P
e
o
p
le

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 [

S
S

&
H

] 
n
/a

 
(1

0
0
) 

1
0
0
%

 
T

o
 f

o
llo

w
 

n
/a

 
K

P
I 

1
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 w
h
o

 a
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

liv
in

g
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 [
S

S
&

H
] 

n
/a

 
(8

8
7
) 

1
0
0
%

 

T
o
 f

o
llo

w
 

- 
B

V
 3

 P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
it
iz

e
n
s
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

5
6
%

 
(6

0
%

) 
- 

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 j
u
s
t 
re

le
a
s
e
d
. 

A
w

a
it
n
g

 c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 

- 
B

V
 4

 P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
la

in
a
n
ts

 
s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 h

a
n
d
lin

g
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 

c
o
m

p
la

in
t 

3
4
%

 
(3

0
%

) 
- 

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 j
u
s
t 
re

le
a
s
e
d
. 

A
w

a
it
n
g

 c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 

- 
B

V
 8

9
 S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 c

le
a
n
lin

e
s
s
 

6
6
%

 
(6

7
%

) 
- 

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 j
u
s
t 
re

le
a
s
e
d
. 

A
w

a
it
n
g

 c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 

- 
B

V
 9

0
 S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 a

) 
w

a
s
te

 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
, 

b
) 

w
a
s
te

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
, 
c
) 

w
a
s
te

 
d
is

p
o
s
a
l 

A
- 

7
2
%

 
(8

9
%

) 
 

B
- 

7
5
%

 

- 

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 j
u
s
t 
re

le
a
s
e
d
. 

A
w

a
it
n
g

 c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 

63



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 3

4
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 
(7

9
%

) 
 

C
- 

7
5
%

 
(7

8
%

) 

- 
B

V
 1

0
3
 S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

3
0
%

 
(3

2
%

) 
- 

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 j
u
s
t 
re

le
a
s
e
d
. 

A
w

a
it
n
g

 c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 

- 
B

V
 1

0
4
 S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 b

u
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

3
4
%

 
(4

1
%

) 
- 

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 j
u
s
t 
re

le
a
s
e
d
. 

A
w

a
it
n
g

 c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 

- 
B

V
 1

1
9
 S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 a

) 
s
p
o
rt

s
/ 

le
is

u
re

 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
, 

b
) 

lib
ra

ri
e
s
, 

e
) 

p
a
rk

s
 &

 o
p
e
n
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
 

A
- 

7
6
%

 
(6

8
%

) 
 

B
- 

7
0
%

 
(6

1
%

) 
 

E
- 

8
4
%

 
(8

2
%

) 

- 

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 j
u
s
t 
re

le
a
s
e
d
. 

A
w

a
it
n
g

 c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 

- 
B

V
 8

0
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 –
 S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

n
/a

 
- 

 

- 
B

V
 1

1
1
 –

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 –

 S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

7
1
%

 
(7

2
%

) 
- 

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 j
u
s
t 
re

le
a
s
e
d
. 

A
w

a
it
n
g

 c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 

- 
B

V
 1

1
8
 –

 L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 –

 S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

lib
ra

ry
 u

s
e
rs

 
n
/a

 
 

 

- 
B

V
 7

4
 –

 T
e
n
a
n
ts

 –
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
 

7
5
%

 
(7

6
%

) 
- 

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 j
u
s
t 
re

le
a
s
e
d
. 

A
w

a
it
n
g

 c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 

- 
B

V
 7

5
 –

 T
e
n
a
n
ts

 –
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

6
3
%

 
(5

9
%

) 
- 

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 j
u
s
t 
re

le
a
s
e
d
. 

A
w

a
it
n
g

 c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 
 

64



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 3

5
 

 S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 P

la
n

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 

D
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
h
o
w

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t
o
 t

h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 l
a
s
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

 P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 l

e
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
ll
 a

g
e
s

 
 In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
 t

o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t

o
 s

u
s
ta

in
 i

m
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 i

n
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
, 

w
o
rk

 o
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 l

it
e
ra

c
y
 s

k
ill

s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 

y
o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

 P
ro

te
c

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 e
n

h
a

n
c

in
g

 t
h

e
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

 T
h
e
 A

lt
e
rn

a
te

 W
e
e
k
ly

 C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
w

 w
e

ll 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 

 Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll

-b
e

in
g

 
 H

e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 P

C
T

 h
a
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 w

h
o
le

 f
a
m

ily
 h

e
a

lt
h
y
 l

if
e
s
ty

le
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 o

b
e
s
it
y
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
’s

 w
e
ll-

b
e
in

g
. 

 P
ro

v
id

in
g

 d
e

c
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
s

in
g

 
 T

h
e
 o

v
e
rr

id
in

g
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 i
n
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

4
 w

a
s
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 v

o
ti
n
g

 o
n
 t

h
e
 “

Y
o
u
r 

H
o
m

e
s
” 

p
ro

je
c
t.

 
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 c

o
lle

a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 M

a
rk

e
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 M

a
y
/J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
7
. 

W
o
rk

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 r

e
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d
 w

a
s
 a

 k
e
y
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

. 
T

h
is

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 

o
f 

p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
le

a
s
in

g
. 

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
 t

o
w

n
 f

it
 f

o
r 

th
e

 2
1

s
t  c

e
n

tu
ry

 
 

 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 B

F
B

C
 a

n
d
 B

ra
c
k
n
e
ll 

R
e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 r

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

re
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

ra
c
k
n
e
ll 

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
. 
 T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 f
o
rm

a
l 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

ra
c
k
n
e
ll 

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
. 

 

65



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 3

6
 

 G
o
o
d
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 o

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 l
ib

ra
ry

 f
it
 o

u
t 
a
n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

. 
 Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

ra
v
e

l 
a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 B

la
c
k
w

a
te

r 
V

a
lle

y
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 T
ra

v
e
lc

a
rd

 a
s
 a

 f
u
n
d
a
m

e
n
ta

l 
p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 v

is
io

n
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
p
u
b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 
th

e
 B

la
c
k
w

a
te

r 
V

a
lle

y
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 B

ra
c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 M
o
d
e
l 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 t

h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

a
n
d
 a

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 L

e
v
e
l 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 K

e
e
p
 M

o
b

ile
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

a
s
 s

ig
n
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 f

o
c
u
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 o

n
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 o
n
 t

ra
v
e
l 
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g

 p
e
o
p
le

 a
re

 
m

in
im

is
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

 a
n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 t

ra
v
e
l 
m

e
th

o
d
s
 a

re
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
. 

 P
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

a
fe

ty
 

th
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
in

 ‘
A

ll 
o
f 
U

s
’,
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

o
h
e
s
io

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 
a
re

 o
n
 t
ra

c
k
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 a
h
e
a
d
 o

f 
s
c
h
e
d
u
le

. 
 I
n
it
ia

l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 t

h
e
m

e
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
 t

h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 

n
e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 n

e
w

 D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 E
q

u
a
lit

y
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r,

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 G
e
n
d
e
r 

E
q

u
a
lit

y
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 w

a
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 D

a
y
, 

w
h
e
re

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 2

0
0
6
/0

7
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 w

a
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
, 

a
 d

ra
ft

 2
0
0
7
/0

8
 Y

o
u
th

 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 P

la
n
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
. 

 Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

W
o
rk

 w
a
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 w

it
h
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 F

o
ru

m
s
. 

W
o
rk

 w
a
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
o
f 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 e
v
e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 a
tt

e
n
d
e
d
. 

66



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 3

7
 

 D
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
is

 p
e
ri
o
d
 a

 d
ra

ft
 M

u
lt
i 
A

g
e
n
c
y
 P

a
re

n
ti
n
g

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 v
ie

w
 t

o
 l
a
u
n
c
h
in

g
 i
t 
a
t 
th

e
 M

u
lt
i-
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 P

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 

C
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
n
 M

a
y
. 

67



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 3

8
 

   D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

In
it

ia
ti

v
e

s
 

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
K

e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 

L
P

S
A

 2
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

o
n

e
: 

P
ro

m
o

te
 b

e
tt

e
r 

h
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 e
m

o
ti

o
n

a
l 
w

e
ll

-b
e
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
ll
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

�
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
1
: 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

L
E

A
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

 
in

 
B

F
 
a
c
c
re

d
it
e
d
 

a
s
 
H

e
a

lt
h

y
 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 
u
n
d

e
r 

th
e
 

N
a
ti
o
n

a
l 

H
e
a
lt
h

y 
S

c
h
o
o

ls
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

[E
C

S
&

L
] 

1
8
 

3
1
 

O
u

r 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

h
a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 
v
e

ry
 

g
o

o
d

. 
C

o
m

p
a

re
d

 w
it
h

 o
th

e
r 

L
A

’s
, 

w
e

 
h

a
v
e

 
a

 
h

ig
h

 
le

v
e

l 
o

f 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

t.
 

T
h

e
 

m
a
in

 
re

a
s
o

n
 

fo
r 

th
is

 i
s
 t

h
e

 e
n
th

u
s
ia

s
m

 o
f 

o
u

r 
s
c
h
o

o
ls

, 
c
o

u
p
le

d
 w

it
h

 v
e

ry
 g

o
o

d
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 

fr
o
m

 
o
u

r 
tw

o
 

H
e

a
lt
h

y
 

S
c
h

o
o
ls

 
C

o
n

s
u
lt
a
n

ts
 

a
n

d
 

a
 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n

 
fr

o
m

 
m

a
n

y
 

w
it
h

in
 

th
e
 

L
A

, 
p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 

L
A

L
 

c
o

re
 

a
n

d
 

c
o
n

s
u
lt
a

n
ts

 
w

h
o

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 

a
s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
o

rs
. 

T
h

e
 

p
ri

n
c
ip

a
l 

fa
c
to

r 
in

 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 
o

u
r 

N
H

S
S

 
ta

rg
e

t 
is

 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
c
a

p
a
c
it
y
 

to
 g

iv
e

 e
n

o
u

g
h

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
ti
m

e
 

to
 

m
e

e
t 

th
e

 
re

q
u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
. 

T
h

is
 

d
e

p
e

n
d

s
 

o
n

 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 

a
s
 

w
e

 
e

n
v
is

a
g

e
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 

th
e

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2
0

0
8
 

ta
rg

e
t 

b
y
 

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
7
, 

th
e
 

ri
s
k
 

o
f 

fa
ili

n
g

 
to

 
m

e
e

t 
th

e
 

n
e

w
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 i
s
 m

in
im

a
l.
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

tw
o

: 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 l
if

e
 c

h
a
n

c
e
s
 o

f 
lo

o
k
e
d

 a
ft

e
r 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 

68



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 3

9
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 

�
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
1

: 
%

 o
f 

L
A

C
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n
 l

o
o
k
e
d
 

a
ft

e
r 

fo
r 

m
o
re

 
th

a
n
 

1
2
 

m
o
n
th

s
 

w
h

o
 

h
a
v
e

 
m

is
s
e
d
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 2

5
 d

a
ys

 s
c
h
o
o
lin

g
 [

E
C

S
&

L
] 

1
3
.3

%
 

1
3
%

 
P

re
d

ic
ti
n

g
 t

h
is

 a
c
a

d
e

m
ic

 y
e

a
r 

to
 

b
e

 1
3
%

 -
 1

6
%

. 

�
 

%
 o

f 
Y

6
 p

u
p

ils
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

b
y
 

B
F

 c
o
n
ti
n
u

o
u
s
ly

 f
o
r 

a
t 

le
a
s
t 

o
n
e
 y

e
a
r,

 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e

v
e

l 
4
 o

r 
a
b

o
v
e
 i
n
 K

S
2
, 

in
 t

h
e
 3

 
y
e

a
r 

p
e
ri

o
d
 f

ro
m

 2
0
0
6
 t
o
 2

0
0
8
  

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
2
: 

E
n

g
lis

h
 [

E
C

S
&

L
] 

- 
7
5
%

 

T
h

is
 
is

 
a
n

 
a

n
n
u

a
l 

m
e

a
s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
b

a
s
e
d

 o
n

 t
h
e

 e
x
a

m
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 
n

o
t 

b
e
 
k
n
o

w
n

 
u

n
ti
l 

s
u
m

m
e

r 
0

7
. 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 o

n
ly

 o
n

e
 p

u
p

il 
in

 t
h

e
 

c
o

h
o

rt
 w

h
o

 i
s
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
te

d
 a

n
d

 i
s
 

n
o

t 
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

. 

�
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
3
: 

M
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 [
E

C
S

&
L
] 

- 
7
5
%

 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
m

e
a
s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
b

a
s
e
d

 o
n
 t

h
e

 e
x
a

m
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 k

n
o

w
n

 u
n

ti
l 
s
u
m

m
e

r 
0

7
. 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 o

n
ly

 o
n
e

 p
u
p

il 
in

 t
h

e
 

c
o

h
o

rt
 w

h
o

 i
s
 s

ta
te

m
e
n

te
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 

n
o

t 
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

. 

�
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
4
: 

E
n
g
lis

h
, 

m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

n
d
 s

c
ie

n
c
e

 
[E

C
S

&
L

] 

- 
6
0
%

 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
m

e
a
s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
b

a
s
e
d

 o
n
 t

h
e

 e
x
a

m
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 k

n
o

w
n

 u
n

ti
l 
s
u
m

m
e

r 
0

7
. 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 o

n
ly

 o
n
e

 p
u
p

il 
in

 t
h

e
 

c
o

h
o

rt
 w

h
o

 i
s
 s

ta
te

m
e
n

te
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 

n
o

t 
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

. 

�
 

%
 o

f 
Y

9
 p

u
p

ils
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

b
y
 

B
F

 c
o
n
ti
n
u

o
u
s
ly

 f
o
r 

a
t 

le
a
s
t 

o
n
e
 y

e
a
r,

 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e

v
e

l 
5
 o

r 
a
b

o
v
e
 i
n
 K

S
3
, 

in
 t

h
e
 3

 
y
e

a
r 

p
e
ri

o
d
 f

ro
m

 2
0
0
6
 t
o
 2

0
0
8
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
5
: 

E
n

g
lis

h
 [

E
C

S
&

L
] 

2
3
%

 
7
5
%

 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
m

e
a
s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
b

a
s
e
d

 o
n
 t

h
e

 e
x
a

m
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 k

n
o

w
n

 u
n

ti
l 
s
u
m

m
e

r 
0

7
. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 1
3
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
h
o

rt
, 

p
re

d
ic

ti
n
g

 3
 w

ill
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

 a
t 
th

is
 

ti
m

e
. 

�
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
6
: 

M
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 [
E

C
S

&
L
] 

2
3
%

 
7
0
%

 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
m

e
a
s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
b

a
s
e
d

 o
n
 t

h
e

 e
x
a

m
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 k

n
o

w
n

 u
n

ti
l 
s
u
m

m
e

r 
0

7
. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 1
3
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
h
o

rt
, 

p
re

d
ic

ti
n
g

 3
 w

ill
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

 a
t 
th

is
 

ti
m

e
. 

69



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 4

0
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 

�
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
7
: 

S
c
ie

n
c
e
 [

E
C

S
&

L
] 

2
3
%

 
7
0
%

 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
m

e
a
s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
b

a
s
e
d

 o
n
 t

h
e

 e
x
a

m
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 k

n
o

w
n

 u
n

ti
l 
s
u
m

m
e

r 
0

7
. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 1
3
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
h
o

rt
, 

p
re

d
ic

ti
n
g

 3
 w

ill
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

 a
t 
th

is
 

ti
m

e
. 

�
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
8
: 

%
 o

f 
L
A

C
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 l
o

o
k
e
d
 

a
ft

e
r 

fo
r 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
 a

n
d
 a

re
 a

g
e
d

 
6

y
rs

 t
o
 1

6
 y

rs
 w

h
o
 a

re
 i
n
 o

u
t 
o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
h
o
u
rs

 
le

a
rn

in
g
 [
E

C
S

&
L
] 

5
4
%

 
9
0
%

 

M
o

re
 c

h
ild

re
n

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n
 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

d
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 u
p

 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 o

ff
e

re
d

. 
W

h
ils

t 
s
o

m
e

 a
c
ti
o
n

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 t
a

k
e
n
 t

o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
e

 d
a

ta
b

a
s
e

 i
s
 r

o
b

u
s
t,
 

th
e

re
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

n
 i
s
s
u

e
 o

f 
d
a

ta
 

in
p

u
t,
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 
a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

. 

T
a
rg

e
t 

th
re

e
: 

|A
tt

e
n

d
a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

t 
s
c
h

o
o

l 

�
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
1
: 

%
 

o
f 

h
a
lf
 

d
a
y
s
 
a
tt

e
n

d
e
d

 
b

y
 

a
ll 

p
u
p

ils
 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
 b

y
 L

A
 a

s
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 

a
n
d
 

p
u
b

lis
h

e
d
 

in
 

th
e
 

D
fE

S
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
a
b
le

s
  
[E

C
S

&
L
] 

- 
9
5
.5

%
 

(J
u
ly

 0
8
) 

T
h
is
 t
a
rg
e
t 
re
la
te
s 
to
 t
h
e
 

a
ca
d
e
m
ic
 s
ch
o
o
l 
y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 

th
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
d
a
ta
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
6
/0
7
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 k
n
o
w
n
 u
n
ti
l 

a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 s
u
m
m
e
r 

te
rm

 J
u
ly
 0
7
. 

�
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
2
: 

%
 

o
f 

h
a
lf
 

d
a
y
s
 
a
tt

e
n

d
e
d

 
b

y
 

a
ll 

p
u
p

ils
 

in
 

s
e
c
o
n

d
a
ry

 
s
c
h
o

o
ls

 
m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 

b
y
 

L
a
s
 a

s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

n
d
 p

u
b

lis
h
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 D

fE
S

 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
a
b
le

s
 [
E

C
S

&
L
] 

9
2
.9

%
 

9
3
.5

%
 

(J
u
ly

 0
8
) 

T
h
is
 t
a
rg
e
t 
re
la
te
s 
to
 t
h
e
 

a
ca
d
e
m
ic
 s
ch
o
o
l 
y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 

th
e
re
fo
re
 t
h
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
d
a
ta
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
6
/0
7
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 k
n
o
w
n
 u
n
ti
l 

a
ft
e
r 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 s
u
m
m
e
r 

te
rm

 J
u
ly
 0
7
. 

�
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
3
: 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fi
x
e
d
 p

e
ri
o

d
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 

(e
p
is

o
d

e
s
) 

fr
o
m

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o

l 
[E

C
S

&
L
] 

2
2
 

4
8
 

(J
u
ly

 0
8
) 

G
o
o
d
 p
ro
g
re
ss
 –
 F
ix
e
d
 p
e
ri
o
d
 

e
x
cl
u
si
o
n
s 
fr
o
m
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 

sc
h
o
o
l 
d
o
w
n
 b
y
 1
/3
. 
 T
h
e
re
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 n
o
 p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

e
x
cl
u
si
o
n
s 
fr
o
m
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 

70



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 4

1
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 
S
ch
o
o
ls
 t
h
is
 y
e
a
r 
to
 d
a
te
. 
 

�
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
4
: 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fi
x
e
d
 p

e
ri
o

d
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 

(e
p
is

o
d

e
s
) 

fr
o
m

 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
[E

C
S

&
L
] 

4
6
4
 

5
0
0
 

(J
u
ly

 0
8
) 

F
ix
e
d
 p
e
ri
o
d
 e
x
cl
u
si
o
n
s 

si
g
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 a
b
o
v
e
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 

ta
rg
e
t.
  
D
is
cu
ss
io
n
s 
ta
k
in
g
 

p
la
ce
 w
it
h
 s
ch
o
o
ls
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 

ca
u
se
s 
a
n
d
 p
o
ss
ib
le
 a
ct
io
n
s.
 

�
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
5
: 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
 

fr
o
m

 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o
l 
[E

C
S

&
L
] 

1
9
 

6
0
 

(J
u
ly

 0
8
) 

G
o
o
d
 p
ro
g
re
ss
 –
 r
e
d
u
ce
d
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

e
x
cl
u
si
o
n
s 
fr
o
m
 s
e
co
n
d
a
ry
 

sc
h
o
o
ls
 t
o
 d
a
te
. 

T
a
rg

e
t 

fo
u

r:
 H

e
lp

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 d

e
m

e
n

ti
a
 t

o
 r

e
m

a
in

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

in
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n

 l
in

g
 t

e
rm

 
in

s
ti

tu
ti

o
n

a
l 
ty

p
e
 c

a
re

 

�
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
1
: 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 
w

it
h

 
d
e
m

e
n
ti
a
 
w

h
o
s
e
 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
 
in

to
 
lo

n
g
e
r 

te
rm

 
c
a
re

 i
s
 p

re
v
e
n
te

d
 f

o
r 

a
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 

4
 m

o
n
th

s
 

[S
S

&
H

] 

4
9
 

6
0
 

 

T
a
rg

e
t 

s
ix

: 
R

e
d

u
c
e
 v

e
h

ic
le

 c
ri

m
e
 b

y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 P

P
O

s
 t

o
 e

n
a
b

le
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
th

e
m

 t
o

 h
a
v
e
 a

 p
e
ri

o
d

 
fr

e
e
 f

ro
m

 a
n

y
 c

o
n

v
ic

ti
o

n
s
 

�
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
3
: 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
ru

g
 u

s
e
rs

 r
e
ta

in
e
d
 i

n
 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
fo

r 
1
2
 w

e
e
k
s
 o

r 
m

o
re

 [
S

S
&

H
] 

7
9
%

 
8
0
%

 

R
e
te
n
ti
o
n
 r
a
te
s 
u
p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 

M
a
rc
h
 w
ill
 n
o
t 
b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 u
n
ti
l 

3
0
th
 A
p
ri
l.
 P
o
st
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
7
 a
 

v
a
lid
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
ce
ss
 w
ill
 b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
D
ru
g
 

T
re
a
tm

e
n
t 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 v
a
lid
a
te
d
 f
ig
u
re
s 
w
ill
 b
e
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
n
 J
u
n
e
/J
u
ly
. 
T
h
e
 

fi
g
u
re
s 
a
s 
a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

is
 n
o
t 
a
 t
ru
e
 r
e
fl
e
ct
io
n
 a
s 
d
a
ta
 

fr
o
m
 o
n
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
w
a
s 

71



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 4

2
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 
n
o
t 
im
p
o
rt
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 r
e
ct
if
ie
d
. 

- 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
4
: 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
ff

e
n
c
e
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 b

y
 

P
P

O
s
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 I
n
te

n
s
iv

e
 S

u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 [
S

S
&

H
] 

N
/A

 
4
5
%

 
T
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s 
o
n
ly
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

o
n
 a
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
b
a
si
s 

T
a
rg

e
t 

s
e
v
e
n

: 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

a
fe

ty
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 a

rs
o

n
 a

n
d

 h
o

a
x
 

c
a
ll

s
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 a

 p
e
rc

e
p

ti
o

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 w

it
h

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 i

n
te

rv
e
n

ti
o

n
s
 

 
- 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
1
: 

%
 o

f 
re

s
p
o
n
d

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e

 B
ra

c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 

S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

w
h
o
 
re

s
p
o
n

d
e
d
 
‘n

o
t 

a
t 

a
ll 

w
o
rr

ie
d
’ 

a
n
d
 
‘n

o
t 

v
e
ry

 w
o
rr

ie
d

’ 
to

 t
h

e
 b

a
s
k
e
t 

o
f 

is
s
u
e
s
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 
in

 Q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
 1

2
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 [

S
S

&
H

] 

3
.5

%
 

(b
a
s
e
lin

e
 f
ro

m
 1

s
t  s

u
rv

e
y
) 

5
%

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 

T
h
e
 d
a
ta
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 p
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
 

su
rv
e
y
 i
s 
n
o
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
lle
ct
e
d
 

u
n
ti
l 
la
te
r 
th
is
 y
e
a
r.
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

n
in

e
: 

D
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 l

e
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 l

e
v
e
l 
o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 v
o

lu
n

te
e
ri

n
g

 a
c
ti

v
it

ie
s
 i

n
 B

ra
c
k
n

e
ll
 F

o
re

s
t 

- 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
1
: 

%
 

o
f 

a
d

u
lt
s
 

s
u
rv

e
y
e

d
 

w
h
o
 

fe
e

l 
th

e
y
 

c
a
n
 

in
fl
u
e

n
c
e
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 

a
ff

e
c
ti
n
g
 

th
e
ir

 
lo

c
a
l 
a
re

a
 (

L
IB

 1
3

7
) 

[C
E

x
] 

2
5
.3

%
 

3
2
.9

%
 

R
e
s
u
lt
 f

ro
m

 B
e
s
t 
V

a
lu

e
 U

s
e
r 

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 S

u
rv

e
y
 2

0
0
6
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
in

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
6

, 
s
h
o

w
s
 f

a
ll 

in
 l
e
v
e
l 

fe
e
lin

g
 t
h

e
y
 c

a
n
 i
n
fl
u
e

n
c
e
 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

ir
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re

a
. 

P
la

n
s
 f

o
r 

u
s
e
 o

f 
p
u
m

p
 p

ri
m

in
g
 

in
 0

7
/0

8
 t
o
 b

e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 

to
 t
h

is
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n

 
a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
m

o
n
ie

s
 f

o
r 

re
la

te
d
 

in
fo

rm
a
l 
v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n

g
 t
a
rg

e
t.

 
T

h
is

 w
o
rk

 m
a

y 
in

c
lu

d
e

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

re
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
re

a
 b

a
s
e
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 e

n
g

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 

72



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 4

3
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 

�
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
2
: 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

n
e

w
 

p
e
o

p
le

 
fr

o
m

 
‘d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 

to
 

a
tt
ra

c
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
’ 

w
h
o
 

u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
 

fo
rm

a
l 

v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g
 

th
is

 
c
o
v
e
rs

 
s
c
h
o

o
l 

g
o
v
e
rn

o
rs

 a
n

d
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
s
ta

b
le

s
 [
C

E
x
] 

5
9
1
 

5
7
6
 

S
c
h
o
o

l 
G

o
v
e
rn

o
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

T
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e

a
r 

fi
g
u
re

 o
f 

5
7
5
 

g
o
v
e
rn

o
rs

 i
n
 p

o
s
t 
(o

u
t 

o
f 

a
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
6
1
4
) 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 o
u
r 

lo
w

e
s
t 

e
v
e
r 

v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 r

a
te

 o
f 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 6

%
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 

o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o

w
e
s
t 

in
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 

a
n
d
 W

a
le

s
. 
 W

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

p
ro

m
p
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

 
w

h
e
n
 v

a
c
a

n
c
ie

s
 a

ri
s
e
. 

A
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
o
u
r 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d
 

re
te

n
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o
 

ta
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 
2
 

m
o
n
th

s
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
to

 
th

e
 w

id
e
r 

G
o

v
e
rn

o
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e

s
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

S
p
e
c
ia

l 
C

o
n
s
ta

b
le

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

W
h
ils

t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 g

o
o
d

, 
re

te
n
ti
o
n
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

a
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 a
n
d
 

w
o
rk

 i
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

in
g

 o
n
 t

h
e
 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 

c
o
u
n
te

ra
c
t 
th

is
. 

- 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
3
: 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p

le
 

(a
g
e

d
 

1
6
 

o
r 

o
v
e
r)

 
w

h
o

 
u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
 

fo
rm

a
l 

v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n

g
 

in
 

g
ro

u
p
s
, 

c
lu

b
s
 o

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

a
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e

 
o
f 

1
0
0

 h
o

u
rs

 p
e
r 

1
2

 m
o
n
th

 p
e
ri
o

d
 (

a
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e

 
o
f 

2
 h

o
u
rs

 p
e
r 

w
e
e
k
) 

[C
E

x
] 

N
/A

 
6
8
 

T
h
e
 T

a
k
e
 P

ri
d
e
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 

w
a
s
 l
a

u
n
c
h
e

d
 i
n
 S

p
ri
n

g
 2

0
0
6
. 

M
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 7

0
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 t
o

 
d
a
te

 h
a

v
e
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 t

o
 t
a
k
e
 p

a
rt

 i
n
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

le
a
n
 u

p
s
, 
s
p
e

e
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 c

ri
m

e
 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 p

a
tr

o
ls

. 
In

 A
u
tu

m
n
 

2
0
0
6

, 
a
 ‘
G

e
tt

in
g

 I
n

v
o

lv
e
d

’ 

73



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 4

4
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
e
b
 s

it
e
 w

a
s
 

la
u

n
c
h
e
d
, 

g
iv

in
g
 e

a
s
y
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 

to
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u

t 
v
o

lu
n
te

e
ri

n
g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d

ic
a
to

r 
d
a
ta

 i
s
 

c
o
lle

c
te

d
 e

v
e
ry

 t
h
re

e
 y

e
a
rs

 a
s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 B

e
s
t 

V
a

lu
e

 U
s
e
r 

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 S

u
rv

e
y
. 

T
h
e
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
th

is
 i
n
d

ic
a
to

r 
w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e
 k

n
o
w

n
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

s
u
rv

e
y
 i
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
in

 t
h

e
 

a
u
tu

m
n
 o

f 
2
0
0
9
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

te
n

: 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 

o
f 

p
u

b
li

c
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 u
p

ta
k
e
 a

n
d

 s
a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

 P
ro

m
o

te
 b

e
tt

e
r 

h
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 
e
m

o
ti

o
n

a
l 
w

e
ll

-b
e
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
ll
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 

- 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
1
: 

L
o
c
a

l 
b
u
s
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

p
a
s
s
e
n

g
e
r 

jo
u
rn

e
y
s
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

(B
V

P
I 
1

0
2
) 

[E
&

L
] 

- 
1
,8

7
6
,0

0
0
 

F
ig

u
re

 f
o
r 

3
rd

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

0
6
/0

7
. 

D
a
ta

 n
o
t 

y
e
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

4
th

 
q
u
a
rt

e
r.

 L
o
c
a

l 
te

le
p

h
o

n
e
 

s
u
rv

e
y
s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 w

h
a
t 

b
a
rr

ie
rs

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 t
h
a
t 

p
re

v
e
n
t 

p
e
o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 u
s
in

g
 l
o
c
a
l 
b
u
s
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

o
re

 o
ft

e
n
. 
R

e
s
u

lt
s
 

o
n
 t
h

is
 s

u
rv

e
y
 w

ill
 i
n
fo

rm
 

fu
tu

re
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
. 

- 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
2
: 

P
u
b
lic

 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 
o
f 

u
s
e
rs

 
w

it
h

 
th

e
 l

o
c
a
l 

b
u
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i

n
 t

h
e
 B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 S

u
rv

e
y
 (

B
V

P
I 
1

0
4
) 

[E
&

L
] 

4
9
%

 
6
5
%

 

A
 s

u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
s
 u

s
e
rs

 
h
a
s
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 t

a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o

 
id

e
n
ti
fy

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u

ld
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 b

u
s
 u

s
e
r 

74



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 4

5
 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

K
e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
. 
In

it
ia

l 
re

s
u

lt
s
 

in
d

ic
a
te

 t
h
a
t 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 w
it
h
 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
s
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n

 
th

e
 B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 U

s
e
r 

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 w

o
u

ld
 

in
d

ic
a
te

. 
 

N
.B

 I
t 
m

a
y
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

th
a
t 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 L

P
S

A
2
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 m
is

s
in

g
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

re
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 d
o
 n

o
t 
a
p
p
e
a
r 

in
 t

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

. 
T

h
e
 f
u
ll 

lis
ti
n
g
 o

f 
a
ll 

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
 f
o
r 

th
e
 L

P
S

A
2
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 B

ra
c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 B

o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

. 

75



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 4

6
 

   C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
 

d
a
te

 
In

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

C
h
ild

re
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 
L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 

T
o
ta

l 
=

  
3
 

S
ta

g
e
 1

 =
 2

  
 

S
ta

g
e
 2

 =
 1

 
S

ta
g

e
 3

 =
 0

 
O

m
b
u
d
s
m

a
n
 

=
 0

 

T
o
ta

l 
=

  
  
  

2
2
 

S
ta

g
e
 1

 =
1
5
 

S
ta

g
e
 2

 =
 3

  
S

ta
g

e
 3

 =
1
  

 
O

m
b
u
d
m

’n
 =

  
3
  

     

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

T
o
ta

l 
 =

 1
6
 

S
ta

g
e
 1

  
=

  
 1

5
 

S
ta

g
e
 2

  
=

0
 

S
ta

g
e
 3

  
=

 0
  

O
m

b
u
d
s
m

a
n
 

=
1
  

 T
o
ta

l 
=

 1
2
5
 

S
ta

g
e
 1

 =
 1

1
5
 

S
ta

g
e
 2

 =
 5

 
S

ta
g

e
 3

 =
 0

 
O

m
b
u
d
s
m

a
n
 

=
  
5
 

 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

&
 L

e
is

u
re

 

T
o
ta

l 
=

2
  

S
ta

g
e
 1

 =
  

0
  
  

S
ta

g
e
 2

 =
 0

  
S

ta
g

e
 3

 =
 0

 
O

m
b
u
d
s
m

a
n
 

=
 2

 
 

T
o
ta

l 
=

  
3
0
 

S
ta

g
e
 1

 =
  

2
1
  
  

 
S

ta
g

e
 2

 =
 2

 
S

ta
g

e
 3

 =
 0

 
O

m
b
u
d
s
m

a
n
  

=
 7

 
 

 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
/ 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
 

T
o
ta

l 
  
  
  
  
 =

 1
 

S
ta

g
e
 1

  
  
 =

 1
 

S
ta

g
e
 2

  
  
  
=

  
S

ta
g

e
 3

  
  
  
=

 0
 

O
m

b
d
s
m

’n
  
=

 
0
 

 

T
o
ta

l 
  
  
  
 =

 1
 

S
ta

g
e
 1

  
  
  
=

 1
 

S
ta

g
e
 2

  
  
  
=

 0
 

S
ta

g
e
 3

  
  
  
=

 0
 

O
m

b
d
s
m

’n
  
=

 0
 

   

H
o
m

e
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 q
u
e
ry

- 
c
lo

s
e
d
. 

76



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 4

7
 

  E
x
te

rn
a
l 
in

s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

s
  

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

 
In

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
/ 
re

m
e
d

ia
l 

a
c
ti

o
n

 

N
o
n
e
 

 
 

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 H
e

a
lt

h
 

 
D

e
ta

il
s

 o
f 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
(f

o
re

c
a

s
t 

o
v
e

r/
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

) 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 a
re

 n
o

t 
in

c
lu

d
e

d
 

in
 t

h
is

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 &

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 R

e
p

o
rt

 a
s

 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 i

n
c

lu
d

e
d

 i
n

 a
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 F
in

a
n

c
e

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s

 b
e

in
g

 
re

c
e

iv
e

d
 b

y
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 a
t 

th
e

 s
a

m
e
 t

im
e

. 
 A

u
d

it
s
 w

it
h

 
li

m
it

e
d

 o
r 

n
o

 
a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

o
p

in
io

n
s
 

 
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 

0
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

0
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

&
 L

e
is

u
re

 
0
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

2
 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s

 O
ff

ic
e
 

0
 

C
S

- 
T

h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

re
a
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

 l
im

it
e
d
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

u
d
it
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 q

u
a
rt

e
r-

 

•
 

A
X

IS
 I
T

 (
C

a
s
h
ie

r’
s
 s

y
s
te

m
)-

 t
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

in
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 4

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 o
n
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
: 
tw

o
 c

o
v
e
ri
n
g

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

, 
o
n
e
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 a

 c
o
n
fi
g

u
ra

ti
o
n
 

w
e
a
k
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 o

n
e
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
’s

 a
u
d
it
 t
ra

il.
 

•
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 S

y
s
te

m
s
 I
T

- 
th

is
 f

o
llo

w
 u

p
 a

u
d
it
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

o
n
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 o
n
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

in
g
 t

h
e
 s

e
tt

in
g

s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

e
r 

w
a
s
 o

n
ly

 p
a
rt

ia
lly

 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

A
ll 

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
v
is

it
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 

77



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 4

8
 

  S
ic

k
n

e
s
s
 l

e
v
e
ls

  
(T

h
e
 E

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 
O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 S

E
 

0
4
/0

5
 i
s
 8

.9
 d

a
y
s
 a

n
d
 

B
ra

c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 

0
5
/0

6
 

w
a
s
 7

.8
5
 d

a
y
s
) 

  D
a

y
s
 p

e
r 

F
T

E
 

 P
ro

je
c
te

d
 

d
a

y
s
 p

e
r 

ft
e
 u

n
le

s
s
 

s
ta

te
d
 

 
In

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 r

e
m

e
d
ia

l 
a
c
ti
o

n
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 

2
.7

6
 

7
.9

2
 

L
o
n
g
 T

e
rm

 S
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 (
F

a
m

ily
 C

e
n
tr

e
),

 Y
o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 

P
R

U
 C

o
lle

g
e
 H

a
ll 

(2
).

 N
o
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
ro

m
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
. 

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

 

3
.6

0
 

1
2
.5

9
 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
a
y
s
 a

b
s
e
n
t 

h
a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 3

8
5
.5

 d
a
y
s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 3

rd
 

q
u
a
rt

e
r.

  
T

h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 H

o
m

e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 W
o
rk

e
rs

. 
W

h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 

d
is

c
o
u
n
te

d
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
s
 o

n
ly

 2
5
.5

 d
a
y
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 p

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 g

o
e
s
 d

o
w

n
 t

o
 1

1
.0

8
. 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

&
 L

e
is

u
re

 
1
.9

4
 

7
.1

2
 

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

1
.9

4
 

5
.8

3
 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 d

a
y
s
 l
o
s
t 
to

 s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 f

o
u
rt

h
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

o
f 

2
0
0
6
/0

7
 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
o
n
g

 t
e
rm

 s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
) 

w
a
s
 4

3
4
.5

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 1

0
2
.5

 d
a
y
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 f

ig
u
re

 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

(3
3
2
 d

a
y
s
).

  
It
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 f

ig
u
re

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 

c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

in
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 B

F
S

 d
a
ta

 (
3
5
0
.5

 
d
a
y
s
).

  
A

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r,

 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
ic

k
 d

a
y
s
 

p
e
r 

F
T

E
 w

it
h
in

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
s
 5

.8
3
 d

a
y
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 f
o
r 

0
5
/0

6
. 

 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s

 O
ff

ic
e
 

2
.9

5
 

4
.2

1
 

T
h
e
 h

ig
h
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 r

a
te

 t
h
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

is
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
tw

o
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 
o
f 

s
ta

ff
 t
o
ta

lli
n
g
 3

7
 d

a
y
s
 –

 b
o
th

 a
re

 n
o
w

 b
a
c
k
 a

t 
w

o
rk

. 

S
ta

ff
 t

u
rn

o
v
e
r 

 
(2

0
0

5
/0

6
 t
u

rn
o

v
e

r 
fo

r 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 1

3
.6

%
, 
2

0
0

4
/0

5
 

a
v
e

ra
g

e
 t
u

rn
o

v
e

r 
fo

r 
S

E
 L

A
’s

 
0

4
/0

5
 i
s
 1

5
.6

%
, 

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
c
h
o

o
ls

) 

 
T

u
rn

o
v
e
r 

fo
r 

4
th
 Q

tr
 

 T
u
rn

o
v
e
r 

fo
r 

1
2
 

m
o
n
th

s
 

p
re

c
e
d
in

g
 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
6
 

 
In

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 r

e
m

e
d
ia

l 
a
c
ti
o

n
 

78



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 4

9
 

 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 

3
.1

7
%

 
1
4
.2

6
%

 

 
2
0
0
5

/0
6
 t

u
rn

o
v
e
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

) 
-:

 1
3
.6

%
 

2
0
0
4

/0
5
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 t
u
rn

o
v
e
r 

fo
r 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 S
o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 
(e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

) 
–
 1

5
.6

%
 

 

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

 

2
.8

5
%

 
1
0
.7

2
%

 
T

u
rn

o
v
e
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

d
e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 0

.5
%

 t
o
 2

.8
5
%

 w
h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 q

u
a
rt

e
r.

  
T

h
e
 r

o
lli

n
g
 y

e
a
r 

c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 a

ls
o
 s

h
o
w

s
 a

 d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
1
.2

%
. 

 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

&
 L

e
is

u
re

 
2
.2

7
%

  
 

1
3
.6

6
 %

 
In

 t
o
ta

l 
th

e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 1

3
 l
e
a
v
e
rs

. 
  

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 1

 r
e
ti
re

m
e
n
t,
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
in

g
 o

f 
2
 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 f

ix
e
d
 t

e
rm

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
n
d
 

1
0
 r

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
T

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 r

a
te

 o
f 

7
.2

8
%

 h
a
s
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
q

u
a
rt

e
r 

(7
.6

4
%

).
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

2
.4

7
%

 
1
3
.9

9
%

 
T

h
e
 s

ta
ff

 t
u
rn

o
v
e
r 

ra
te

 w
it
h
in

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

e
n
d
in

g
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
7
 w

a
s
 2

.4
7
%

. 
 T

h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
tu

rn
o
v
e
r 

ra
te

 f
o
r 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

w
a
s
 1

3
.9

9
%

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
tu

rn
o
v
e
r 

ra
te

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

d
u
ri
n
g

 2
0
0
5
/0

6
 b

u
t 

lo
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 2

0
0
4
/0

5
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

S
o
u
th

 E
a
s
t.

 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 

1
0
.5

3
%

 
2
1
.0

5
%

 
L
e
a
v
e
rs

 t
h
is

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r:

 
J
a
m

e
s
 G

ri
ff

in
, 

S
e
n
io

r 
P

o
lic

y
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

- 
2
5
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
6
 

J
o
e
l 
K

ill
e
r,

 P
o
lic

y
 O

ff
ic

e
r,

 g
ra

d
u
a
te

 -
 1

3
 A

u
g

u
s
t 
2
0
0
6
 

R
o
b
in

 T
a
y
lo

r,
 S

e
n
io

r 
P

o
lic

y
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

- 
 1

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

A
s
h
le

y
 P

e
rr

y
, 

S
e
n
io

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

- 
1
8
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0
7
 

 

79



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 5

0
 

 

A
N

N
E

X
 A

 
 W

o
rk

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 t
h
e

m
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 i
s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
b

e
lo

w
: 

 E
a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 C

h
ild

c
a
re

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

  
1
 

T
h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 m
e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 2

3
 M

a
rc

h
 s

in
c
e
 i
ts

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d

a
y
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.

  
T

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
a
s
 a

 n
e
w

 s
e
t 
o
f 

te
rm

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 a

n
 e

x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 a

g
e
n
d
a
. 
 T

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
s
 d

u
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 2

3
 M

a
y
 

a
n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
ill

 b
e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
in

g
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

n
e
w

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 P

la
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

 
C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

’s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
2
 

T
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

’s
 P

la
n
 2

0
0
6
 –

 2
0
0
9
 w

a
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 M

a
y
 2

0
0
6
. 
It
 i
s
 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 a

 t
h
re

e
 y

e
a
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
 t

o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
, 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 s

tr
o
n
g

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
. 
T

h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

’s
P

la
n
 [

E
n
g

la
n
d
] 
R

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 2

0
0
5
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
 t

h
a
t 

a
n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 P

la
n
 i
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t.
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

re
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 l
e
g

is
la

ti
o
n
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 b

ro
u
g

h
t 
in

to
 f
o
rc

e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
te

n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 P

la
n
. 

A
c
c
o
rd

in
g

ly
, 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

re
v
is

io
n
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 w

a
y
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 

v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
, 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 a

 b
ro

a
d
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
s
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 B

ra
c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
ill

 s
h
o
rt

ly
 b

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g

 a
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
ir
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
p
u
t 
T

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g

 P
e
o
p
le

’s
 P

la
n
 w

ill
 f

o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
In

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 t

h
e
 s

e
lf
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

. 
T

h
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 p

la
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 O

fs
te

d
 b

y
 1

4
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
7
. 

 
L
if
e
lo

n
g
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

3
 

T
h
e
 L
L
P
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s 
to
 p
ro
g
re
ss
 i
ts
 t
h
re
e
 k
e
y
 t
h
e
m
e
s.
 A
 n
e
w
 t
a
sk
 g
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
P
e
rs
o
n
a
l,
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
L
e
a
rn
in
g
 (
P
C
D
L
) 
w
ill
 b
e
 

fo
rm

e
d
 i
n
 M

a
y
 2
0
0
7
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
ll 
lo
ca
l 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
n
 a
d
u
lt
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
. 
T
h
e
 S
k
ill
s 
a
g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 
R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 i
s 
co
v
e
re
d
 b
y
 

th
e
 
S
E
E
D
A
 
fu
n
d
e
d
 
A
ct
io
n
 
R
e
se
a
rc
h
 
P
ro
je
ct
 
- 
‘G
ro
w
 
O
u
r 
O
w
n
’ 
w
h
ic
h
 
h
a
s 
h
a
d
 
it
s 
b
u
si
n
e
ss
 
p
la
n
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
n
o
w
 
h
a
s 
a
 
tw
o
 
y
e
a
r 

co
n
tr
a
ct
 f
o
r 
g
ra
n
t 
in
co
m
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
. 
 A
n
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
co
n
su
lt
a
n
cy
 e
x
-a
n
te
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ilo
t 
y
e
a
r 
in
d
ic
a
te
s 
si
g
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

e
n
d
o
rs
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
ch
 b
e
in
g
 t
a
k
e
n
, 
th
e
 a
ct
io
n
s 
b
u
ild
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
iv
e
 i
n
fr
a
st
ru
ct
u
re
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
ts
 b
e
in
g
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

la
te
r 
p
h
a
se
s 
in
 B
ra
ck
n
e
ll 
F
o
re
st
 l
in
k
e
d
 t
o
 T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 

 
 

S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
4
 

S
e
v
e
n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 L
o
c
a
l 
A

re
a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 l
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 S

C
S

P
 s

o
 t
h
e
s
e
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 w

o
rk

. 
O

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 b

y
 t

h
e
 S

C
S

P
: 

80



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 5

1
 

 

• 
T

h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 a

t 
a
n
 a

d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 s

ta
g

e
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
ili

n
g

 a
n
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 
h
a
rm

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
; 

• 
W

o
rk

 i
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 2

3
 B

ra
c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t 
P

ro
lif

ic
 a

n
d
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 O
ff

e
n
d
e
rs

 (
P

P
O

s
) 

m
a
n
a
g

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
; 

• 
W

o
rk

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 P

P
O

s
 a

re
 

  
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h
t 
p
e
o
p
le

 b
e
in

g
 f
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
; 

• 
T

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 n

o
w

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 a

n
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
e
x
e
rc

is
e
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 k
e
y
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

; 
• 

T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
a
s
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

 b
o
ro

u
g

h
 w

id
e
 a

n
ti
-b

u
lly

in
g

 s
u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 h

a
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

 d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

v
io

le
n
c
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 p

e
rp

e
tr

a
to

rs
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
; 

• 
T

h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
ls

o
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

o
v
e
rs

e
e
in

g
 t
h
e
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 F

o
ru

m
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 
o
f 

th
e
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 A

c
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
p
s
 (

N
A

G
s
) 

to
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 
T

h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o

f 
m

o
s
t 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

re
 t
y
p
ic

a
lly

, 
in

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 o

f 
a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 p

a
rk

in
g

 a
n
d
 s

p
e
e
d
in

g
 m

a
tt
e
rs

. 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 p
la

n
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

to
 e

v
o
lv

e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

in
g
 y

e
a
r 

to
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
fo

rm
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
; 

• 
T

h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

th
e
 r

is
e
 o

f 
B

ri
ti
s
h
 C

ri
m

e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 (

B
C

S
) 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

c
ri
m

e
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 f
a
lle

n
 t
o
 a

 r
is

e
 o

f 
a
ro

u
n
d
 3

.5
%

. 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 

v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t

o
 t

u
rn

 t
h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 i
n
to

 a
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
; 

• 
A

n
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

in
g

 t
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 C

ri
m

e
s
to

p
p
e
rs

 w
a
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 N

e
w

 Y
e
a
r 

to
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 t
h
e
ft
 f
ro

m
 m

o
to

r 
v
e
h
ic

le
s
. 

T
h
is

 a
p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 a

s
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

p
o
rt

s
 o

f 
s
u
c
h
 c

ri
m

e
s
 h

a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
. 

F
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
7
, 
th

e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
n
a
m

e
d
 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 t

h
e
 C

ri
m

e
 a

n
d
 D

is
o
rd

e
r 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 (
C

D
R

P
).

 
  

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
5
 

T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 d
id

 n
o
t 

m
e
e
t 

th
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r 

b
u
t 

w
it
h
 a

ll 
o
f 

th
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 t

h
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

 w
ill

 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
u
p
d
a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
. 

 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
6
 

T
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 m
e
e
t 

in
 M

a
rc

h
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 p

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

o
h
e
s
io

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

th
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 P
la

n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

In
te

g
ra

te
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

. 
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
7
 

T
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
o
n
 a

 b
i-
m

o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

. 
Is

s
u
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
W

h
it
e
 P

a
p
e
r:

 S
tr

o
n
g

 a
n
d
 P

ro
s
p
e
ro

u
s
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

F
u
tu

re
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 i
te

m
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 a

 s
it
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 

w
h

ic
h
 a

 l
o
c
a
l 
h
o
u
s
e
 b

u
ild

e
r,

 w
h
o
m

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 S

H
P

, 
is

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g
 b

ri
n
g

in
g
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 a
s
 a

n
 e

x
c
it
in

g
 e

c
o
 h

o
m

e
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 

81



 K
e

y
 :

 

�
 =

 g
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 

lo
w

 r
is

k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
/ 
m

e
d
iu

m
 r

is
k
, 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 �

 =
 p

o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 /
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

(t
o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
) 

P
a
g

e
 5

2
 

   
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
8
 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
B

ra
c
k
n
e
ll 

F
o
re

s
t’
s
 e

c
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
fo

o
tp

ri
n
t 
a
t 
th

e
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
6
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 r

e
v
e
a
le

d
 t

h
a
t 
fo

o
d
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 h

a
d
 t
h
e
 

h
ig

h
e
s
t 
e
c
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

a
ll 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
g

re
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
 F

o
o
d
 W

o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 t

o
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 t
h
e
 

p
o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 f
a
rm

e
rs

’ 
m

a
rk

e
t 
in

 B
ra

c
k
n
e
ll 

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
. 

S
u
b
s
e
q

u
e
n
t 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 B

e
rk

s
h
ir
e
 F

o
o
d
 G

ro
u
p
, 
b
o
th

 o
f 
w

h
o
m

 a
re

 k
e
e
n
 t

o
 p

u
rs

u
e
 t

h
is

 f
u
rt

h
e
r.

 F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
G

o
in

g
 G

re
e
n
 e

v
e
n
t 

a
t 

L
ill

y
 H

ill
 P

a
rk

 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0
6
 t

h
e
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t  
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 d
o
n
a
te

d
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
fu

n
d
s
 o

f 
£
3
4
8
 t
o
 L

ill
y
 H

ill
 P

a
rk

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 o

f 
a
 m

o
n
k
e
y
 

p
u
z
z
le

 t
re

e
. 

  
C

u
lt
u
ra

l 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
9
 

T
h
e
 C

u
lt
u
ra

l 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
e
ld

 a
 v

e
ry

 w
e
ll 

a
tt

e
n
d
e
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 a

t 
S

o
u
th

 H
ill

 P
a
rk

 w
h
ic

h
 f

o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 o

n
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
S

p
e
a
k
e
rs

 g
a
v
e
 t
a
lk

s
 o

n
 D

J
 s

k
ill

s
 f

o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
th

e
 G

ir
l 
G

u
id

e
s
, 
th

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 Y

o
u
th

 W
o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

P
o
lic

e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 y

o
u
th

 b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

is
s
u
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
y
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
. 
T

h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
ls

o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
te

d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

d
ra

ft
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 C

u
lt
u
ra

l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 2

0
0
2
 -

 2
0
0
7
. 
A

 v
is

it
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 a
t 
B

la
c
k
b
ir
d
 L

e
y
s
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 
th

e
re

. 
T

h
e
 v

is
it
 w

a
s
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
d
 t

o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 i
d
e
a
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 J
e
n
n
e
tt
's

 P
a
rk

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

re
 s

h
o
rt

ly
 t

o
 b

e
 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
a
t 
s
it
e
. 
B

la
c
k
b
ir
d
 L

e
y
s
 h

a
s
 a

 n
e
w

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 e

s
ta

te
 b

u
ilt

 n
e
x
t 

to
 a

 m
o
re

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

o
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 m
a
n
y
 u

s
e
fu

l 
c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
. 

A
c
c
o
rd

in
g

ly
, 
th

e
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 w
it
h
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 G

re
a
t 

H
o
lla

n
d
s
 w

o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
. 

  

82



10/07/2007 

 

                        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Review of Healthcare Funding in 
Bracknell Forest 

 
 
 

Report by a Working Group of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Commission 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

June 2007 

Agenda Item 9

83



 

1 

Table of Contents 
 
  Page Number 

 
1. Forward by Chairman 

 
1 

2. Background 
 

2 

3. Investigation and Information Gathering 
 

4 

4. Conclusions 
 

9 

5. Recommendations 
 

13 

 
Appendix 1 – Terms of Reference 
 
Appendix 2 – Notes of meeting  with Dr Lise Llewellyn 
 
Appendix 3 – Notes of meeting with  Councillor Dale Birch 
 
 

 
15 
 

18 
 

22 

 
 
 

Acknowledgements 
 
The Working Group would like to express their thanks to the following people for their 
co-operation and time.  All those who have participated in the review have been 
thanked for their contribution and provided with a copy of this report. 
 
Dr Lise Llewellyn, Chief Executive, Berkshire East Primary Care Trust 
 
Councillor Dale Birch, Executive Member for Adult Services, Health and Housing 
 
Keith Ford, Independent Consultant 
 
The following Officers from Bracknell Forest Borough Council: 
 
Richard Beaumont, Katie Dover – Chief Executive’s Department 
Glynn Jones – Adult Services and Housing Department 
Hannah Coman – Corporate Services Department 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

84



 

1 

 
 

‘What might be considered core services elsewhere will have to be critically 
examined to see if they are affordable in Thames Valley’ 

 
Attributed to the former Chief Executive of the Thames Valley Strategic Health 

Authority. 
 

1.  Forward by the Chairman 
 
 

On the 16 February 2007 the former Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Commission of Bracknell Forest Borough Council wrote to the Chief 
Executive of the Berkshire East Primary Care Trust, Dr Lise Llewellyn, to 
advise her that his Commission had decided on the 18 January 2007 to 
appoint a Working Group to review the Health Care funding for the Borough. 

 
This decision was taken following information imparted by her to a meeting of 
the Health Overview and Scrutiny Commission on the 7 December 2006 that 
Bracknell Forest had been under funded annually for the last four years and 
that this shortfall is unlikely to be remedied for the next four years. 

 
Subsequently the following Panel members were appointed to carry out this 
review: 

 
Councillor RC Edger OBE 
Chairman Adult Services and Housing Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 
Councillor IW Leake 
Chairman Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Chairman of the Joint East Berkshire Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
Councillor MJ Beadsley 
Deputy Leader of the Labour Group 
 
Councillor AS Browne 
Vice Chairman Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 
The Terms of Reference for this review are given at Appendix 1 

 
The first part of the review began on 7 March 2007 when Dr Llewellyn was 
interviewed, and concluded on the 16 March 2007 with the interview of 
Councillor Dale Birch, Executive Member for Adult Services and Health. 

 
Throughout the review the working group were given technical advice and 
research support by Mr Keith Ford OBE CPFA, former Finance Director of 
Avon, Gloucester and Wiltshire Strategic Health Authority. 

 
This is an outline report by the Working Group on Healthcare Funding.  The 
Working Group was formed by the agreement of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Commission. 

 
 
 

85



10/07/2007  

2 

 
 
 
 

2. Background  
 

2.1 At a meeting of the Council’s Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel on 7 
December 2006, Dr Lise Llewellyn, Chief Executive of the Berkshire East 
Primary Care Trust, declared that Bracknell Forest had been under funded 
since 2002 by about £4m annually, by reference to the government formula 
for Primary Care Trusts.  Dr Llewellyn also noted that The Royal Borough of 
Windsor and Maidenhead had been over funded in the same period by 
around £11m annually whilst Slough had been funded broadly in line with the 
formula. 

 
2.2 This revelation was a considerable surprise to Members, and at odds with 

assurances given to Scrutiny members by the former Bracknell Forest PCT.  
Hence, at a meeting held on 18 January 2007, Members of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Commission agreed to undertake a review of healthcare funding in 
the Borough of Bracknell Forest.  The Commission established a working 
group consisting of Councillors Edger, Leake, Beadsley and Browne, with 
Councillor Sargeant, Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Commission, 
acting as a co-opted Member of the Group as required. 

 
2.3 The key observations of the working group review’s scope were to determine 

what services the Bracknell Forest PCT supplied to Bracknell Forest Borough 
and to ascertain what services were denied to its residents over the last four 
years due to the funding imbalance.  From this starting point the aim was to 
assess the immediate steps being taken to permanently redress any 
imbalance of these services.  The review was undertaken under the terms of 
the Health and Social Care Act 2001. 

 
 

2.4  The scope of the review was separated into two parts, the first to look at the 
issues stated as follows: 
 

a. The difference and equivalence of PCT services in Bracknell 
Forest and other authorities in Berkshire East PCT. 
b. How the PCT funding formula operates and how the under-
funding for Bracknell Forest in the region of £4M assumed to have been 
year on year over the last four years, arose. 
c. The role of the Bracknell Forest Health and Social Care Partnership in 
addressing the issue. 
d. The value of the review is to ensure under-funding does not 
reoccur. 

 
2.5  This report summarizes the work undertaken on part one of the scope.  The 

working group decided that it would consider whether to undertake part two of 
the scope upon the conclusion of part one of the review. It was considered 
that part two would involve more thorough investigation into what actions the  
Berkshire East PCT would take to correct under-funding and determine what 
they and the Strategic Health Authority were doing to ensure equitable 
funding was maintained in the future for Bracknell Forest. 

 

86



10/07/2007  

3 

 
2.6 Any issues not pertinent to the PCT funding formula; its consequences and its 

remediation, were excluded from the scope of the review. 
 

2.7  Mr Keith Ford, OBE, CPFA was invited to act as an independent consultant 
on this review, due to his substantial experience with regards to  working with 
the NHS and the funding formulae.   

87



10/07/2007  

4 

3.  Investigation and Information Gathering 
 
3.1  Programme of the investigation 
 

The working group met on the following dates on the basis of a work 
programme generated by an initial meeting. 

 
15 January  -  Initial Meeting to decide to carry out a review 
21 February -  Scoping Meeting 
27 February - Scoping Meeting with Keith Ford 
7 March - Meeting with Dr Lise Llewellyn 
16 March -  Meeting with Councillor Dale Birch 

 
3.2  Consultant Advice 
 

Keith Ford, the group’s consultant, attended the meeting of 7 March to give 
advice to the group on the details of the NHS funding formulae and related 
issues.  The advice and information he gave covered the following areas: 

 
a) Background to Resource Allocation and Targets in the NHS 

 
Keith Ford advised the group that every PCT in England received an 
allocation of funding for which it provides healthcare directly as well as 
commissioning healthcare from providers e.g. hospitals. 

 
The working group noted that the allocation of funds was set by reference to 
the previous year with an uplift of funds to reflect inflation as well as growth. 
The uplift amount being determined by the PCT’s position against the “fair 
shares” target. PCTs with allocations above their target receive lower than 
average uplift. 

 
Keith Ford informed the group that the formula for the calculation of this target 
had been kept under review since 1976, and now is reviewed by the 
Ministerial Advisory Committee on Resource allocation, on which Keith Ford 
himself served.  Since 1976 the conceptual approach to the funding allocation 
had remained the same; that there should be equal funding for people at 
equal risk. 

 
In order to follow this aim, the target was calculated by reference to 
population, adjusted for sex/age mix, adjusted for need and variations in cost 
arising from market forces.  The element of “need” relied on measures of 
deprivation which were reviewed from time to time and were subject to 
debate.  It was noted that the Department of Health publish details of the 
formula calculations on their website.  The data used in the formula is 
updated every year for population, weighting for the elderly, the inclusion of 
the most recent deprivation data, and an annual recalculation of the impact of 
market forces on costs.  

 
b) Funding Data relating to Bracknell Forest PCT 

 
The group considered the figures relating to Bracknell Forest PCT area for 
the 2007/2008 year as follows: 
 
The funds available per head of population in England were £1,388 

88



10/07/2007  

5 

The target for the former Bracknell Forest PCT was given as  £1,147 
The PCT’s allocation was set as     £1,105 

 
The PCT was thus recorded as under target by   3.7% 
Multiplies by the population in the PCT this amounts to  £4.116million 

under target 
 

The Working Group was concerned that the comparison data for 
neighbouring East Berkshire local authorities revealed that Slough PCT area 
were £0.065m over-funded in comparison to target while Windsor, Ascot and 
Maidenhead PCT area were £10.606 million over-funded in comparison to 
target in the same period. 

 
However, in looking at the disparities of previous years the population data 
used on which to base the calculations reverted in 2006/2007 to use data 
which included an adjustment for population growth since the census.  The 
data used was the mid 2006 population estimates as opposed to the 2001 
census data.  It was reported that this benefited the Bracknell Forest area 
more than Slough and Windsor, Ascot and Maidenhead by moving it closer to 
its target figures than the other two areas. 

 
Hence the working group considered that it should concentrate its concerns 
upon the current year’s under-funding and the question of what action  the 
newly merged Berkshire East  Primary Care Trust would take to continue to 
honour the improvement planned for the Bracknell Forest area in terms of 
NHS funding in future years. 

 
c) Information relating to deprivation 

 
The working group found that different weightings applied to each area, as 
part of the calculations for their funding formula, as follows: 

 
 Bracknell Forest Slough Windsor, Ascot and 

Maidenhead 
 

Age 
 

91% 92% 98% 

Need 
 

81% 103% 74% 

Market 
Forces 
 

111% 110% 111% 

 
It is therefore evident that deprivation differential between areas had therefore 
already been taken account of in the original funding formula (e.g the 22% 
differential between Slough and Bracknell Forest) and therefore there did not 
need to be further adjustments to the PCT’s budget to take account of it. 

 
d) Governance Arrangements 

 
The Working Group sought details about the distribution of the information on 
the financial allocations  

 

89



10/07/2007  

6 

Keith Ford reported that the details of the proposed allocations and distances 
from target for the 2007/2008 year were included in a schedule of every PCT 
position published by the National Director of Finance on 9th February 2005.  
This information was sent to all NHS Chief Executives and Directors of Social 
Services. 

 
In March 2005 the former Thames Valley Strategic Health Authority received 
a report from its Director of Resources which gave the local figures.  This 
paper was in the public part of the agenda for that meeting.   

 
The merger consultation document on the website of the former Thames 
Valley Strategic Health Authority made no reference to the capitation position 
of the three former PCTs.  Had it done so, it may have resulted in assurances 
being sought as to continuing funding positions of the three areas. 

 
e) Receiving a fair share of funding and how to measure this 

 
The PCT expressed the view that on the issue of whether an area was 
receiving a fair share of funding related to health outcomes i.e. how healthy 
the residents are.  However, Keith Ford pointed out that outcome 
measurements can be crude e.g. survival rates or death rates do not cover 
chronic conditions.  The Working Group were advised that Bracknell Forest 
Borough Council are entitled to explore with the PCT the wealth of data that 
exists and seek to reach an agreement on what information should be shared 
and monitored beyond mortality data. 

 
f) Practice Based Commissioning 

 
Having moved from three separate PCTs to one single PCT for Berkshire 
East, there was an intention now to devolve spending decisions down to GP 
practice level.  There was a Department of Health toolkit for the initial 
calculation of Practice Based Budgets but not yet a formula for the calculation 
of a “fair shares” target at GP practice level. 

 
The recently formed Professional Executive Committee, comprised of GPs 
and other clinicians such as therapists would be a key body on such issues, 
and the working group were advised to keep in touch with discussions on 
practice based commissioning. 

 
g) Constraints to Action 

 
The 2007/2008 funding year was expected to be the last year of high cash 
uplifts with 9.4% as the England average, with expectations that the 
2008/2009 year would give a 3.5% average.  Hence it was thought that scope 
for progress towards a fairer share for Bracknell Forest in 2008/2009 might be 
limited, and the Council would not want to accept too readily that 2007/2008 
is constrained. 

 
h) Role of the Independent Reconfiguration Panel 

 
The working group were informed that the IRP acts to advise the Secretary of 
State for Health only when requested by the Secretary of State to do so.  This 
would be in relation to matters of major service change such as hospital 
closures/mergers where these were contested locally.  The IRP would 

90



10/07/2007  

7 

therefore be unlikely to be relevant to the decisions of the PCT on how to 
spend their annual revenue budget. 

91



10/07/2007  

8 

 
3.3 Summary of the interview with Dr Lise Llewellyn, Chief Executive 

Berkshire East Primary Care Trust on 7 March 2007: 
 

Dr Llewellyn explained at the start of the interview that it was important to 
focus on ‘service outcomes’ rather than ‘provision’ to gauge improvement of 
health across the area.  Bracknell Forest was considered to be a relatively 
healthy place to live and since core services were not defined by the NHS it 
followed that Slough, with greater health problems, needed more specialised 
services to deal with them. 

 
Dr Llewellyn was asked how assessments were carried out and what data 
was being used.  She explained that ‘a substantial problem was caused by 
the fact that the funding was given based on the population numbers which 
were then weighted by demographics and deprivation levels.  The population 
figures were based on the Office of National Statistics and the accuracy was 
crucial to the outcome’. 

 
These figures could be out of date especially when an area was subject to 
rapid growth, like Bracknell Forest.  Members expressed concern that if the 
funding formula was based on false statistics then Bracknell Forest would 
never reach the level of obtaining resources to achieve a higher level of 
health provision for residents.  Dr Llewellyn conceded that it was her task to 
improve these areas of concern but that her focus had to be on those areas 
where the need was greatest. 

 
Members learned that whilst Bracknell Forest had the fifth lowest spend per 
head of population in England the new Primary Care Trust would be looking 
at GP practices to compare who had above and below their fair share of 
funding.  However, she maintained the chances of changing the formula 
funding were negligible and had been tried elsewhere but failed, also existing 
budgets could not be turned around easily. 

 
Regarding the specific under spend members learned that a paper was 
presented to the old Bracknell Forest Primary Care Trust on 31 March 2005 
explaining why the Trust  was heading from an over funded  to an under 
funded financial position in a year.  This paper was in the public domain but 
Dr Llewellyn was unclear who in the ‘Council’ would have been aware of it.  
There was no record of any representations being made at the time.   

 
(NB - Whilst it might have been expected that this information would be 
presented to the Health and Social Care Partnership Board for discussion, 
there is no record in the minutes of meetings around this time that any such 
discussion took place.) 

 
Dr Llewellyn stated that in future the Berkshire East Primary Care Trust 
accounts would be taken to the Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel and 
Public Primary Care Trust for discussion; and in conclusion she expected that 
health spending in Bracknell Forest would be given more transparency in the 
future than it had in the past. 
 
The full minutes of this meeting are attached at appendix 2. 

92



10/07/2007  

9 

3.4 Summary of the interview with Councillor Dale Birch Executive Member 
for Adult Services and Health held on 16 March 2007. 

 
Before the interview began the Lead Member made it clear that information 
provided by the Working Group’s consultant had revealed that Bracknell 
Forest had not been under funded year on year for the last four years and 
had been properly funded up to 2006/7 after which the shortfall of £4.116M 
arose.  He also pointed out that whilst the Government average funding per 
head of population for 2006/7 was £1388 Bracknell Forest Primary Care Trust 
received only £1147 for some reason. 

 
Councillor Birch, who is now also Chairman of the Bracknell Health and 
Social Care Partnership Board, informed Members that the Chief Executive of 
the Bracknell Forest Primary Care Trust had warned the partnership that 
there was a funding gap but did not give an actual figure.  The meeting at 
which she offered this information was less concerned with a short fall in 
financial resources than with the emphasis it was placing on identifying 
commissioning ‘need’ and how to deliver it. 

 
He confirmed that in meetings he had attended no specific questions had 
been asked about reduced services that may result from the short fall since 
mainly attention was being paid to the delivery of services than the health 
budget overall.  He also stated that there was once a very loose 
communication between the Council and the old Bracknell Forest Primary 
Care Trust but there was a growing relationship between the Council and the 
new Primary Care Trust with meetings already held between him, the 
Chairman of the Berkshire East Primary Care Trust and the Trust’s Locality 
Manager for Bracknell Forest. 

 
When asked how matters could have been handled differently and what 
lessons had been learned Councillor Birch said that in the past poor 
relationships had impeded good communication and that as far as the 
Bracknell Forest Primary Care Trust was concerned everything sent to the 
Director of Social Services and Housing was to ‘the Council’.  The implication 
being that information was being passed and communication was established 
but that it was of no concern of the Primary Care Trust how this information 
was analysed or cascaded to those who needed to use it.  

 
A joint understanding was now developing between the Council and the 
Berkshire East Primary Care Trust and more pertinent questions of a financial 
and health delivery nature were being asked than before. 

 
 The full minutes of this meeting are attached at appendix 3. 
 
 
 

93



10/07/2007  

10 

4. Conclusions 
 
4.1 Every Primary Care Trust (PCT) in England receives an allocation of funds 

with which it both directly provides healthcare (typically General Practitioners 
(GP) and Community services) and commissions healthcare from providers 
(typically hospitals).  Since 1976 the allocation of funds is set by reference to 
the previous year plus an additional sum for inflation and growth (the 
‘formula’). What determines what each PCT gets is a ‘fair shares target’ and 
whilst the allocation may differ from one PCT to another progress towards a 
geographically fairer distribution of funds has remained an objective. 

 
4.2 The fundamental concept is that there should be equal funding for people at 

equal risk but the most contentious element conceptually is ‘need’ which is 
not capable of being measured directly but relies on proxy measures of 
deprivation.  Changes in the formula for allocating funds began in 1997 when 
criticism of under funding, an ‘unmet need’, in the industrial and ex-industrial 
parts of the country shifted funding away from the shire counties. In this 
context Bracknell Forest is considered a very healthy place to live. 

 
4.3 The Working Group is advised that no individual Primary Care Trust has ever 

been successful in arguing a change in the formula referred to above and 
such approaches have been seen as ‘self-interested lobbying’. 

 
However, the following data of funding for the financial year 2007/08 shows: 

 
Funds available per head of population in England:  £1,388 

Target allocation for the former Bracknell Forest PCT: £1,147 

Actual allocation set at:     £1,105 

An under-target allocation by:     3.7% 

Resulting, when multiplied by the population in the PCT, in an under funding 

of £4.116M 

 
4.4 We can assume that this shortfall was neither challenged nor notified to the 

‘Council’ in specific terms at the time and no evidence exists to suggest it 
was.  Although, in the manner in which the NHS/PCT considered its 
consultation to be effective at that time it might have been sent to the Director 
of Social Services and Housing but not articulated in any sense that would 
have caused concern i.e. because services had not been noticeably cut and 
the ‘need’ factor was being serviced satisfactorily.  We understand that this 
data was published in a Department of Health letter dated 9 February 2005 
sent by the then national Director of Finance to NHS Chief Executives (PCTs 
and Trusts) and to Directors of Social Services.  The letter gave targets and 
allocations for the Financial Years 2006/07 and 2007/08.  As stated above the 
assumption is that the significance of this data was not recognised at the time 
although this cannot be verified with certainty since neither the then Chief 
Executive of Bracknell Forest PCT nor the Director of Social Services and 
Housing work in the Borough any longer. 
 

4.5 At the same time these figures were available to us the neighbouring 
Boroughs were funded correctly in the case of Slough whereas the Royal 
Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead were over funded by 5.8% amounting 

94



10/07/2007  

11 

to £10,606M.  They were given by Dr Lise Llewellyn, the Chief Executive 
Berkshire East PCT, at her briefing to the Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel on 7 December 2006.  She could not have anticipated it coming as 
such a surprise to Panel Members given they, the figures, had been in the 
public domain for some time. 
 

4.6 Research has shown that prior to 2007/08 Bracknell Forest was being funded 
properly and even benefited from a slight over spend so it cannot be argued 
that the Borough has been under funded for the four years it was at first 
thought.  However, as matters stand within the newly merged PCT we are 
likely to be under funded by comparison with the Royal Borough but in parity 
with Slough for some time to come.  Prior to the merger the Department of 
Health’s declared policy was to correct imbalances over time by a process of 
differential growth and it is known that Bracknell Forest was to receive a 1.5% 
higher uplift (increase) than Windsor in 2007/08 and smaller percentage rise 
by comparison with Slough.  We believe a strong case exists for pursuing this 
improvement and should expect this increase to be honoured by the new 
PCT, as would have been the case had the Bracknell Forest PCT continued 
to exist. 
 

4.7 In the context of funding allocations we are advised of the importance of 
understanding how deprivation features in the formula.  Figures presented 
show that Slough are compensated by 3% more in their target for need but 
Bracknell Forest is down rated by 19% giving a differential of 22%.  We would 
not, therefore, expect the merged PCT to skew its financial policies in favour 
of Slough since that has already been done in the targets and it rests with the 
Health and Social Care Partnership Board and the Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel to monitor this; especially as the immigrant population is 
known to be rising in that Borough.  We are firm in our belief that it is for 
Slough and the Berkshire East PCT to make representations to the 
Government if more funds are needed than those that already exist to support 
their services and we do not expect a reduction in funding elsewhere to meet 
any short fall that has arisen. 
 

4.8 Regarding governance and procedure around the time of the merger a 
consultation document was posted on the website of the former Strategic 
Health Authority that did not mention the capitation position of the three 
PCTs.  Whilst this would probably have made no difference to the final 
decision it might well have resulted in assurances being given about the 
continued progress towards the target levels of the constituent parts of the 
reformed PCT.  This lays greater emphasis on our administration to monitor 
the division of whatever funds are allocated to Berkshire East PCT to ensure 
that Bracknell Forest gets what it is entitled to by way of need and that this 
need is accurately researched by us to ensure it is properly identified and 
subsequently funded. 
 

4.9 As already stated the Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel have an important 
role to play in carrying out scrutiny but the difficulties should not be under 
estimated.  PCTs measure success in health outcome terms; therefore, if 
Bracknell Forest is seen to be healthier by comparison with other places it 
could be argued that this factor in itself justifies the amount of money being 
spent on its existing services; consequently the actual amount of money 
being spent could be seen as not a critical factor in itself.  Our view is that 
whilst this argument might have substance there is no excuse for not ensuring 
that health outcomes in Bracknell Forest do continue to rise and that the 

95



10/07/2007  

12 

yardstick should not be a comparison with other areas which may be worse 
off but with those areas that are even more advanced than we are here.  
There is a growing use of data for comparison about levels of service in 
Hospitals and GP practices and we are entitled to explore this with the PCT to 
provide the health outcomes in Bracknell Forest we all want to see. 
 

4.10 In this context also Dr Llewellyn stated in her interview that she was not 
committed to any previous levels of spend decided by her predecessors in the 
former PCTs.  However, much is being made of the new Practice Based 
Commissioning strategy and we must ensure that local interests are being 
properly considered in this exercise.  We understand that this financial year 
may be the last we will see for some time when large increases are made to 
NHS budgets (some of which have already been announced).  So, we are 
mindful that if this is the case then further progress to a fairer share of the 
funds available may be restricted in the years to come and that our efforts to 
ensure that our share is fair and equitable should not be constrained in this 
financial year. 
 

4.11 In summary the Working Group concludes: 
 
1. It is worthwhile keeping the national formula under review but we 

should not spend time at the moment seeking to change it. 
2. The PCTs approach to deprivation must be monitored and reminded 

that Slough already has a 22% premium (£27M) over Bracknell Forest 
for this. 

3. We should bear in mind that if the PCTs had not merged Bracknell 
Forest would have received an improved allocation 0.7% relative to 
Slough and 1.5% relative to The Royal Borough of Windsor and 
Maidenhead and seek to pursue delivery of this increase in this 
financial year. 

4. The authority must work with the PCT to gain an understanding not 
only of the differences in health outcomes locally, but also health 
provision generally, with a view to reaching equity with our 
neighbouring authorities quickly. 

5. We should work with the PCT to understand how Practice Based 
Commissioning will be used locally to achieve equity and over what 
time scale. 

6. That good monitoring by both the Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
and the Health and Social Care Partnership Board is essential to 
ensure that the mistakes of the past in failing to identify a shortfall in 
funding, leading to this review, does not recur and that procedures are 
put in place between the PCT and ourselves to ensure the probity of 
the system now and for the future is established as quickly as 
possible. 

 
4.12 Finally, we consider that the aims and objectives of the scoping instructions 

as stated at paragraph 2.4 of the above report have been met by these 
conclusions and that if the recommendations are accepted by the Executive 
the purpose of this review will have achieved its aims and highlighted the way 
by which this under funding situation arose and in what way future budget 
setting must be monitored.  Furthermore, the Group consider that realistically 
there is no chance, in the current financial climate in the NHS despite the 
proposed increases, for lost funds to be redeemed and also that no 
immediate purpose will be achieved by going on to a second phase of this 
review.  However, this report should be brought back to the Health Overview 

96



10/07/2007  

13 

and Scrutiny Panel in a year’s time by the Executive Member for progress to 
be assessed and judged on its recommendations, after which a report should 
be submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny Commission. 
 

4.13 The Working Group expresses thanks to Dr Lise Llewellyn the Chief 
Executive of the Berkshire East PCT, and Councillor Dale Birch the Executive 
Member for Adult Services and Health, for their time and transparent help in 
assisting us to come to these conclusions; and to our consultant Mr Keith 
Ford CPFA OBE. 
 

 

97



10/07/2007  

14 

5.  Recommendations of the Working Group 
 
5.1 To Bracknell Forest Borough Council Officers and Members it is 

recommended that: 
 
5.1.1 Incoming mail addressed blandly to the ‘Director of Social Services’ should be 

carefully scrutinised by officers to ensure that the significance of its content is 
understood and that information detrimental to the provision of health and 
domiciliary services in Bracknell Forest is recognised and brought to the 
attention of the appropriate officers and Executive member for action. 

 
5.1.2 Berkshire East Primary Care Trust’s accounts are annually scrutinised by the 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel from now onwards as a matter of routine. 
 
5.1.3 That the terms of reference of the Health and Social Care Partnership Board 

are reviewed and/or revised to ensure the purpose of this body is functional 
and beneficial to the residents of Bracknell Forest by comparison with its 
neighbouring authorities. 

 
5.2 To Berkshire East Primary Care Trust it is recommended that: 

 
5.2.1 The Berkshire East Primary Care Trust establish if the formula being used for 

the health funding of Bracknell Forest is correct; as this may be the basis in 
the future for influencing change through research and publicity. 

 
5.2.2 Berkshire East Primary Care Trust honour the improvement planned for the 

funding of the late Bracknell Forest Primary Care Trust in this financial year 
i.e. 0.7% more than Slough and 1.5% more that the Royal Borough of 
Windsor and Maidenhead. 

 
5.2.3 Berkshire East Primary Care Trust does not skew its financial policies in 

favour of Slough on the basis of perceived deprivation since this will have 
already been recognised in the calculation of financial targets. 

 
5.2.4 Having established that Bracknell Forest has the fifth lowest spend for health 

in England, Berkshire East Primary Care Trust is requested to review GP 
practices, to establish which had above or below their fair share of funding 
and make the necessary adjustments. 

 
5.2.5 The Berkshire East Primary Care Trust identify the measurement criteria of 

health outcomes in Bracknell Forest comparing local with national practice in 
so far as is not now being done.  These outcomes and the practical 
application locally should be formally shared with this authority on a regular 
basis, enabling it to judge how well the health of its residents is being 
managed against its own health strategies and generally; so giving it the 
opportunity to comment on success, concerns and where it sees 
improvement potential. 
 

5.3 To both Bracknell Forest Borough Council and Berkshire East Primary 
Care Trust it is recommended that: 

 
5.3.1 From now onwards a more open dialogue takes place between Berkshire 

East Primary Care Trust and officers and Executive members of the Council 
as to where to spend the funding allocation for the Borough and that the 

98



10/07/2007  

15 

improved relationships now existing ensure an informed Executive 
consistently in touch with the state of health and health funding in Bracknell 
Forest. 

 
5.3.2 Bracknell Forest Council, through its Executive and Health Overview and 

Scrutiny Panel, are kept informed of discussions on Practice Based 
Commissioning to ensure that local interests are being served; and that Board 
papers and any underlying technical working papers are made available for 
scrutiny. 

 
 

99



10/07/2007  

16 

Appendix 1 
 

BRACKNELL FOREST BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
2 February 2007 

 
WORK PROGRAMME 2006 – 2007 

 
Terms of Reference for 
 

 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORKING GROUP ON HEALTHCARE FUNDING 
 
 
Purpose of this Working Group / anticipated value of its work: 
 

 
Establish: 
 
a. The difference and equivalence of PCT services in Bracknell Forest and other 
authorities in Berkshire East PCT. 
 
b. How the PCT funding formula operates and how the under-funding for 
Bracknell Forest in the region of £4M year on year over the last four years, arose. 

 
c. The role of the Bracknell Forest Health and Social Care Partnership in 
addressing the issue. 

 
d. The value of the review is to ensure under-funding does not recur. 

 
 
  

 
Key Objectives: 
 

 

There are three key objectives, they are: 

a. To determine what services the Berkshire East PCT supply to Bracknell Forest. 

b. What services were denied Bracknell Forest over the last four years? 

c. The immediate steps being taken to permanently redress any imbalance of these 

services.  

   

 
Scope of the work: 
 
 

The review is to be undertaken under the Health and Social Care Act 2001 in two Parts.   
The first is explained in the ‘purpose and value’ issues stated above and to decide whether 
or not to continue to stage 2 which will:  
 

100



10/07/2007  

17 

a. Investigate more thoroughly what East Berkshire PCT and the Strategic Health 
Authority are doing to correct the under-funding. 

 
b. Determine what East Berkshire PCT and the Strategic Health Authority are doing to 

ensure equitable funding for Bracknell Forest being maintained in the future. 
 

c. Ensure that the PCT’s time scale for changing the funding for Bracknell Forest is as 
short as possible. 

 
d. Decide if the ‘Reconfiguration Panel’ needs to be drawn into the resolution of the 

under-funding. 
 

e. Consider the impact under-funding may have had on the health and social care in 
Bracknell Forest. 

 
f. Report the findings of the review to the Overview and Scrutiny Commission with 

recommendations to the Council’s Executive, and as appropriate, the Berkshire East 
PCT, the Health and Social Care Partnership, and the Strategic Health Authority. 

 
 

 
Not included in the scope: 
 

 

Any issues not pertinent to the PCT funding formula, its consequences and its remediation, 
for example speculation on the development of any Health Multiplex. 
   
 
Terms of Reference prepared by:  The Lead member and Review Panel 
 
Terms of Reference agreed by:      Councillor M. Sargeant 
     Chairman Overview and Scrutiny 
Commission 
 
Working Group structure:  Councillor RC Edger OBE   

Chairman ASC&H O&S Panel 
     Councillor IW Leake 

Chairman Health O&S Panel 
Councillor MJ Beadsley 
Deputy Leader Labour Group and O&S 
Commission Member 
Councillor AS Browne 
Vice Chairman, Health O&S Panel  

 
Working Group Lead Member:  Councillor RC Edger OBE 
 
Portfolio Holder:   Councillor DP Birch 
     Deputy Leader  
 
 
 
 
 
 

101



10/07/2007  

18 

BACKGROUND: 
 
 
 

1. At a meeting of the Council’s Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel On 7 
December 2006, Dr Lise Llewellyn, Chief Executive of the Berkshire East 
Primary Care Trust, declared that: 

• Bracknell Forest had been under funded since 2002 by about £4m annually, 
by reference to the government formula  for PCTs; 

• The Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead had been over funded in the 
same period by around £11m annually; 

• Slough Borough Council had been funded broadly in line with the formula. 
 
This revelation was a considerable surprise to members, and at odds with 
assurances given to Scrutiny members by the former Bracknell Forest PCT. 
 

2. When questioned about this, Dr Llewellyn said that whilst she regretted this 
imbalance, which would be addressed as soon as possible, full, equity of 
funding could probably not be achieved for about three years. 

3. Overview and Scrutiny Members query whether this underfunding may have 
had a serious effect on Bracknell Forest Borough Council’s Health and Social 
Care performance.  

4. The funding shortfall may also have contributed to the PCT’s decision to 
withdraw funding for the ‘Activate’ scheme, which had been valued by the 
Council, also possibly post-operative care. 

102



10/07/2007  

19 

 
 

Appendix 2 
 

WORKING GROUP ON HEALTHCARE FUNDING 
 

7 MARCH 2007 
 

Present: Councillors Edger (Chairman), Beadsley, Leake and Sargeant 
  Keith Ford, Consultant 
  Glyn Jones, Assistant Director Social Services 
  Katie Dover, Policy Officer 
 
  Dr Lise Llewellyn, Berkshire East Primary Care Trust 
 
 
Dr Llewellyn attended the meeting to assist the group with their queries relating to 
healthcare funding within the Borough of Bracknell Forest, as follow:- 
 
1. Equivalence of Health Provision with Neighbouring Local Authorities 
 
Dr Llewellyn noted that it was important to focus on service outcomes rather than 
provision in order to gauge whether the PCT’s aim of improving the health of the 
population was being achieved.  The driver for the PCT was the aim of reducing 
health inequalities.  Dr Llewellyn reported that Bracknell Forest is a relatively healthy 
place to live in compared to other areas which was why it was awarded less funding 
per head from the Government. 
 
Dr Llewellyn reported that core services should be provided for everyone but these 
core services were not defined anywhere by the NHS and it would help to have such 
a list..  She reported that access to services was determined by need.  In Slough 
there were greater health problems and therefore more specialised services to deal 
with them.  The PCT were looking for equitable outcomes. 
 
It was noted that the PCT were looking at the future of community services this 
spring. 
 
2. Which services are there where there are different demands for them in 
different areas? 
 
There would be less demand for health visitors in more affluent areas such as 
Binfield than others.  However the issue was about placing services relative to the 
needs of the area.  Bracknell Forest’s population is younger than Windsor and 
Maidenhead’s and thus would have a different set of service demands. 
 
3. Where is the information found to assess these differences? 
 
Found via the Department of Public Health – “health needs” work.  The PCT 
collected information on levels of useage.  The data could now be tracked back to 
who used what service, when and for what. 
 
4. Is useage affected by ready availability? 
 

103



10/07/2007  

20 

The closer a person is to a service, the more likely they are to use that service, and 
this includes specialist services. E.g. in London the percentage spend on hospital 
care is much greater than in Bracknell Forest. 
 
5. How often do you reassess the data you base your assessments on? 
 
Dr Llewellyn reported that the PCT should meet regularly with the council to look at 
the plans for future housing developments.  Dr Llewellyn has recently met with Victor 
Nicholls and the Chief Executive to do so.  Hence the PCT could have an 
involvement on such issues as the Section 106 agreements and influence the 
provision of new primary care in new housing areas.   
 
A substantial problem was caused by the fact that the funding was given based on 
the population numbers which were then weighted by demographics and deprivation 
levels.  The population figures were based on the Office of National Statistics’ 
figures, and the accuracy was crucial to the funding outcome.  These could be out of 
date as based on statistics such as the latest census, and the numbers of people on 
GP registers.  It was noted that some residents might be registered with GPs outside 
the Borough. 
 
Bracknell Forest had changed from being over to under funded in a relatively short 
space of time due to the rapid population growth.  The Office of National Statistics 
has been saying that the population of Slough was currently falling, and which was 
thought unlikely.  Slough Borough Council was lobbying MPs about the issue. 
 
The working group expressed concern that given the fact that funding was based on 
statistics and that the population of Bracknell was also growing rapidly,  that it would 
never reach the level of obtaining resources to achieve a higher level of health 
service  provision for the population.  Dr Llewellyn noted that it was her job to 
improve areas of concern and mortality rates overall and then to target the worst 
areas in particular. There would be a positive knock-on effect from improving the 
worst areas.  The focus had to be on the greatest need. 
 
It was noted that Bracknell Forest had the fifth lowest spend per head for health in 
England.  Dr Llewellyn stated that she would be looking at GP practices to see which 
had above and below their fair share of funding. 
 
With regards to extended schools, Dr Llewellyn had just spoken to Tony Eccleston 
and would need to speak to him again on re-profiling services in relation to extended 
schools. 
 
6. Would it be difficult for you to explain on a national level why Bracknell Forest 
requires more funding? 
 
Yes – this has been tried unsuccessfully in other areas and it would be difficult.  
However we can try and be inventive with organising the funding. 
 
7. Is the over-funding of Windsor and Maidenhead as a result of the formula or 
as a result of something else? 
 
Dr Llewellyn reported that the basis for the funding formula was historic. The spend 
was about the pace of change and how you get to the capitation spend level.  If you 
were over the capitation level you incur less growth.  E.g. in Easington, which had the 
lowest capitation spend and therefore wanted the fastest pace of change.  Political 

104



10/07/2007  

21 

influence affects the pace of change.  It was not likely to change dramatically in 
Bracknell Forest however. 
 
 
 
The funding allocation had already been received for this year based on the East 
Berkshire Primary Care Trust’s for the year 2007/2008.  In September/October we 
would be allocated funding for the next 3 years.  Hence we were entrenched with the 
historical funding formula for a while yet.  It was important to see what figures the 
Office of National Statistics used for each in for the three East Berkshire areas. 
 
8. Will the formula give you the opportunity to level those inequalities over the 
area? 
 
Dr Llewellyn reported that she would work with GP practices to get them to their fair 
share level.  She would negotiate with them about their budgets.  Funding would 
come in two different streams; a) for secondary care and b) for patients.  Both pots of 
money would be forwarded to practice leaders. 
 
9. Were there previously any representations by the Bracknell Forest Primary 
Care Trust on the under-funding situation in Bracknell Forest? 
 
A paper was presented to Bracknell Forest Primary Care Trust on 31 March 2005 
which showed how the area went from over to under funding. This paper would have 
been in the public domain but Dr Llewellyn was not sure of whom in Bracknell Forest 
was aware of it.  At the same time Milton Keynes required help and funding in the 
area was paid back to them. 
 
 
The pattern of spend differences around the area are very interesting.  Dr Llewellyn 
promised to share the details of the budget with the Council once the initial work had 
been done on them.  It was noted that NHS contracts were unlikely to get into 
penalties against each other as they were all part of the same organisation.   
 
Once Heatherwood and Wexham Park became a foundation trust, they would have 
their own accountability systems.  Monies had been provided to them to hit the 18 
week waiting times during 2008.  However, hospital trusts were not given a 
guaranteed overall income for services by the PCT, but were paid as the services 
were provided.  Most other contracts increased by the inflation factor but general 
medical services were given 1% on government guidance. 
 
Community services were given a budget uplift of 2.5%.  Mental health was given 
£1.557million which reinstated their baseline and there would be further investment 
for the end of the year. 
 
10. What commitments have been given by, or on behalf of, the new PCT to any 
other parties about protection of existing budgets and spending levels, or rates of 
growth to be maintained? 
 
 
No assurances were previously made to other local authorities as to their budgets. 
 
With regards to existing contracts Dr Llewellyn stated that: 
- the number of acute service cases varied each year. 

105



10/07/2007  

22 

- Community services were given annual contracts with six month notice of any 
change 
Mental health contracts were for a period of one year with six month notice period.  
Once a foundation trust was in place for mental health the contract would be for a 3 
year period. 
 
Commissioning was knowing what services you required for an area, and being 
prepared to pay the price for them.  Providing services was about hitting the right 
improvement level and that depended on what the baseline was. 
 
11. What issues are there to stop you achieving a more balanced budget? 
 
Dr Llewellyn reported that she could not see issues to affect the balancing of budgets 
as such.  There would be a review carried out by practice and locality as to where the 
funding was being spent..  For example a letter had been sent to GPs about minor 
skin procedures which on average cost £125 if undertaken in a GP practice but at 
least £500 in a hospital. This raised the issue of where quality was the same – was 
there a more effective way of doing things?  Why pay the larger overheads of a 
hospital on a per activity basis.  There was a need to challenge GPs into assessing 
“am I doing the best from the budget to deliver quality to the patient?” 
 
There was evidence that once a person had been in hospital for a procedure such as 
a knee operation, that for every day after the operation the outcomes for them if still 
in hospital got worse.   As soon as clinically fit, people should be returned home.  
This in turn would mean more care at home and the structure for this provision was 
not yet in place.  This was an issue to be addressed in the future. 
 
12. Health and Social Care Partnership Board 
 
The question arose as to whether the information on under-funding would have been 
taken to the Board.  It was thought that it should have been presented there, but 
whether this was the case and whether attention was drawn to the issue was not 
known.  The Berkshire East PCT accounts should in future be taken to the Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel and the Public PCT Board meetings. 
 
It was agreed to write to the Chairman to find out the position in relation to the Health 
and Social Care Partnership Board.   
 
13. Funding this year 
 
The funding targets this year were; 
 
-To reach the 18 week waiting list 
-Put money back into mental health services in particular childhood and adolescent 
mental health 
-The IT programme 
 
In future Dr Llewellyn stated that she would expect a more open discussion on where 
to spend the funding allocation for the area.  This year the choice on what to allocate 
where had been restricted as there was very little spare money. 
 
The Chairman thanked Dr Llewellyn for giving such full and informative responses to 
the questions put. 
 
 

106



10/07/2007  

23 

Appendix 3 
 

WORKING GROUP ON HEALTHCARE FUNDING 
16 MARCH 2007 

(9.45am – 11.00am) 
 
Present:  Councillors Edger (Chairman), Beadsley, Leake and Sargeant 
    Councillor Birch 

Glyn Jones, Assistant Director – Community Care, Social Services 
and Housing 
Hannah Coman, Democratic Services Officer 

 
Firstly Councillor Edger reported the following information to the group: 
 
(i) Bracknell PCT had not been under funded by £4m year on year for the last 

four years but had been under funded by a total of £4.116m for the year 
2006/07. 

 
(ii) In 2006/07 government health funding per head averaged at £1388, Bracknell 

Forest PCT had received £1147 and allocated £1105. 
 
(iii) The national uplift for 2007/08 was 9.7% and Bracknell Forest would receive 

an uplift of 9.4%, 1.1% higher than Slough and 0.4% higher than Windsor and 
Maidenhead.  The Group were concerned as to whether this would be 
reflected in the funding received from Berkshire East PCT. 

 
The purpose of the meeting was to establish whether the under funding had been 
identified by the Health and Social Care Partnership Board (HSCPB). 
 
Councillor Birch attended the meeting to answer questions, as follows: 
 
1. As Chairman of the Health and Social Care Partnership, how did the 

Partnership work? 
 
The HCSPB was a themed partnership under the Local Strategic Partnership and 
was responsible for bringing together the PCT, public health through Don Sinclair, 
Environment and Leisure, the ambulance service and PPI Forums, and was the lead 
partnership over the Joint Strategy and Commissioning Group (JSCG). 
 
Councillor Birch replaced a representative from the PCT as the Chair.  Councillor 
Mills had been the Vice-Chairman while the PCT had chaired the Partnership.  
JSCG’s role was to carry out the work of the HSCPB which aimed at bringing the 
work of the partners together in order to remove duplication of that work. 
 
Since Councillor Birch had taken on Chairmanship in Spring 2006 there had been 
two HSCPB meetings, as the one scheduled in January 2007 had been cancelled.  
One of the pieces of work the Partnership had completed was the BF1500 health 
survey.  This was developed jointly with the PCT and all partners had contributed to 
the questions in the survey.  An analysis of the survey had now been completed. 
 
At the HSCPB the PCT had given regular updates on a number of issues, with the 
last meeting focusing on prescribing.  Nick Relph had also attended a meeting in 
2006 which had alerted members to the fact that the health economy would be £40m 
light going forward. 
 

107



10/07/2007  

24 

The HSCPB had been told by Diane Hedges that there was a funding gap in 
Bracknell Forest but had not been given an actual figure.  This was a higher issue 
than was discussed at HSCPB or JSCG, which had the role of identifying 
commissioning need and delivering it. 
 
2. Clearly Bracknell Forest had been under funded so what services were 

currently not being received? 
 
The Activate scheme was jointly funded by the Council and the PCT and this had 
been cut, but Councillor Birch was unsure whether there was any intention to cut 
other services. 
 
The Assistant Director – Community Care stated that the resources received were 
the same as the previous year, but it was not known what would happen next year. 
 
3. Did the HSCPB ask questions around the cutting of services? 
 
Specific questions about the cutting of services were not asked, Diane Hedges 
explained that there was a funding gap and questions were asked but information 
was not given relating to specific services. 
 
4. Did the HSCPB or Bracknell Forest PCT raise the shortfall as an issue? 
 
The financial situation was raised at HSCPB but the figure of £4.116m was not given.  
The same information was presented at HSCPB and at the Health Overview and 
Scrutiny so it was the December 2007 Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel where 
the figure was discovered. 
 
Questions at forums would have been around what Bracknell Forest Borough Council 
was delivering and not regarding an overall health budget.  It was believed that the 
relevant questions were being asked at the HSCPB whose role it was to question the 
PCT in terms of delivering services to residents. 
 
5. Was there anybody in the Social Services and Housing department who could 

give advice on finance? 
 
Currently Mary Purnell, Bracknell Forest Locality Manager was based at Time 
Square and officers in the department were able to access the information they 
needed.   
 
Previously there had been very loose communication between the Council and the 
PCT, and with the reconfiguration of the PCT there had been little value in setting up 
a formal relationship.  Since the situation had settled down there had been a better 
rapport with the Chief Executive of the PCT who had offered to make people 
available to work on the Health Strategy.  There had been meetings with the Locality 
Manager, Councillor Birch had met the Chairman, and received regular updates 
regarding the ‘Right Care Right Place’ consultation. 
 
The group raised concern that the HSCPB had not been truthfully dealt with.  It was 
strongly felt that more questions needed to be asked in the future and that the 
Council needed to be involved in the PCT’s budgeting process. 
 
 
 
 

108



10/07/2007  

25 

 
6. In retrospect how could matters have been handled differently and what 

lessons have been learnt? 
 
Relationships were difficult the previous year and working with partners was difficult 
because information had to be handled carefully.  When Councillor Birch became 
chairman of the HSCPB questions began to be asked regarding the funding.  At the 
same time the PCT was unsure of who to talk to in the Council and considered that 
everything that was sent to the Director of Social Services and Housing was ‘the 
Council’. 
 
The Chief Executive of Berkshire East PCT was now aware of how the Council was 
structured and who should be presented with information.  Working together on the 
Health Strategy meant that the PCT would need to answer questions around what 
Bracknell Forest wanted.  Joint understanding hopefully meant that there was more 
power to ask questions from the Council side. 
 
The group were concerned that previously there had been a flaw in the system which 
had resulted in information not getting through to the correct people.  It was hoped 
that by highlighting the issue this kind of situation would not arise again. 
 
The group thanked Councillor Birch for attending the meeting and answering the 
questions honestly.  He hoped that the right results would be achieved by Overview 
and Scrutiny taking on the issue. 
 
 

109



110

This page is intentionally left blank



 

5 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
19 JULY 2007 

 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY OF BRACKNELL FOREST PARTNERSHIP 

ORGANISATIONS – THE REQUIREMENT TO FORM A CRIME AND DISORDER 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

(Head of Performance and Scrutiny) 
 
 
1 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This paper updates the Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) Commission on new and 

prospective legislation, also on changing Government and Council policy affecting 
Overview and Scrutiny of partner organisations, and invites the Commission to 
decide in principle how they want to apportion these new, emerging responsibilities. 

 
 
2 SUGGESTED ACTION 
 

It is suggested that the Overview and Scrutiny Commission: 
 

a) Note the new legislation and changing Government and Council policy affecting 
Overview and Scrutiny of partner organisations; 

 
b) Determine in principle how the new responsibilities for the Council’s Overview 

and Scrutiny function should be allocated between the Commission and Panels; 
and in particular 

 
c) Determine where the new responsibility to operate a Crime and Disorder Scrutiny 

Committee should reside; 
 

d) Note that any changes to the terms of reference for the O&S Commission or 
Panels should await enactment of the legislation and the issuing of government 
guidance, and will require Council approval to an amendment to the Constitution, 
on the advice of the Constitution Review Group. 

 
 
3 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 At the meeting of the O&S Commission on 15 March 2007, the minutes record: 

 
Scrutiny of External Public Service Bodies  
 
The Head of Performance and Scrutiny presented a report which detailed the 
principal public bodies external to the Council for the Commission to consider how it 
and the Scrutiny Panels might extend their scrutiny function to cover.  As well as 
arising from a previously expressed interest in extending scrutiny to public services, 
by the Commission, the Local Government Bill currently before Parliament would be 
likely to expand the role for local authority Overview and Scrutiny in relation to other 
public service providers.  Members were advised that it therefore seemed likely that 
the scrutiny of some public bodies would become a statutory requirement and others 
may be included via locally agreed governance protocols. 
 
In discussion, Members raised the following issues: 

Agenda Item 10

111



 

6 

 
i) Resources – concerns were expressed that this expanded remit would not be 

achievable without the commitment of additional resources to Overview and 
Scrutiny; 

ii) Focussing Work – the increased need for Overview and Scrutiny to clearly 
identify and focus its work upon specific issues was acknowledged; and 

iii) Internal Issues – the need to ensure that scrutiny of external bodies was not 
done at the expense of important internal issues such as transport, was 
regarded as essential. 

 
3.2 The principal changes are as follows. 

 
a) The Bracknell Forest Partnership - A new role in relation to the Bracknell Forest 

(Local Strategic) Partnership, as required by the Partnership’s Governance 
Protocol, which states: ‘The Council shall facilitate the scrutiny of the work of 
the Partnership through its Overview and Scrutiny process. The process shall 
include scrutiny of the membership of the Partnership and how organisations 
and individuals are selected for representation’.  

 
b) The Police and Justice Act 2006 requires every local authority to have a Crime 

and Disorder Committee empowered to review and scrutinise, and make 
reports or recommendations, regarding the functioning of the ‘responsible 
authorities’ (the local authority, Police, Police Authority, Primary Care Trust, 
and the Fire Service) of the local Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership 
(CDRP) and Community Safety Partnership.  The legislation does not require 
that this should be a separate, dedicated committee. The relevant 
Commencement Order for the Police and Justice Act 2006 has not yet been 
issued, and further guidance is awaited from Government. 

 
c) Subject to legislation, a larger role for Overview and Scrutiny flowing from the 

Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Bill (e.g. the ‘Community 
Call for Action’; and greater powers in relation to other public sector service 
providers). Consultation documents and detailed arrangements are awaited 
from Government. 

 
d) Further changes to scrutiny arrangements may well derive from likely 

developments to Local Strategic Partnership governance arrangements. On 19 
February 2007, Communities and Local Government published a document 
‘Developing the Future Arrangement for Local Area Agreements’. This 
document follows the Local Government Bill in envisaging a much enhanced 
role for LSP’s and LAA’s and sets out the current thinking on how the new LAA 
arrangements might be implemented. Operational guidance should follow later 
in 2007, at which point the actual impact should be clearer. 

 
3.3 Pending enactment of the legislation and the issuing by the Government of detailed 

guidance, there are three broad options to accommodate the extra work: 
 

1. Retain the existing O&S Commission and Panel structure and allocate the new 
functions to the appropriate Panel/Commission 

2. Put as much health scrutiny work as possible into the domain of the Joint East 
Berkshire Health O&S Committee, freeing up the Health O&S Panel to cover all 
external public services. 

3.  Put the Health Scrutiny work back into the Adult Social Care and Housing O&S 
Panel, freeing up the former Health O&S Panel to cover all external public 
services except health. 

112



 

7 

 
At the meeting of the Bracknell Forest Partnership Board meeting on 19 April, the 
Board’s views were sought on how they would like to see O&S organised from their 
perspective, and they expressed a preference for option 2 above.  

 
 
Background Papers 
 
Minutes of the meeting of the O&S Commission on 15 March 2007 
 
Contact for further information 
 
Richard Beaumont 
Head of Performance & Scrutiny 
01344 352283 
richard.beaumont@Bracknell-Forest.gov.uk 
 
Doc. Ref 
Alluse/O&S/2007-08/O&S Partner Organisations 
 

113



114

This page is intentionally left blank



 

5 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
19 JULY 2007 

 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2007/08 

(Head of Performance and Scrutiny) 
 
 
1 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This paper invites the Overview and Scrutiny Commission to adopt a programme of 

Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) work for the Commission and O&S Panels in the 
municipal year 2007/08 

 
 
2 SUGGESTED ACTION 
 
2.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Commission are invited to approve the draft Overview 

and Scrutiny work programme at Appendix 1 to this report, for subsequent 
consultation with the Executive and the Corporate Management Team (as required 
by Article 6.02 (i) of the Council’s Constitution).  

 
 
3 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 At their meeting on 7 June 2007, the O&S Commission considered the indicative 

work programme in the 2006 Annual Report of Overview and Scrutiny and agreed to 
return to this issue once the O&S Panels had considered which topics they wished to 
review in depth during 2007/08.  All of the O&S Panels have met and concluded on 
their proposed review topics, in consultation with the Directors concerned.  Those 
conclusions are summarised in the Appendix. 
 

3.2 Following finalisation of the work programme, the detailed scope of each of the 
reviews will be designed by member working groups. 
 

3.3 The work programme for the Joint East Berkshire Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, of which Bracknell Forest BC is a member, is determined separately by 
that Committee. 

 
 
Background Papers 
 
2006 Annual Report of Overview and Scrutiny. 
Minutes of Overview and Scrutiny Commission and Panel meetings. 
 
Contact for further information 
 
Richard Beaumont 
Head of Performance & Scrutiny 
01344 352283 
richard.beaumont@Bracknell-Forest.gov.uk  
 
Doc. Ref 
Alluse/O&S Commission/O&S Work Programme 

Agenda Item 11

115



 

6 

Appendix 1 
 

DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME FOR OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY, 2007/08 
 
 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION 

 
1. Co-ordination of the work of the Overview and Scrutiny Panels 

 
2. Routine Monitoring of the performance of the Council’s corporate functions 

 
3. Audit Committee duties 

 
To include the review of plans and the reports of both internal and external audit. 
 

4. Periodic review of the Council’s strategic risk management arrangements 
 

5. Bracknell Forest Partnership 
 
To receive a briefing on the Overview and Scrutiny implications of the Local Area 
Agreement and determine how to expand the O&S coverage of BFP partner 
organisations in the light of new legislation and government guidance on governance 
of Local Strategic partnerships. 
 

6. 2008/09 budget scrutiny 
 
Note – each of the O&S Panels will also scrutinise the budget proposals in their 
departmental areas. 
 

7. Exercising pre-decision scrutiny by reference to the Executive Forward Plan 
 

 
ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HOUSING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

 
1. Review of Adult Treatment Plan (Drugs and Alcohol Action Team) 

 

2. Monitoring the performance of the Social Services and Housing Department 
 

3. Monitoring the implementation of the action plans for Supporting People and 
Adult Social Care 
 
This arises from the 2006 Commission for Social Care Inspection. 
 

4. Review of action taken in response to the Panel’s report on Anti-Social 
Behaviour 
 

5. Exercising pre-decision scrutiny by reference to the Executive Forward Plan 
 

6. Carers 
 
A working group to undertake a detailed review of the Council’s arrangements for 
carers in order to ascertain, for example, the number of carers, the nature of their 
needs and whether they are adequately supported. 

116



 

7 

7. Care Homes 
 
To invite a regulatory manager from the Commission for Social Care Inspection and a 
representative of the Berkshire Care Association to a Panel meeting to provide 
background information on their roles in preparation for a prospective detailed review 
by a working group. This may include visits to care homes and services in the 
Borough.  A presentation on the work of the Adult Protection Co-ordinator may be 
included. 
 

8. Social Care Modernisation Agenda 
 
A working group to undertake a detailed review of the Council’s implementation of the 
social care modernisation agenda which provides for adults with learning difficulties 
and seeks to offer them greater choice and independence in their lives, as led by the 
national pilot, ‘In Control’.  A visit to BROC may be included.   
 

 
ENVIRONMENT AND LEISURE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

 
1. Monitoring the performance of the Environment and Leisure Department 

 
2. Exercising pre-decision scrutiny by reference to the Executive Forward Plan 

 
3. Contributing to the development of the Community Arts Development Plan 

 
4. Strategic review of waste 

 
A working group to undertake a review of either, or both of, the new waste Private 
Finance Initiative RE3 contract and the experience of the first year of Alternative Bin 
Collection. 
 

5. Street cleaning / street scene 
 
A working group to undertake a detailed review of the Council’s performance in this 
area, possibly including representation from the Town/Parish Councils. 
 

 
HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

 
1. Contributing to and agreeing the Council’s development of a Health and Well-

Being Strategy for the Borough 
 

2. Monitoring the remediation of under-funding of health care in the Borough, as 
revealed by the Chief Executive of the Berkshire East PCT 
 

3. Extended Schools/Children’s Centres 
 
A working group to undertake a detailed review of Extended Schools/Children’s 
Centres jointly with the Lifelong Learning and Children’s Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel.   
 

4. Patient focus 
 
A working group to undertake a detailed review centred on the issue of patient focus, 

117



 

8 

which is a principal area of concern for residents, perhaps concentrating on waiting 
lists, obtaining General Practitioner appointments, and the GP out of hours service. 
 

5. In conjunction with the Joint East Berkshire Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, monitoring the performance of the Berkshire East PCT 
 

6. Contributing to the annual ‘Health Check’ process and responding to 
consultations by the PCT and NHS Trusts operating in the Borough. 
 

 
LIFELONG LEARNING AND CHILDREN’S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

PANEL 
 

1. Monitoring preparations for, and outcome of, the 2007 Joint Area Review 
 

2. Monitoring the performance of the Education, Children’s Services and Libraries 
Department 
 

3. Exercising pre-decision scrutiny by reference to the Executive Forward Plan 
 

4. Refreshed Children and Young People Plan 2007 
 
A working group to review the refreshed Children and Young People Plan with a view 
to prioritising for a thorough review 1 of the 25 areas identified in the Plan as being in 
need of improvement.   
 

5. Extended Schools/Children’s Centres 
 
To undertake a review of Extended Schools/Children’s Centres jointly with the Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel.   
 

6. School Exclusions 
 
To receive feedback on the effectiveness of the new school exclusion procedures put 
in place following the Panel’s earlier review of school exclusions and pupil behaviour 
policy at the March 2008 meeting of the Panel. 
 

 
Note – This programme may need to be amended to meet new requirements arising during 
the year. 

118


	Agenda
	2 Minutes and Matters Arising
	5 Review of Libraries
	05 Extracts from Libraries Report

	6 Review of Youth Provision
	06 Extract from YP Report

	7 Executive Forward Plan
	8 Corporate Performance Overview Report
	9 Report of the Review of Healthcare Funding in Bracknell Forest
	10 Scrutiny of Bracknell Forest Partnership - the requirement to form a Crime and Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	11 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

